=
o
|
%)
=)
@
|
%)
z
o
o

INDUSTRY COUNCIL

4Am
HER

THEERER

2019 Annual Report £



CONSTRUCTION SUSTAINABILITY
ARHERRESR

As a pivotal organisation of the construction industry, the
Construction Industry Council (CIC) strives to drive toward
unity and excellence on sustainable construction in Hong Kong,
and, in doing so, cultivates a culture of sustainability into all
aspects of our business. Sustainability policies and targets are
formulated under the CIC Sustainability Framework: Resources,
Talent, Intelligence and Culture.
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€l FIGURES AT
A GLANCE IN

20-‘ 9 FTEEYT B

Number of Registered
Construction Workers

BEFIMIAAR

245,778

Registered
General Workers

HTMEBEBIA

30,655

Registered
Semi-skilled Workers

SM¥EBEKET

202,612

Registered
Skilled Workers
AR T




Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme (RSTCS)
AMEMITERAERSE

6,247 2,631

Registered Companies Applications

EE L YN FH 55

Site Inspection and Enforcement
H T ih 3K & K 85k

1,004 15,369

Number of Number of Construction Workers
sites inspected Registration Cards checked

T ERE BMEZEXTIAZTMEHE

CIC Outreach Services Team

= =R AR 15 B

12,000 443

Number of workers (man-time) Number of briefing
reached sessions conducted

HEBHNIREAR ERERIRY
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FIGURES AT A GLANCE IN 2019

2090 EEHF &

r/‘ \ Workers Welfare
' IXR#®EA
Medical Examination Scheme for
4 4 Construction Workers (MES)
HK$ / BEXTAEER
Scholarships for Family Members of
Registered Construction Workers Visited construction sites

AMBERTIARBRES ) Tith

Number of Registered Workers
joined the MES
SMERHBNEMIRAY /

Promotion on the requirements of the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance and the operation of the Construction Workers Registration System

(BEXZTAGMEIDRAENZEXRTAZTMAGRENEE

Organlsed 4 6 seminars
SHMNE

Levy Income

BB A

w 1,103,195,329

BIM events organised by the CIC
SRR N CEEGRERED

organisations
Over attended
B2 H
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BBB = Hong Kong Institute of Construction

000 EEEEERR

Full-time courses Part time courses

2HFIRE R | BRAE

3,206 65,519

Graduates In-service practltloners (man-time) graduated

2X4% EREZEXRREB(NRNEE

* Included 5,112 students attending courses for plant operation related certification test

BESINZEBLEHFEABRFEREERANANRE

of students were successfully placed
o, UpPOn graduation
h BERBEERNRE

Student placement

BEMR

Collaborative Training Schemes*

BEE T8

* Collaborative Training Schemes for training
intermediate tradesmen
B PRETHEEZINGTE
J Collaborative Training Schemes for training senior

tradesmen

S IR TS Y 8

BXRE Subsidised VTC construction related programmes
EPRXNIRFEFEZEXNZIRE
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FIGURES AT A GLANCE IN 2019
2019 EE2HF -8

Hzﬂ \ Trade Tests

T &8 =

0 E— 2

sk * Included civil and building construction trade
tests; construction-related electrical and
mechanical trade tests; and certification tests
J for machineries and crane operation (Training

Course for Persons Working on Suspended
Working Platforms and Certification Course
with Imbedded Certification Test for Operator
of Builder’s Lift)
BREIAREBEEIRIENFA BEXHEIR
TEAR  REMBEEEZTAIA (BMIEA
EBIRREREETI hARK (BE) RIFEERS
wEREERR)

Number of trade tests conducted

TEARARE

Visits to Hong Kong
Construction Industry Trade Number of Visits
Testing Centre (HKCITTC) organised

B REEXE ENSBREY

TEMHAF D

—' Construction Innovation and
533;3\: Technology Application Centre (CITAC)

REFEFRBEERABO

* Service users include CITAC guided tour
visitors, seminar and conference participants,
among them 14,757 users were industry

/ practitioners and 5,543 users were students

and public members.

Number of CITAC service users” I s N
\ \ = *BEEAEAEEEE FRAaNaRNS N
i ni iR L £, Ho147578 B R K BN 543ERE

EMARAL -
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Visits to CIC —
Zero Carbon Park (CIC — ZCP)
SEHEREEXZ MK

25,000

Number of guided tour visitors

BEEHEAY

Construction Industry Sports and
@ Volunteering Programme (CISVP)
™ BEXFEFRELTE

Visits to MiC Display Centre
SEIERERIBEZEZREAD O

00/

Number of guided tours organised

E./A%l

Over-‘ 0 000 ?n"j;t,‘f_it‘i’::;t)s SHEBEEXEHRZITEMN
AR SEE

participated in CISVP events

94

Number of

volunteering service hours
services = LRI &
ELRBRE

xR EY AR

/7

15,697

Number of volunteering

Supported and Sponsored Events

Number of industry events supported and sponsored

xBFERBEXFAEEEE

0,950

Number of participating
volunteers

& T¥HE
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.l HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE YEAR

FEYY

17-20.12.2019

Construction Innovation Expo 2019 Z&E R HEES

Exhibition & &
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHY
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

17-20.12.2019
Construction Innovation Expo 2019 Z&E R HEES

Ceremonies & Gala Dinner 81 R &k =

Soft Opening
ERAREERE
-7

Collaborative Agreement Signing Ceremony at
Gala Dinner
BO®RELNEFEZEAEEZEES

Technical Tours i 2 &

10/ CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHY

International Conferences B & &

ClExpo 2019
Grand Opening
Ceremony - CIC
Construction
Innovation Award
Presentation
Ceremony and
Technical Seminar
2019 RERIHEE
SHEAR — AF
REREEHRATS

International Conference on BIM

ZHER R Er s
International Conference on MiC REERRRARTH

MERAREZELZERE R

Building Asia Forum
Al 22 53 M 1B

International Conference on DfMA, Robotics and Automation
HEEXNEE BB AHEBBLEESE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁ*{/ 1



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

Public Engagement Events

REBHETEH
01 - 03.2019

HKIC Building Heritage Tour
[EEENFIEZEEEE

20.01.2019

Construction Industry Happy Run and Carnival 2019
BEXBOBEZRFE2019

02 - 04.2019

Construction Industry
Uniform Roving Exhibition
BEXFRKE

12/ CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHY

27.01.2019

Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade Testing Centre -
Naming Ceremony & Open Day
EREEETEURPTLERENERMKA

14.04.2019

Construction Industry Table Tennis Competition and Carnival 2019
BEXFERERIEEERFE£2019

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁ*{/ 13



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

Public Engagement Events

ARBEEY

04 - 06.2019

Carpentry and Joinery Workshop
RKAB

23.06.2019

Construction Industry 5-a-side Football Fun Day 2019
BEEXERTAZRELBE2019
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

05-28.11.2019

CITF Gallery &£ £l &l &

08.12.2019

Construction Industry Sports Day and Charity Fun Day 2019
BEEXEHSEXZEZREA2019

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁ*{/ 15



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

11 - 12.2019

Construction Month 2019 % A

Construction Month 2019 Grand Launch

[5E A2019/Ba & 2

Zero Carbon Studio &bk
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

Happy Building STEAM Playground
STEAM S % F

Zero Carbon Music Festival
ThrE TR

Construction Industry Caring

Organisation “Cracking Movie Night”
REXHEERBIELEERR]
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHS

Industry Events

RREE

28.01.2019
m BIM Year 2019 & BIM Certification and

Accreditation Schemes Launch Ceremony
BIM Talks BEGEERFOIREECEERRTRIABFERDE
NMI%%E/ /

18.02.2019

Opening Ceremony for the Safety Experience
Training Centre

ZEERIEPOFEFRE

Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme
Launching Ceremony

%%%Hﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%/
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHF

02.04.2019
12.07.2019

CIC Construction Luncheon

HE AR R

12.04.2019

Employers Luncheon and
Appreciation Ceremony
EXrrEgEsifrag

23.04.2019

CIC BIM SPACE Opening Ceremony
BEXBSEECEERZOREAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁi/ 19



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHS

Industry Events

RREE

14.05.2019

CIC Greater Bay Area Forum 2019
BEXRSANEERIE2019

Construction Safety Week 2019
BEXZEE 2019

20/ CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHY

07.06.2019

CIC Lo Pan Cup Dragon Boat Race 2019
BEXZSEUBTEARE2019

29.06.2019

Alumni Lo Pan Dinner 2019 and Launching of The Approved
Technical Talents Training Programmes and the 1% Construction
Industry Outstanding Apprentice Award Presentation Ceremony
0IIRKENREEITRMEASFIHERBEAREEEEXESR
HERfE B R
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

Industry Events

RREE

14.07.2019

Construction Industry Volunteer Awards Presentation
Ceremony and Lo Pan Service Month 2019
BEERIETEERYURKA2019

22-27.08.2019

WorldSkills Competition 2019
5 BE K #2019

22/ CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHY

08 - 09.2019

Construction Workers Festival
BEIRES

Pz
/

11.09.2019

Dinner Reception of the Hong Kong
Construction Industry to Celebrate
the 70™ Anniversary of the PRC
EREERENPEARANMEA I T
AEBEES

Pz
/

13.09.2019

CIC Conference on Low Carbon Construction
Roadmap Beyond 2030 and Carbon Assessment Tool
Launching Ceremony

EEER SRR 2030REREANSERIHEIAK
By

Pz
/
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FENY

Industry Events

RREE

21.09.2019

Construction Industry Outstanding Young Person
Awards Presentation Ceremony 2019 and

Young Construction Conference 2019

019 EXRHEFAREREREBREIFTFESTEF2019

06.11.2019

Experimental Learning on Site Safety 2019-2020
Kick-off Ceremony
[T ih % 2 88 58 5t 212019-20] Bk B #8

/

04-07 & 09.11.2019

Construction Month Cup 2019
3x3 Basketball Competition
FAR2019= A ERE

24/ CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FEHY

09.11.2019

Award Presentation Ceremony of Scholarship for Family
Members of Registered Construction Workers 2019
019 MBEXETARERESHLAR

Launching Ceremony of CIC Sustainable Construction
Award 2020 and CIC Green Product Certification
BEEBRETRAZERR00RREERAERDE

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁ/ 25



L JCHAIRMAN'’S

MESSAGE
ERFES

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) has been striving to
reform Hong Kong’'s construction industry, making it safer,

greener, more efficient and of better quality.

Since | took over the position four years ago, the CIC has
drawn up long-term plans for a wide variety of initiatives,
including internal management, facility improvement and
development in key areas of the construction industry.
Thanks to the efforts of Council Members, Boards and

Committees’ Members, CIC staff and colleagues,

support from the industry, these tasks have been carried out
largely as planned and have achieved satisfactory results,

which are all detailed in other sections of this report.

BEXZETHB IR EBREERE
BUCEZE ERER -ERURNEEE -

EENFHN AR BEESHTENIE
BREAMEE  RiedE - UREBBTES
BEZRERINBRE  flOz: RE - LE
D ERRERBECSERESZESE HBET
TRENI/FSE  -BBEIHE  BEE
EREEZEENE BERSNBHIME
RN SRIEEREHIRTEET
WMERENRE  FHERTUSHARE
MEMEE o
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In 2019,
Innovation Expo and the third CIC Construction Innovation Award

the CIC successfully held the inaugural Construction
Presentation Ceremony. | would therefore like to report especially on
the work of the CIC in connection with innovation in the construction
industry.

The construction industry is a time-honoured business sector, with
many fine traditions, but also a lot of traditional burdens. Reform
means breaking through tradition and establishing new thinking and
a new culture.

The CIC set up the Construction Innovation and Technology
Application Centre in 2017 to introduce new technologies, machinery
and materials from around the world to the construction industry
in Hong Kong. In essence, the most important mission is to guide
Hong Kong's construction industry to embrace innovative thinking and
culture.

The most frequently criticised issues in the construction industry, such
as safety, environmental protection, quality and productivity, mainly
result from the old tradition of “on-site construction”. Therefore,
the most important element of construction industry reform is
industrialisation, by migrating on-site work to factories. The Modular
Integrated Construction (MiC) method is the most effective and
thorough solution to long-standing problems in the construction
industry. After years of endorsement by the Development Bureau and
the CIC, it is gratifying to witness the commencement of numerous

MiC projects in Hong Kong.

To celebrate the 70" Anniversary of the founding of the People’s
Republic of China, the CIC and the Development Bureau jointly
organised the inaugural Construction Innovation Expo, which was
well received and attracted 228 construction industry exhibitors from
15 countries and regions, and the number of visits and seminar
attendance exceeded 23,500 and 2,500 respectively. It seems that
the seeds of innovation have begun to sprout in the Hong Kong

construction industry.

Building Information Modelling (BIM) technology is an important tool
in modern building design, construction, and facilities management.
In recent years, the CIC has invested a lot of resources in promoting
the development of BIM in Hong Kong, and even declared 2019 as
BIM Year in order to enhance industry awareness of BIM.

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
TRFE

09F B SR IBNRTEREIEEAFEE

AJ%D%_FF%L% R EREA
CEARERAFETEEERE T &€

Lm%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%l¢°

REFE-HEELEKANTE BERS
BROESR  BEELEEETPERNER
HEEERFES Eﬁ%ﬁfu\,\fﬁﬂé?ﬁi{t °

EEE2017F AL R E R B B R
T RERAREXRNBURZIHREER

SV IAT « B R RERER
MEFRLSIEREREXRELAIMEA
M e

BEXRSTARBNZE  RR @mE 4
ENEREE EXRERRRMEBIRGHT]
MEBHR AEREXNEZEENTIE

Il BN TIEEBI TH: 4
KAaRIZEEMORRBERREZEE
MBENSTER KBERBMEZSZFHHE
B FEMEEINZEMCTIREETERY
PR °

BTEMPEARLMBKI70BF @ BiE
X¥ZeBRAERAENRTE—BIEZEAH
BEE BRAGEBRRMHME - H£228K
HEEXEBBANKBELRE  HiB23,500M
2500A XL BEEN2EME BELE

HTE: UTFIaFINEFERESREXD
KBAABA L o

EEERREBIM) TR R EZER
E@I%HE&MEE@@EE’UIE EEOFR
MALER  HBBMETENER B
09 BABIREFEBREF] UMEE
FEBIMEYREEE -

[ ]
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
ETRFE

In order to engage construction industry forces in unison, the CIC
has set aside dedicated office space to accommodate the “CIC BIM
Space” to host BIM related activities for the industry, as well as to
provide convenient and one-stop efficient technical support for the
industry. During 2019, the CIC successfully established BIM Standards,
an Accreditation Scheme for BIM Training Courses and a Certification
Scheme for BIM Personnel applicable to the Hong Kong construction
industry, thus setting healthy rules and a solid platform for the long-
term development of BIM in Hong Kong.

The CIC has accomplished a number of achievements in 2019 which
are of historic importance and worth sharing:—

o The Launch of the Registered Specialist Trade Contractors
Scheme

o The Opening of the Safety Experience Training Centre
. The Launch of CIC Green Product Certification
° The Launch of CIC Carbon Assessment Tool

o The Launch of CIC Approved Technical Talents Training

Programmes

o Successful Convention of the First Construction Industry
Outstanding Young Person Award

o Successful Convention of the First Construction Industry

Outstanding Apprentice Award

The effective governance of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region encountered severe challenges in 2019.
The disturbance set off by the counter-amendment to the Fugitive
Offenders Bill led to wide-ranging social movement, while certain
members of the Legislative Council filibustered blindly, resulting in
societal paralysis and severe disruption of the construction industry.
The volume of construction work experienced a 7.1% decrease from
last year while unemployment rate in the construction industry soared
to 8.5% in the first quarter of 2020.

RTRBERNNE  ZEFIBLENEE
=R BYREXRRREECRERER]
(CIC BIM Space) * &2 F = P EHBIMAE &
B RESEM—MAERORMZE - &
019F B W AXRBE T ERAR B AR
BIMIZ 2 . BIMIZFI R EREFTEMEER
AFEEE2ZNTIHE - RBMEAENRE
BR RIBEMTAMEZERNFSR o

20194  BEEETZFR  BZERH
EBELEE REGSERARSZE: —

o  HEMEFMTEAEENERD

s EEAEXRE2ERIIKPLOKE
s REXBEUHECERATRDY
s BEEXFEWMAEIARMA

s BEAXZEARAURMEAFIIG K
E2)

s FEBRAXALBTFEENINER

s FEBRERALNBREESERDIEMR

EXEFERNNBERES @ 7£2019F % 5
BRERKE - RIEFIE K3 ELSEHMIL
FEHOEEFENM  FHETRELERE
B BEXEOIIIFE -BEEHA—F
BLTT1% - BIEFERERE202060F—F
BREEFAE85% ©
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Misfortune seemed to come in waves. In 2019, the coronavirus
pandemic began its eventual spread around the world, bringing
devastation to the global economy. In the coming years, Hong Kong's
economy cannot be expected to recover wholly through foreign
investment. However, the considerable fiscal reserves accumulated
by the HKSAR Government could be deployed productively during
this challenging period, investing in infrastructure and public
facilities construction to boost the overall economy and create jobs
by invigorating the construction industry. These new facilities will
also help improve people’s living environment and facilitate future

development of Hong Kong.

There are nearly 500,000 registered construction workers in the
industry, most of whom are of grassroot origins. Political power-grabs
will only bring increased misery and suffering to these people.

I am grateful to all Council Members, Committee and Task
Force Members, CIC staff colleagues for their contributions and
collaborations in supporting the CIC's ongoing endeavours and would
also like to extend my special thanks to the Development Bureau, all
staff in different works departments and the Hong Kong construction
industry for their trust and support which continually motivate us to

reach for a higher level of professional excellence.

CHAN Ka-kui
Chairman, Construction Industry Council

April 2020

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE
TRFE

—IR AT IR XA o 20195 AL T iR E = 5
AR ER IR - BT EE R KR » &
REBEF  BRKEHIARE R H MR
RETHER - FERRBNZFRK - 21
TRAMERER  EERRAERFH - Lifa

AIREEWER - RHARE - UBEXTY
EEKE flERF TANSTRREL

BRE REEAREREHREBIGMS -

BEXAZROOBREM IR - Ko —E
ETR -BAEFY REBZARXNAERERE

++

E o

HERHZENE  ZZBERENEER
T ARRALHN  —EEDHEEZTEN
T EMBEHBERE - SETHEBFIAR
EMBBREXANGEINE  BRMAX
Shigttg 7 o

BR =X 5
BEXZEIRE

20205 4H

L]

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 iiﬁ/ 29



= EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR’S REPORI

MITRE®RS

Unifying Strength to Create a Better Future ®EHE HAIRXK

2019 was a year of challenges and opportunities for Hong Kong's 2019 2 BB R EX mk Sk 8 —
construction industry. Together, we embraced a new wave of global 4 @ BEMT€E% @ 2HAIFHHRAREX
scientific and technological innovation while facing unprecedented MIE MK - BEE XS (HSMEATERR
levels of social unrest. As the industry’s most passionate advocate, the HIEEE BREFREARNTEEH EIE
Construction Industry Council (CIC) has spared no effort in mobilising  B)TT¥ S5 - T EE%2.0) 2HEAS
industry stakeholders in driving innovation in order to establish FREX¥MIWLE BEEEZ -4AEN
Construction 2.0. By enhancing site safety, construction quality, N#HEFH G E—FHEHTENRELTFE
productivity and competitiveness, it is our goal to steer the industry ZE G BX—HAEENELEHE AL E -
into a new age of long term sustainable development and build an

international city unrivalled in quality, yet still feels like home.

N
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Innovative Technology, Leading the Way
Forward

Hong Kong's infrastructure development has been globally recognised,
but it still faces a number of challenges such as an ageing workforce
As a
construction industry needs to continue seizing upon opportunities

and mounting construction costs. result, Hong Kong's
presented by emerging scientific and technological innovations. To
accelerate the modernisation of the construction industry, we need to
capitalise on innovative technologies such as 5G, artificial intelligence
and loT systems to facilitate the automation and digitalisation of the

construction industry and uncover new opportunities.

As one of the key driving forces of development within Hong Kong's
construction industry, the Construction Industry Council committed
tremendous resources and organised multiple initiatives and events
to accelerate the adoption of innovative technologies in 2019. One
of which was the first mega-scale construction industry exhibition
in Hong Kong, the Construction Innovation Expo 2019 (CIExpo)
held in December of last year. The CIExpo brought together local
and international industry professionals and showcased advanced
"Offsite
Construction”, “Robotics and Automation”, “Digital Solutions” and

construction technologies in four major categories,
“Advanced Technologies and Materials”. The four-day expo successfully
provided a knowledge sharing and networking platform for the
industry. CIExpo attracted over 228 exhibitors from 15 countries and
regions, as well as 23,800 total visitors during a time of social unrest
and demonstrated the industry’s determination to explore and pursue

the latest advances in construction technology.

During the expo, the Construction Industry Council held the CIC
Construction Innovation Award Presentation Ceremony along with
several international conferences to bring together innovative thinkers
and increase Hong Kong’s understanding and competitiveness on
the global stage. Over 40 local and overseas experts, academics,
government officials and entrepreneurs were on hand to share
their knowledge and practical experience in “Building Information
Modelling (BIM)”, “Modular Integrated Construction (MiC)”, “Design
for Manufacture & Assembly (DfMA)” and “Robotics and Automation”.
Meanwhile, the Building Asia Forum analysed existing infrastructure
development as well as future opportunities in various regions around
Asia.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
HITRERS

RIFBE BHEMN

ERERRRNENERERREZORR
BRBEEFBEEAHEPHADZERBZERR
SHEhE - Bt EEZEXERBIER
BEREIFT S - AMRITEN T RER -
BIFT BRI RERMEB 2R BEESG - AL
BRELRYBEERAXMEABERZ 8%
BEENEBEREGLER  RERTRX
RABEERKSE -

ERESREXBRRNEHE  ZE2RA
REER - & B IRHEB) BT BHE - 722019
FrRERERRZENRIRIAFENKREEE o
FER019FNAEREBHEARA EEZE
BRE - ROEEAFBESI(AIFE):
R T AR RSN EERZERTER
TEES BRIEEAEZE] [BEKR
fb) T s s (b e [ 50 5005 A R D
AEFHRE  RSKINAERREHE—@E
MBRXREEAELRENTS - REAEXAE]
BeRTHE FTELEHEZE - BNHR
51 7228 KR B15ME B R L [@ &) 2 B i &
H1 - HiR23,800HLBARX  TOBERER
BERERER S RBREIFHRL

7 0E BB MBI ET B M A F U - I 1R A B R
HEN BEeTABehBRTREEER
TEMBRERERZIERE S % - B 40
UAMREINER - BEF  WEFREXANE
¥R EEIEZEFESERIBIM) - [HES
B2 A (MIC) ~ [H B 2 | (Design for
Manufacture Assembly, DfMA) Kz [# i A E2
B ZRIFRMNBEXNBMERLS
WHREIEEMNBENZTEF  BIFEMT
A [ ) BB R s o
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’'S REPORT
HITRERS

Promoting New Technologies, Diversifying
Development

As the implementation partner of the HK$1 Billion Construction
Innovation and Technology Fund (CITF), the Construction Industry
Council received 1,073 applications, with a total of 753 approved
applications in 2019. This resulted in HK$160 million being distributed
within the construction industry with the hope of encouraging wider
adoption of emerging technology and nurturing of talent.

To grasp the enormous development potential provided by new
technologies, the Construction Industry Council used the fund to
encourage the use of BIM software and hardware. This was done
along with the introduction of the Building Information Modelling
Certification and Accreditation Scheme, and publishing standards such
as the BIM Standards for Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing and the
BIM Standards for Underground Utilities. We also built the CIC BIM
Space in Q2 of 2019 which boasts a total area of over 6,000ft?, and
acts as both a BIM technology learning space and training centre.
The Construction Industry Council also organised the first ever CIC
BIM Competition in 2019 for both the tertiary education sector and
the construction industry to further facilitate the adoption of BIM
technology.

Introducing innovative technology and advanced construction methods
can help the industry create a safer and more reliable working
environment. MiC and DfMA are both cutting edge technologies
that can drastically improve existing construction environment and
overall productivity. In March 2019, the Construction Industry Council
established the DfMA Alliance to facilitate co-operation between off-
site manufacturers by organising seminars, site visits and establishing
new guidelines. In September, the Construction Industry Council
jointly organised a 3-day Executive Programme with the Building and
Construction Authority (BCA) of Singapore where delegates were
invited to visit local construction sites and they were able to learn
how MiC was applied. In addition, arrangements were made for
government departments and industry delegates to visit the Mainland,
Germany, and the United Kingdom to promote knowledge exchange
with experts from abroad. The Construction Industry Council also
worked with various government departments to establish Guidelines
on the Statutory Requirements for MiC Projects to enhance awareness

and benefits of MiC to industry stakeholders.
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In addition, the Construction Innovation and Technology Application
Centre (CITAC) launched a new website and i-Club in 2019 to promote
new innovations in construction. In addition, CITAC revamped its
roster of exhibits to showcase the latest advanced technologies from
around the world, and organised a series of discussion forums. In
May 2019, the Construction Industry Council signed a Memorandum
of Understanding (MoU) with the Hong Kong Science and Technology
Parks Corporation, with the Chief Executive acting as witness, to jointly
promote the adoption of construction robotics and automation as well
as to uncover innovative new advances in technology.

Developing Talent, Active Transformation

Outstanding construction industry practitioners are integral to the
development of Hong Kong's construction industry. In 2019, the
CIC launched the “Construction Industry Council Approved Technical
Talents Training Programmes”, aimed at encouraging graduates from
the Hong Kong Institute of Construction (HKIC) to sign apprenticeship
contracts in order to encourage long-term employment. Subsidies will
also be offered to apprentices to support their continual education,
with the aim of improving their career prospects.

Guided by the motto, “To Dedicate ® To Excel”, the Hong Kong Institute
of Construction is committed to training a professional and dedicated
construction workforce. In 2019, we launched a number of new
programmes, including the “Certificate in Leak Detection on Water
Mains”, the “Foundation Certificate in Vacant Flat Refurbishment
for Housing Department”, the “Professional Certificate for Building
Information Modelling (BIM) Manager” and the “Certificate in Modular
Integrated Construction (MiC) for Foremen”. In order to respond to the
demand for electrical and mechanical technician training, the HKIC also
offered a new Certificate in Electrical Installation, and will continue to
develop similar training programmes to groom more professionals for
the industry.
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The Hong Kong Institute of Construction also engaged the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
to conduct programme assessments. By the end of 2019, seven
programmes, including five streams within the full time Diploma
in Construction and two part-time safety supervision programmes,
obtained QF Level 3 recognition. To further improve the overall
direction and effectiveness of its courses, the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction planned to develop full-time courses (one and two years)
in 2019 and established both a development blueprint and roadmap
for 2020-2022. In addition, the School of Professional Development
in Construction also established several development goals for the
future, including enhancing both BIM and MiC training to align with
industry development trends.

Facing the challenges of an ageing workforce and labour shortages,
the Construction Industry Council has in recent years focused on
promoting professionalism among construction practitioners in order
to attract younger talent into the industry. In August 2019, the
Construction Industry Council sent four graduates from the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction to participate in the WorldSkills Competition
held in Kazan, Russia. Before setting out, contestants were provided
with one year of rigorous training to further enhance their skills.
Through a mixture of thought exchange and competing with the very
best on an international stage, the contestants from Hong Kong were
not only able to broaden their horizons, but also acted as industry
role models and showcased the strength of Hong Kong's young
practitioners to the world.

Excellence and Safety, Sustainable
Development

In 2019, the Construction Industry Council established the “Task
Force on Construction Industry Site Supervision” which comprises
representatives from both within the industry and government
departments. Their task was to jointly review current site supervision
and quality control processes at major structural construction projects
and to propose improvements. The Construction Industry Council
subsequently held a “Conference on Informatisation” with leading
local and overseas enterprises discussing how to best optimise site
supervision using digital technologies. This multi-pronged approach
ensures that the Construction Industry Council helps establish a sound
professional model in site supervision.
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For the eighth consecutive year, the Construction Industry Council and
the Development Bureau co-organised “Construction Safety Week”
With a
focus on working at height, the event encouraged the industry to

in June 2019 under the theme of “Innovation in Safety”.

utilise innovative technologies and to work together to create a “Zero
Accident” environment. During the event, the Construction Industry
Council organised a safety themed video contest focusing on various
themes such as working at height, lifting, machinery operation and
working in confined spaces. The rationale behind the event was to
improve construction practitioners’ safety awareness. The Construction
Industry Council also distributed working at height training kits utilising
VR technology as well as a Work-at-Height Safety Handbook to nearly
100 sites. In February 2019, the Construction Industry Council also
set up Hong Kong’s first “Safety Experience Training Centre”, which
employs advanced training equipment to highlight some of the most
common accidents that take place in the construction industry. The
aim of which was to further enhance safety awareness among industry

stakeholders.

In Hong Kong'’s Climate Action Plan 2030+, the Government pledged
-30% by 2030.
to support Hong Kong's carbon reduction target, the Construction

to reduce absolute carbon emissions 20% In order

Industry Council launched the “CIC Carbon Assessment Tool” in
November 2019 to measure carbon emissions from construction
materials and processes based on data collected from around the
industry. This initiative is aimed at improving the performance
and efficiency of sustainability-focused engineering projects, and
encouraging the construction industry towards contributing to Hong
Kong's carbon reduction goals. Over 150 construction sites have
already adopted this tool. In addition, the Construction Industry
“CIC Green Product Certification”

November 2019, which will be operated by the Hong Kong Green

Council launched the scheme in
Building Council and provides a certification platform for construction
products and materials. To obtain this certification, factors such as
carbon footprint, environmental management system, efficiency,
performance, human toxicity, resource consumption and ecosystem

impact will all be considered.
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Industry Supervision and Management
Enhancement

The Subcontractor Registration Scheme, which was implemented in
Hong Kong over 10 years ago reached a new milestone in 2019.
The Construction Industry Council set up the “Registered Specialist
Trade Contractors Scheme” in April 2019 to enhance the regulation
of subcontractors and to ensure their minimum standards in the
managerial, financial and technical capabilities. Seven designated
trades were identified for pilot programmes under this scheme,
including reinforcement bar fixing, concreting formwork, erection of
concrete precast components, concreting, curtain wall, demolition and
scaffolding. The core elements required for registration are safety,
management, job experience, project management and finance. At
present, a number of government departments and public bodies,
including the Works Department under the Development Bureau, the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and MTR Corporation Limited now
require the use of registered specialist trade contractors in construction
contracts.

Way Forward

As one of the key pillar industries for Hong Kong’s economic growth
and long-term sustainable growth, the construction industry faces
unprecedented challenges with the global outbreak of COVID-19
in 2020. The ongoing epidemic has disrupted capital and supply
chains resulting in delays in construction work, underemployment
or unemployment, etc. More than 500,000 registered construction
workers in Hong Kong have been impacted by the outbreak, and it
is expected that levy income will be significantly reduced.
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Nevertheless, as a strong proponent of the construction industry, the
Construction Industry Council is committed to fighting the coronavirus
epidemic, overcoming difficult times to lead the way forward towards
a sustainable future. The CIC hopes to promote new policies and
initiatives in the following eight key areas to realise its vision for the

future:
1. Industrialisation;
2. Embracing Construction Innovations and New Technologies;

3. Construction Industry Sports and Volunteering Programme;

4. CIC Approved Technical Talents Training Programme;

5. Hong Kong Institute of Construction Repositioning;

6. Construction Digitalisation;

7. Long-term Employment of Construction Workers; and

8. Safety Design for Building Construction and Maintenance

At this point, | wish to thank my CIC colleagues, government
bureaux and departments involved, members of the industry and
the construction community as a whole for actively supporting the
development of the construction industry. The Construction Industry
Council will continue to encourage the industry to put its best foot

forward, and work with all stakeholders to promote the sustainable
development of the construction industry towards a brighter future.

Ir Albert CHENG
Executive Director

April 2020
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BREZES

About the Construction Industry Council EHEEXES

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed in 2007 under the ZE#EEZERBE(EEZRSKINEBL
Construction Industry Council Ordinance (Cap. 587). The CIC consists 155587 %) F 2007 37 » B — iz £ & K 24
of a chairman and 24 members representing various sectors of the ZKB4MK  KERARRERSHRBIHA
industry including employers, professionals, academics, contractors, =+ @ BEEE - BHE AL - BF - AiER -
workers, independent persons and Government officials. TA BLATHBFEE -

The main functions of the CIC are to forge consensus on long-term EEMNEEHEERERENRRESER
strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations to the ¥ RERLH PMBTNMBEENTE
Government, provide professional training and registration services, M HAFF - IR E = M MRS - WiEA
and serve as a communication channel between the Government and HFHEZEHEEXRCEMNTIZEBEE -
the construction industry.

Please visit www.cic.hk for further details.
IR EHAEZEHEEEEZENER » B2 Ewww.cic.hk °
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ERES

Vision and Mission FES R{FEd

Vision To drive for unity and excellence of the construction industry of Hong Kong
J—?EE BHEEEEE BRaRE

Mission To strengthen the sustainability of the construction industry in Hong Kong by

'fiﬁ providing a communications platform, striving for continuous improvement,
increasing awareness of health and safety, as well as improving skills development.
AMBRERREXNITRHBERRRE—EABEREYS BRERERZZ
B BAREER  ARTEHNE -

Corporqte Forging ahead towards a new era of the construction industry, the CIC

s"qfegy is committed to work with the Government and industry stakeholders in

#%1‘%%&“ fﬂ% implementing a large variety of initiatives; to promote the application of
innovative technologies, to improve occupational health and safety and to
enhance our construction training and skills succession.
HHRZEXBRENHLT BERNEBAREERSOEBEIEE BT
EENERUEERMBENERNER NERERRIZE  RELE
EENEINTEEERFE
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BERES
CIC Functions (up to 31 December 2019) Z e (B E20195128318)
Under Section 5 of the Construction Industry RIB(REXZSHRO)ESR &S

Council Ordinance, the CIC has the following BB THImBEE:
functions:

to advise and make recommendations to the Government on
strategic matters, major policies and legislative proposals, that
may affect or are connected with the construction industry, and
on matters of concern to the construction industry;

to reflect to the Government the construction industry’s needs
and aspirations;

to elevate the quality and competitiveness of the construction
industry by promoting the ongoing development and
improvement of the industry;

to uphold professionalism and integrity within the construction
industry by promoting self-regulation, formulating codes of
conduct and enforcing such codes;

to improve the performance of persons connected with the
construction industry through establishing or administering
registration schemes or rating schemes;

to advance the skills of personnel in the construction industry
through planning, promotion, supervision, provision or
coordination of training courses or programmes;

to encourage research activities and the use of innovative
techniques and to establish or promote the establishment of
standards for the construction industry;

to promote good practices in the construction industry in
relation to dispute resolution, environmental protection,
multi-layer subcontracting, occupational safety and health,
procurement methods, project management and supervision,
sustainable construction and other areas conducive to improving
construction quality;
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

to enhance the cohesiveness of the construction industry by
promoting harmonious labour relations and the observance
of statutory requirements relating to employment, and by
facilitating communication among various sectors of the

industry;

to serve as a resource centre for the sharing of knowledge and
experience within the construction industry;

to assess improvements made by the construction industry
through the compilation of performance indicators;

to make recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy
imposed under this Ordinance;

to conduct or finance educational, publicity, research or
other programmes relating to occupational safety and health,
environmental protection or sustainable development in the

construction industry; and

to perform any other functions relevant to the construction
industry, including those functions conferred or imposed on it by
or under this Ordinance, the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 583) or any other enactment.

Under Section 6 of the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance, the supplementary functions
of the CIC are:

1.

to provide training courses for the construction industry;

to establish and maintain industrial training centres for the
construction industry;

to assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in
the placement of persons who have completed training courses
provided for the construction industry; and

to assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any
kind of work involving or in connection with the construction
industry, to conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award
certificates of attendance or competence, and to establish the
standards to be achieved in respect of any such work.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.
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AND TS5 COMMITTEES
RENEETEEZES

Executive Committee
BITEES

Committee on Construction Safety
BEREEERES

Committee on Environment

REEEZSS

Committee on Construction Procurement
BERBEEEZES

Committee on Productivity
tENEEZEE

Committee on Building Information Modelling
BEECEEREELRES

Committee on Registered Specialist Trade Contractors Scheme
HEMEFITEAERHEEEEES

Objections Board
Construction ARRHSHEES
IndUS'ITy Audit Committee

Council BUEEZES
BiEXSRE

Management Committee on Construction Innovation & Technology Fund
BEFRAFRARESERESS

Construction Industry Training Board
BiEXIREES

Construction Workers Registration Board
BEXTAZIMEES

Construction Industry Sports & Volunteering Programme Committee
BEXEHREIITEEES

Others
Hith

Zero Carbon Building
ZhH R

Construction Innovation and Technology Application Centre

REXANRBHREA B
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THE COUNCIL AND ITS COMMITTEES

Task Force on Work Safety of Repair, Maintenance, Alterations and Additions (RMAA) Sites
#15 - RE  RERNBIMZIHEZZEERNE

Task Force on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft
FrEBETENT L R2EE /M

Task Force on Safety of Lorry-mounted Cranes
EBEXEERTFER2EH A

Task Force on Safety of Bamboo Scaffolds

THRTIER2EE N

Task Force on Truss-out Bamboo Scaffolds

BEXMETFEEE/E

Task Force on Reviewing the Safety Responsibility and Rules of Key Stakeholders
FERHEREHEEIRARER

Sub-committee on Safety Training

REFINMAEESR

Sub-committee on Safety Technical Issues

ZERMERNMEES

Sub-committee on Safety Promotion

RERFENMIEES

Task Force on Strategy for Management and Reduction of Construction and Demolition Waste in Hong Kong
BERED B BEENFHENRKESE M

Carbon Assessment Tool Working Group

BREPE TE TN

Task Force on the Selection of Contractors

EUREMEE

Task Force on Repair, Maintenance, Alterations and Additions (RMAA) Procurement
#IE - RE - ERNERBES

Task Force on Reasonable Construction Period

AEITHEE/E

Working Group for Flat Inspection

BETHEIE

Task Force on BIM Standards (Phase 2)
BERESEREE(E-HERIE

Task Force on BIM Training

BRESIBEEIEE

Task Force on BIM Specifications and Agreement
BRECEERRMRERHAEE M

BIM Vetting Sub-Committee

BRECEEETIREZEES

Manpower Development Vetting Sub-Committee
ANBRIEPMEES

MiC Vetting Sub-Committee

AEARBREATE MEES

ACT Vetting Sub-Committee

AR ERK TR NEES

Hong Kong Institute of Construction Management Board
EREEEREREESR

Sub-committee on Trade Testing

I8AHANMIEESR

Sub-committee on Construction Industry Council Approved Technical Talents Training Programmes and
Collaborative Training Schemes
REXREFRUTBRMEEI G ERAEEIFENEREEE

Task Force on Construction Industry Council Manpower Forecasting Model Updating and Enhancement Study
BEANFUEREHNREARRES DA

Construction Workers Qualifications Board

BEXETAEETEEZESR

Construction Workers Review Board

BEXTABRZESS

Sub-committee on Data Analysis

HESMPEERER

Sub-committee on Registration Matters

EMEBIEEES

Sub-committee on Workers Development and Welfare
IRERREANMZEES

Task Force on Investment

RESHPE

Task Force on Construction Industry Site Supervision Practice
BEETESEE N

Buildmg Information Modellmg Certification and Accreditation Board
BREFEEBRUTRAREES

Building Information Modelling Appeal Board
BEERESEREFZESS

Joint Working Group on Modular Integrated Construction (MiC)
[EFAR] BEEHSTHE

Steering Committee for the Consultancy Study on Improving Time, Cost and Quality Performance of
the Hong Kong Construction Industr

FEREHE [RATBREXTH EZZK&“Ei}ﬁJ BEZEE

Steering Committee for the Consultancy Study on Improving Environmental Performance of
the Hong Koy Construction Industrxx

Gk BRREXRRRE] BER88

Task Force on Research

MEREEE

Task Force on Short-term Labour Supply

EES T HHEEE/E

Focus Group on Projected Construction Expenditure
BEIRBRAISENE

Event & Promotion Panel

EEREETENE

Facility Improvement Panel

RIiERA T/EDNAE

=%
ﬁﬁéé

HETEEZES

Course Advisory Panel on Construction Supervisor

BIEHETRERERA

Course Advisory Panel on Quantity Measurement

ITHEBEREEBAE

Course Advisory Panel on Computer-aided
Software for Construction Projects

RETREMESBBRFREERA

Course Advisory Panel on Bricklaying,
Plastering & Tiling
ﬁmﬁ%ﬂﬁkﬁﬁﬂ

Course Advisory Panel on Joinery

HARTENRZRAEA

Course Advisory Panel on Construction Formwork

EERART RZRAA

Course Advisory Panel on Painting,
Decorating & Sign-writing
AR B R R TZ R R AR

Course Advisory Panel on Plumbing & Pipe-fitting
JKHER B R RZRERIA

Course Advisory Panel on Marble-laying

EREMRREERA

Course Advisory Panel on Metal Works

EWMIERRERBA

Course Advisory Panel on Construction Plant
Maintenance & Repairs

AR A SR R IZRER AR

Course Advisory Panel on Electrical Installation

ERKBENREREBA

Course Advisory Panel on Construction
Scaffolding Works
REMRRRERERA

Course Advisory Panel on Bar-bending & Fixing

SRR SRR R AR

Course Advisory Panel on Plant Operation

B IRMERL R IZRER AR

Course Advisory Panel on Site Surveying and
Surveying & Setting-out
BETHNENREFETIESNREBEBE

Course Advisory Panel on Civil Engineering

T ARTIRMREZREBA

Course Advisory Panel on Concreting

RE T RRERERA

DEVB-CIC Joint Working Group for the
Consultancy Study on Improving Time,
Cost and Quality Performance of the
Hong Kong Construction Industry
AR [RABBREXTH AR
HEXRE| #ER -BREXASHSTHEIE

DEVB-CIC Joint Working Group for the
Consultancy Study on Improving Environmental
Performance of the Hong Kong

Construction Industry

BERME [RASBREERRRER]

BRER -REXIEHSTHEIE

as at 31 December 2019
HE2019F 124318
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CIC Sustainability Framework
BEXBRTUKERRER




1 Resources

The CIC makes the best use of resources by improving energy
efficiency, conserving resources, and reducing waste through
employing smart, innovative technology, renewable energy and the
formulation of guidelines.

BEFXRZSABRMERE B ZLBERIR  XHFIHEBES - &
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MEMBERSHIP

OF CIC

mE K E

Chairman, Construction Industry Council
BEXEEXE
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
BREE &

Chairperson, Executive Committee
HITEEBEXRE

D B
Ir CHAN Chi-chiu Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai
RAEE TR EEE HIRIREM
Chairperson, Committee on Registered Convenor, Objections Board
Specialist Trade Contractors Scheme EERUEREESEREA
AMEMTEREBHESEZESER
Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong B Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan
BB & TR K&
Chairperson, Committee on Environment
B Mr. CHAN Pat-kan BEEEEESEE
BRIR 54
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o
7 r. In-suen, a r In-wing, e 1 S. au-King, Am
Ar. FUNG Yi Ad Sr LAM Kin-wing, Eddi Ms. LEE Sau-king, Amy
BEHE BEM HEEsE BEAm EFBR L
Chairperson, Committee on Building Information
Modelling
BECEEREEZERIRE
P sr HO Kwok-kwan, Thomas Ir LAM Sai-hung Ir LEUNG Wing-kee, Ricky
17 2 £9 I = B it T2 RKE T
(Member since 1 February 2020) Permanent Secretary for Development (Works) (Member since 1 Februa;y 2220)
(202052 B 1R B BRARE) BRBEARER(TH) (2020F2R1HER BB R E)
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Mr. LI Tat-wai
FEREE
(Member since 1 February 2020)
(2020F2R1EERAZERE)
Ir Prof. LO Hong-kam
BRI BIEIEM
Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth
MEE TEM

Chairperson, Construction Workers
Registration Board

BEXTAZMEESERE

Ir PAN Shujie
BEIAR TREM

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick
BH—ABELIREM
Chairperson, Committee on

Construction Safety
BERZERZEEIR

B Ir POON Lock-kee, Rocky
EYE TEM
Chairperson, Committee on

Construction Procurement

RERBERZEEER

Mr. WONG Hin-wing, Simon
EERELE
Chairperson, Audit Committee

EREAZREIR
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Ir WONG Kin-wai, Ken Ms. YEUNG Kwong-yim, Connie Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
EHREE TREM B 7t RBE TEM
Representing Permanent Secretary for Chairperson, Committee on Productivity
Transport and Housing (Housing) EENERZEEERE
RREGREEZAERER(ER)
Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza Ir YU Sai-yen Mr. YU Tak-cheung
BEEWM L R T REHE KL
. . Director of Buildings
Chairperson, Construction Industry EXEEE
Training Board (Succeeded Dr. CHEUNG Tin-cheung
BEXIRZEEXRE w.e.f 28.10.2019)

(2019 10A28A B FARRFFE L)
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Retired CIC Members Chairpersons of Management Boards
HIEREEZENE EEEESTE
Retired on 31 January 2020
20201 A31B HE
D

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu Mr. CHOI Wun-hing, Donald Prof. LEE Chack-fan

ABfE k& BRE KE FEF BIR

Chairperson, Construction Innovation and Chairperson, Hong Kong Institute of

Ir KWAN King-fai, Alex Technology Application Centre Construction Management Board

BEiE TR Management Board EREEEREEZEEXE

BEXANRNRERTLEEZEEER

Sr Dr. LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
FEENE BB

. . HEBAN K&
Former Chairperson, Committee on .
Construction Procurement Chairperson, ZCB Management Board

RERBERERRNIR FRRAUWERARER

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul
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Corporate Governance Framework

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) firmly believes that
good corporate governance is fundamental to ensuring proper
management and smooth operation of the organisation in the
interests of all stakeholders and the public. The CIC establishes
the corporate governance framework with reference to the
following:

° Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report issued by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited:;

o Corporate Governance for Public Bodies — A Basic
framework published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants; and

o Good Governance and Internal Control in Public
Organisations issued by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption.

In pursuing the Vision and Mission, the CIC has its corporate
governance framework and system supported by Five Pillars:

EERERRE

1. BXERER

REXZEBEQRERUINEEE
AREESMEREMIBEEFENESL
MEREFDERARONGE - FF
2ENTENRZTIRBOHCEER

% -

s EAERSGNEEMBRABEM
MCEREIBTRADR(EEE R
HE)

e FEREGHMAGEMA(REH
BEEERNERNREE) R

s BRHBAZEMA(RERBOR
HERNAEREIED) -

RERZENERRED  FEOL
EERERMESHABEEOMAE

Standard of Behaviour
TAZER

Organisation Structure and Business Processes
AERBREBRE

Risk Management and Controls
[ B B R B

Reporting and Communications
ER N EE

Corporate Citizenship
TEIR
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The Council and Statutory Boards
Council Chairman (since 1 February 2016): Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

The Council Chairman and 24 Members are appointed by the
Secretary for Development, generally for two years each time.
They may serve the CIC continuously for up to six years. The
composition of the Council is governed by Sections 9 to 12 and
Schedule 2 of the Construction Industry Council Ordinance (Cap.
587) (CICO), as follows:

° not more than 3 public officers;
o not more than 4 persons who represent employers;
o not more than 4 persons who represent professionals or

consultants;

o not more than 5 persons who represent contractors,
subcontractors, materials suppliers or equipment suppliers;

o not more than 2 persons who represent training institutes,
academic or research institutions;

o not more than 3 persons from trade unions representing
construction workers; and

o not more than 3 persons the Secretary for Development
thinks fit to be a Member.

(Please refer to page 67 for the Council Members’ Meeting
Attendance in 2019.)

Besides the Council, there are five statutory Boards established
under the CICO and the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 583) (CWRO), namely

(1) Objections Board;

(2)  Construction Industry Training Board,;

(3)  Construction Workers Registration Board;

(4)  Construction Workers Qualifications Board; and

(5)  Construction Workers Review Board.

ZEhEEZES
HeTFE(E2065E2 A8  BRRE &4
ZeIRENUUKERBEREBRBEE
T BETH-—BRAEMFE  TFER
ERENREZSEETNBBNE -
SZEMARRRE(GEEEZSIKEM)
(565878)F9E 1215 - WM R2FTR
EoRBWT:

. THBBE3ZABAE

. TBBIZERARE:

. THBEIZEZEATHERR
*

s THESHEARB NEW M
HEtrmRBERERRE:

o TEBB2RFZINHAE - BMWRHT
THEAR:

o TEBIEHNREEEXETANR
TERE K

. THRE3RERBRAERA/AE
MEMAL -

(BRE7TEEHMFEEKEB2019F N &
HE e o)

BRimes ARERAEARKEGEEEZ
SEPIRCEEE T AEMIEHIE
S83EBE)VKYMETEEZES D2
(1 EERYEEFZES:

2) BEEIVIREZES:

B) BREXTAGTMEES:

(4) BEEIANERIEBEZES K
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(Please refer to pages 70 and 71 for the Members’ Meeting
Attendance of the Construction Industry Training Board and the
Construction Workers Registration Board in 2019.)

In overseeing the performance of the CIC, pursuant to Section
15 of the CICO, the Council has established a number of Boards
and Committees to assist the CIC in executing and managing
its various core businesses and functions. Upon such division
of responsibilities, the Council concentrates its attention on
strategic issues, direction planning, policy making, corporate
governance and the long-term development of the industry.

Executive Committee, Boards and
Committees

In addition to the respective Boards and Committees,
subcommittees, task forces and working groups are also formed
to assist the relevant Boards/Committees to focus on specific
issues and carry out respective tasks for better performance of
the CIC’'s functions.

To ensure connectivity and to strengthen communication, the
role of Board/Committee Chairpersons are, as far as possible,
taken up by Council Members, while the subcommittees/task
forces/working groups should be chaired by the respective
board/committee members, unless special expertise is required
from outside parties. Council Members may indicate their
preference to join normally up to three committees at the
commencement of their term.
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Executive Committee

Chairperson: Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
(Tenure as Chairperson: since 1 February 2018)

The Executive Committee was formed in 2018 following a
streamlining and transformation from the previous Committee
on Administration and Finance, to allow a more efficient
decision-making process in the delivery of the CIC's services and
initiatives. The Council Chairman is also the Chairperson of the
Executive Committee. For close connectivity and institutional
coordination, the Chairpersons of the main Boards and
Committees, who are also Council Members, sit on the Executive

Committee.

All major approvals are, in principle, vested in the Council,
which meets bi-monthly in the even-number months, while the
Executive Committee is also a bi-monthly forum in the odd-
number months to discuss policies and new initiatives and
brainstorm on important issues. On pressing occasions, the
Executive Committee is empowered to act on behalf of the
Council to approve urgent matters for operational needs, except
those specifically reserved for the Council under the CICO. The
approved items shall be reported to the Council in a timely
manner.

(Please refer to page 72 for the membership lists and Terms of
Reference of Boards and Committees under the CIC.)
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2019 Achievements 4,

We share with you the CIC's 2019 accomplishments on corporate
governance, as follows:

4.1 Public Recognition

The CIC's effort and commitment to good corporate
governance earned its first Corporate Governance
Award “Commendation on Corporate Governance
Improvements” under the category of “Self-nomination
Awards” of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA). We are honoured to
be the only winner under this Category in 2019. The
HKICPA’s Corporate Governance Awards are recognised
as an important benchmark of Hong Kong's corporate
governance standards and best practices. The CIC regards
the commendation as a significant achievement and
accolade.

In the assessment, the quality of our overall corporate
governance framework, the recent initiatives and
developments in improving the standards, and strong
features of voluntary disclosures and practices were
acknowledged. The judges applauded the CIC's efforts in
strengthening membership diversity and representation,
ensuring connectivity between the Council and Boards/
Committees, enhancing more efficient decision-making,
and improving transparency through publication of
informative booklets. Details of the CIC's good corporate
governance practices are covered in the ensuing
paragraphs of this chapter.

Ir Albert CHENG, Executive Director (1%t right) received

TEREBRSE
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4.2 Enhancement of Newly-implemented
Initiatives

To reinforce a high standard of corporate governance, the CIC
launched a revamp on the existing practices and introduced
a number of new initiatives on many fronts of corporate
governance in 2018. They included the establishment
of Audit Committee, enhancement of the structure and
appointment mechanism of Boards/Committees, streamlining
of paper approval system, etc. In 2019, the CIC spent a great
deal of effort on consolidating the changes, refining the
operations and strengthening the systems.

4.3 Crisis Management

Hong Kong underwent some months of unprecedented
social unrest in 2019. The crisis affected the emotions
and living of many local citizens. Being an organisation
of good corporate governance, the CIC tried very hard
to maintain normal operation and provide services to the
industry, while protecting the safety of its staff members.
An Operation Task Force was timely set up to gauge,
manage and mitigate the risks arising from the societal
events and to implement responsive measures.

5. Appointment of Members

The appointment mechanism of the five Industry Development
Committees was revamped in 2018. Under the revamped
mechanism, on selecting and appointing new members to
the Committees, the CIC will invite the relevant construction
industry-related bodies to nominate candidates in order of
priority. The candidates’ suitability will be assessed by their
expertise, previous contributions to the industry and/or the CIC
task forces, etc., their willingness to serve, and the needs of the
CIC. The Council Chairman will discuss nominations with the
individual Committee Chairpersons.
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By mirroring the Council and capping Committees’ members BETEEEEEZEENHEKIER
to a maximum of 17, with a maximum four-year tenure, [MNAEE ] E)ZEP?QE%??\T\IE%@W% '
the revamp helps to improve the public perception of the ANERGIBIIA - FHEENE - 518
Committees to be more representative of the industry, allowing HERKEBATEEZEEHREKME
an integration of views from representative sectors while REZRZMERE - WAMPIEE
forbidding monopolisation by particular institutions. The new B AB 48 S Bk B MY BR HT o T B Sk B Bk
mechanism encourages members to advise from a macro, instead BRETRAGHLERERBIER #
of a sectoral, perspective. They bring to the CIC a wide range MeesAEe T RELEEMNERET
of experience and a variety of independent perspectives. In Mo RTERZ T BRREEE
addition to sufficient diversity, wider representation and better ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁﬂ/—\ T ERERS T REEY
integration, it also exemplifies cross sector collaboration. 5 &0 0 15 o

Composition of the Council =84 X Composition of the Five Industry Development Committees

EETH*BREEZSENMAER

in the form of a “mini Council”

Employers B Public Officers B A B R [

. Secretary for Employers A A Public Officers ABEAE

Professionals and Development
Consultants thinks fit CIC Chai

= airman
iﬁf%)\i& ﬁg%ﬁj% Professionals and thinks fit
EARS REBEHAL Consultants HerERA

E AT KBRS
Committee

BAAL

Council Chairman

Contractors Trade Unions Contractors i .
o person Trade Unions
IR and BIE HEE and 16 Members BTE
24 Members BEEZEETRR
BEEER Training 165K 8
. Subcontractors Training Institutes
Subcontractors 244K B Institutes pone SR
58 Hlgigis

[ ]

Materials and
Equipment Suppliers
MR R R R R S R

Materials and
Equipment Suppliers
MEHLRE R I SR LIRS
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6. Code of Conduct and Disclosure of
Interests

A high level of integrity is essential to the organisation’s
continued success and long-term advancement. The CIC is
strongly committed to the principles of fairness, honesty,
integrity and impartiality in conducting its business and
discharging its functions.

6.1 For Members

Sections 6 and 7 under Schedule 3 and Section 8 under
Schedule 4 of the CICO lay down the provisions on
disclosure of interests of members and keeping of a
relevant register. CIC's Code of Conduct for Members (the
Code) sets out the standards of conduct and behaviour,
while the Policy on Disclosure of Interests of Members (the
Policy) spells out the declaration and handling of conflicts
of interests for observance by Members. To uphold public
trust and protect public interests, upon acceptance of
appointment, Members of Council/Boards/Committees are
required to accept and abide by the Code and the Policy,
and declare any conflicts of interests in compliance with
the stipulated requirements.
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6.2 For Staff

For staff, the Code of Conduct (the Code) is in place
to set out the basic standard of conduct and other
relevant policies which all CIC staff are expected to
understand and observe in the daily discharge of their
duties. The Code, which is reviewed periodically to ensure
compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.
201) and the best practices promulgated by the ICAC,
covers the areas of acceptance of advantages, conflicts
of interests, use of organisation’s assets and resources,
confidentiality of information, outside work, workplace
behaviour, etc. All new employees are required to sign
their acknowledgement of the Code. In addition, the
CIC management staff are required to declare in writing
annually their compliance with this Code.

Council Proceedings

Apart from the regulatory requirements on meeting procedures

of the Council and the statutory Boards, the CIC Boards and

Committees at large adopt the following key features on meeting

procedures as a good practice of corporate governance:

Bi-monthly meetings are held by the Council and the
Executive Committee, while Boards and Committees
meet at least quarterly (except for the Objections
Board, Construction Workers Qualifications Board and
Construction Workers Review Board, which hold meetings
as and when necessary).

The meeting schedule is set at the beginning of each year
to allow Members to reserve time to attend.

Notice of Meeting is issued to Members at least 14
calendar days before the meeting. Members are provided
with the Agenda and Papers at least 7 calendar days
before the meeting is convened.

The draft Agenda is prepared by the responsible Secretariat
and approved by the Council Chairman/Board/Committee
Chairperson.
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Workflow and Timeline for Issuance of Meeting Documents

THEHEXTRRE REE R
[

14 Calendar Days before the Meeting
SR ARMAN4AER

Notice of Meeting E:&E %
7 Calendar Days before the Meeting
BB

X

Agenda and Papers ZE N EiE

The Meeting BRI 2%

Within 7 Calendar Days after the Meeting
RRIERN

Draft Minutes to Chairman/Subject Director
ERLHER)IRTER AEXE

Within 21 Calendar Days after the Meeting
gHE21BEANRN

Draft Minutes E&4Cix (HEfR)

[ CIC Council: Bilingual #& : FREE |

Comment within 7 Calendar Days

TBEHRNIREHER

At the Next Meeting /X & %5

Confirm Minutes BSR40 8%
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The Executive Director and senior management attend
the meetings to present the papers and provide further
information and explanations on the issues where
appropriate. However, they have no voting rights and
may not influence the decision-making process. The
management of the CIC, under the leadership of the
Executive Director, will follow up on the execution of
the strategic directions set by the Members and report
progress from time to time.

Members are required to sign the attendance sheet at
the meeting. Meeting attendance and proceedings are
documented in the Minutes recorded by the relevant
Secretariat. The Minutes and discussion points of each
agenda item are circulated to Members no later than 21
calendar days after the meeting for comment. The Minutes
are reviewed and approved in the subsequent meeting.

Minutes of the meetings (except those of the Executive
Committee, Audit Committee, Objections Board and the
closed-door sessions of meetings of the Council) are
posted to the CIC website for reference by the public.

Members are required to declare conflicts of interests,
if any, before the commencement of discussion of the
related agenda item(s) in question. These declarations and
the actions taken, such as a Member abstaining from
participating in the discussion of the concerned item(s),
will be recorded in the Minutes.

Members have access to expertise to help discharge their
responsibilities upon obtaining proper approval where
appropriate e.g. consultants will be invited to present and
explain their recommendations in separate sessions before
the Council meeting to allow more time for questions and
detailed discussions.

The quorum required by the Council meetings and
statutory Boards meetings is specified in the CICO and
CWRO respectively.
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On meeting procedures, a “Starred Discussion Paper” system
was introduced in 2018 to facilitate prompt handling of
approval matters and efficient processing of discussion papers
at meetings. For routine and straightforward matters presented
in a Starred Discussion Paper, approval by Members is assumed,
unless Members choose to raise comments and/or enquiries
during meeting. Since the implementation of the new system,
meetings have been conducted in a smoother, more timely and

effective manner.
Transparency and Accountability

An Orientation programme will be arranged for the newly
appointed Council Members each year to bolster their sense of
belonging and to familiarise them with the history, background,
development, organisation structure, governance framework and
major initiatives of the CIC. A bilingual booklet /nformation for
Council Members containing the relevant details such as Code
of Conduct, CIC's statutory functions, Council operations, etc.
is prepared for reference by new Members.

As a statutory body being financed mainly by construction
industry levy, the CIC has a mission to operate in an open,
transparent and accountable environment so as to provide
stakeholders, the industry and the public with services that are
of value for money. To enhance communication with employees
and improve transparency to the public, the CIC has published
the Corporate Governance Manual and an annual C/IC Major
Work Plans in addition to the delivery of Annual Report. These
three bilingual publications are accessible at the CIC website.

Furthermore, the meeting schedules and minutes of the Council
(open-door sessions only), Boards and Committees are uploaded
to the CIC website for public access. Members of the public
can attend the open-door sessions of the Council meetings.
The CIC considers transparency fundamental to good corporate
governance and has taken an open approach to disclosing
information.
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Communication enhances public trust. In parallel with
information disclosure, the CIC is receptive to external views
and professional opinions. Apart from the engagement of a
large number of Council/Boards/Committees Members, the CIC
also actively engages industry stakeholders and members of the
public on business development, initiatives implementation and
many other industry-related matters such as quality issues, safety
policy, service review, innovation and technology application, etc.
through consultations and industry seminars. There are various
engagement programmes which foster formal and informal
communications between the CIC and stakeholders.

Sustainability and Corporate Responsibility

The CIC recognises sustainability and corporate responsibility are
elemental to maintaining its leading as well as contributing role
to the construction industry. Sustainability focuses on balancing
the current and future needs of people, while corporate
responsibility is about operating the organisation and running
the businesses properly and responsibly in all aspects.

Internally, the CIC management has introduced a number of
initiatives on corporate responsibility e.g. a paperless office,
green procurement, safety library, etc. To construction workers,
the CIC has made constant efforts to support them and cater
for their welfare. For instance, the in-town service centre has
recently been refurbished and upgraded. Besides, specific
programmes like Construction Workers Festival are organised
for construction workers. The CIC also awards scholarships to
their family members. All these practices are for the good of
construction workers.

Externally, under the CIC Construction Industry Sports and
Volunteering Programme, an array of different sports and
volunteering services are organised for industry practitioners in
order to help the needy and to promote a healthy and caring
lifestyle. As regards ethnic minorities in Hong Kong, the CIC
collaborates with the Government and the ethnic minority
communities to provide training and enhance recruitment
opportunities for the group. In building a sustainable future for
Hong Kong, the CIC is dedicated to operating and growing in
an environmentally and socially responsible manner.

% B RE

BEAAIMEAREE - ERARERA
28 BETMEREKIIIRABHME
XER 328 ZEGNEEZEEFE
ERMABRET TRRH2EZS
B ZeRBOEGERAE MR
EMRABAL2ERMOER B84
TERER EHESZ ULEMERE
EXEMERNEERE PIMEREE R
B mTelF  BMEEREE -
BEREABEENHBRETHMEER S
@’?Qﬁxﬁ%ITEﬁ&#Eﬁ
MEBRBE SREZE THED -

AFEMREESE

AHERRNBETEEXEERAGH
%Eﬁ%*%'bﬁmi%%?EL
EEREZEENHPABRETAR
ROTE - AIRFBERER FEHAM
BATEARRNFR - METEERETA
REBMESEHHRBIURERE
BEEMHTAEE HHEELER -

BASTHE ZEEEBERT XY

MREXRBEENFEREE  BRER
ETEME  RRKEE Z2EHEE

EEF - HEEEXTA BETHX
FMBEMPIRREAL - BMARTBH

REZRTHER-—EATERREFL &
BEXRTAGIEENEMRE

ZEY AMBPRTARKNES - filn
BE T RED - IRA A {FT O RN AR 3 82
B9 HEFI2EREZERXRTIAN

== &5
=

O H ZEEBREFXREDIRE
TEEETEEREEL %ﬁ%%ﬁ%
XERHREEENREEDNS

%%%@'%%ﬁﬁx%ﬁﬁZ%
hESHEFEREFENLEERN - ZER
FEENIHES  ZEBRBFMD
BHRBLE  BAOR MR EEIM
BEHRE BERNEAFEERE

BIEE FRTHBHEMMEE AT
EBHEA ATERY—ETREN
K o

& (&

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Ei&/ 63



1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

®

XERWSE

10. Risk Management and Internal Controls

1.

The CIC is operating in an increasingly complex and challenging
environment. To uphold the governance standard and control
internal deficiencies or malpractice, the CIC management
attaches a great deal of importance to the functions of
internal audit. The independence of the work of Internal
Audit Department was substantiated by the establishment of
the Audit Committee in 2018, which comprises independent
members including Council Members, government representative
and external professionals. The Audit Committee oversees
the internal and external audit work and advises the CIC on
corporate governance, including risk management and internal
control systems.

Further details of the work of the Internal Audit Department
and its achievements in 2019 are set out in the chapter of
Operational Review of this Annual Report.

Grade Management and Talent
Development

To contribute to a high level of corporate governance, the
CIC implements an internal initiative of Grade Management.
The Corporate Secretariat Department formulates a series of
Grade Management policies and guidelines such as meeting
procedures, language requirements, paper preparation,
documentation system as well as Council Members overseas
visits policy for corporate-wide observance. Secretariat staff are
expected to abide by the various requirements in performing
their duties. Besides, forms and templates are prepared and
accessible at the CIC intranet for use by the secretariat officers.
With concerted efforts of all parties, the governance standard
and secretarial service quality of the CIC have been improved.

10. R E

1.

Management staff participated in Corporate

Governance training
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As one of the measures to complement the introduction of
Grade Management, in-house training on relevant topics and
interactive writing skills sessions are organised at regular intervals
for staff who have job-related needs. Moreover, management
training on the subject and latest developments of corporate
governance is also arranged for senior staff members. Such
kind of talent-development programmes helps to elevate the
employees’ competency and professionalism and uplift the
corporate image of the CIC in the long run.

CIC’s Internal Stakeholders

Human capital is the most valuable asset of the CIC, and staff
dedication is the key to our success. We appreciate diversity,
integration and collaboration, along with professionalism and
specialisation. Below is the categorisation of CIC employees:

12.

Total number of full-time employees

EHEERAY

As at
31 December 2019
H =2019F12A31H

Female %%

As at
31 December 2018
H =2018F12 A31H

Female %%

Male 5%

%%
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The CIC is an equal opportunities employer committed to
providing equal and fair opportunities in relation to all relevant
human resources matters. Its employees come from diverse
backgrounds, such as trade skills, civil engineering, mechanical
engineering, surveying and architecture, legal, arbitration and
mediation, finance and accounting, information technology,
marketing and media,

curriculum development, safety and

quality assurance, and environmental expertise.

The remuneration policy and mechanism of the CIC mainly makes
reference to the master pay scale of the Government and the
private market. Staff remuneration is reviewed annually, taking
into account the general economy, market trend and the financial
situation of the organisation. The annual pay adjustment is also
based on staff performance. The appraisal process for every staff
member is clearly recorded in the Performance Management and
Development System with multiple steps of check and balance
to ensure fairness in staff performance assessment.

With regard to corporate culture, the Committee on Corporate
Culture Building headed by the Executive Director shoulders the
mission and responsibilities of developing and implementing
a stronger corporate culture with the core values of “Caring,
Integrated, Committed” for the CIC.
significance of staff ethics and integrity, we also treasure a

In emphasising the

harmonious working environment, the well-being of staff, staff
engagement and motivation, and talent development in line with
our organisational growth.
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Council Members’ Meeting Attendance in

2019

Council Meetings

3

>

Chairman x &

1

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

Members & &

O 00 N O U1 b W N

—
—_

Ir CHAN Chi-chiu

Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong

Mr. CHAN Pat-kan

Dr. CHEUNG Tin-cheung*

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai
Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan
Ar. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada
Ir KWAN King-fai, Alex

Sr Dr. LAI Yuk-fai, Stephen
Sr LAM Kin-wing, Eddie

Ir LAM Sai-hung

Ms. LEE Sau-king, Amy
Ir Prof. LO Hong-kam
Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth

Ir PAN Shujie

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick
Ir POON Lock-kee, Rocky

Mr. WONG Hin-wing, Simon

Ir WONG Kin-wai, Ken

Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza

Ms. YEUNG Kwong-yim, Connie

Ir YU Sai-yen

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo

Mr. YU Tak-cheung”"

retired w.e.f. 28.10.2019
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BREEE
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St R T2 AD
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one meeting represented by Mr. LEUNG Kin-man, Stephen (Housing
Department) and another meeting represented by Mr. LAU Fu-kwok,
Rudolf (Housing Department)

succeeded Dr. CHEUNG Tin-cheung w.e.f. 28.10.2019
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Attendance
6/6
Attendance
5/6
6/6
6/6
5/5
6/6
4/6
4/6
6/6
3/6
4/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
4/6
6/6
5/6
5/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
6/6
6/6>>
4/6
5/6
171
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Council Members’ Meeting Attendance in

2019

Committees’ Meetings

Council Members

Com-EXE

Com-BIM

Com-CPT

K E2019F 2%

Com-PRO Com-RSC
HEMEMTE

REBHE

EED

HEHE

1 Mr. CHAN Ka-kui
R 5 EE

2 Ir CHAN Chi-chiu
BB IRA

3 Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong
BRI LA

4 Mr. CHAN Pat-kan
B VIR 5% 4

5 Dr. CHEUNG Tin-cheung
RAHRL

6 Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu
EB B K E

7 Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai
BEBEYHEIREM

8 Mr. FU Chin-shing, lvan
HEAEE

9 Ar. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada
RHEEERM

10 Ir KWAN King-fai, Alex
HEBIRM

11 Sr Dr. LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
R E LA 2

12 Sr LAM Kin-wing, Eddie
MR 58 = A

13 Ir LAM Sai-hung
Mt T2 R

14 Ms. LEE Sau-king, Amy
FABERL

4/4
retired on
28.10.2019
F12019F
10H28H

e HE

17
w.ef.
01.11.2019
#H2019%F
1NA1E
4/5

4/5

5/5
one meeting
attended
by rep.

Ef—-Rg# BARRLE

itk durl

2/4

1/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

all meetings

attended
by reps.

1/4
in attendance

%

4/4

4/4
all meetings
attended
by reps.
AR KRR

EEZEE

- - - 5/5
4/4 = - _
4/4 - - -
- 3/3 - -

retired on

28.10.2019

F12019F

10A28H

BEE
3/4 - 3/4 -
- = 3/4 =
- 2/4 1/4 -
- - 4/4 -
- - 4/4 -
4/4 4/4 4/4 -
all meetings  all meetings  all meetings
attended attended attended
by reps. by a rep. by reps.
pRELRE BRXEE BRRLE

4/4 - - -
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20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

Council Members

#ERE

Ir Prof. LO Hong-kam
ERBHEIIM

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth
BB Ti2A0

Ir PAN Shujie
BB A TIRA

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick
Y-ABLI IR

Ir POON Lock-kee, Rocky
BREETIRA

Mr. WONG Hin-wing, Simon
BEREREE

Ir WONG Kin-wai, Ken
ERETRM

Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza
BEEWRXL

Ms. YEUNG Kwong-yim,
Connie

Brszt

Ir YU Sai-yen
AR TIZE

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
RBBEIRM

Mr. YU Tak-cheung
RERELE

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan
BRIEARTIRZA

5/5

23
w.ef
01.07.2019
120195
7818
Ak E
4/5

2/2
retired on
01.07.2019

20195
7R1H
e EHE

Com-BIM Com-CPT
RERE
EEZEg

- 3/4

- 4/4
all meetings
attended
by a rep.
ARRER
2/4
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Com-ENV

2/4 3/4
4/4 -
- 0/4
4/4 -
1/4 4/4
all meetings
attended
by a rep.
ARRER
3/4

Com-PRO

EEN
ERZEg

4/4

2/4

4/4

4/4

4/4
all meetings
attended
by a rep.
BARLE

4/4

&

SEBRBE

Com-RSC
EMEMTE
REBGHE
E5ZE8

Com-AUD

E#
EXRZEE

- 4/4

- 4/4
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Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) ZEXIIRZESRE

Members’ Meeting Attendance in 2019 2019F = &% i fE 42 8%
Attendance
Chairpersons = J& i fE A2 8
1 Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan? BR{E 7N TR2 A 3/3
2 Ir YU Sai-yen> SR TR A~ 5/6
Attendance
Members % & i JE A2 8%
Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong BeR &Il 5 5 4 6/6
4 Mr. CHAN Pat-kan BR AR % & 6/6
5  Sr CHAU Bing-che, Henry R Z R £ B 5/6
6 Ms. CHENG Sau-kuen BB+ 6/6
7 Ir Dr. CHI Wuh-jian, Joseph B 7% R AE T T2 A 3/6
8 Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu BB Bk & 6/6
9  Sr FOK Ching-yin, Amelia = 5 TR = D 5/6
10 Miss LAM Kam-ping, Joey" MER T £ 4/4
11 Mr. CHAU Siu-hei, Francis® BARExLEe 2/2
12 Sr LAM Kin-wing, Eddie** PR 58 = R+ 3/3
13 Mr. LAM Oi-ki, Peter EE k& 6/6
14 Mr. MAK Ping-sang” B ERE 11
15 Mr. WAN Chi-ping, Fenton™ A 5/5
16 Mr. WONG Chiu-lung, Dennis mHRLEE 6/6
17 Ir WONG Hon-ping, Edmond HEFIREA 4/6
# retired w.e.f. 01.07.2019 # 2019718 & HE
> succeeded Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan w.ef. 01.07.2019 > H2019F7A1B B EEREARIEA
KAER
. retired in November 2019 " 2019411 A H1T
e succeeded Miss LAM Kam-ping, Joey in November 2019 e R2019F N A EMEFL L - KAKE
++  joined CITB w.ef. 01.07.2019 o H2019F7AMEHBRIMAREEEIREZS

=

retired in February 2019 and one meeting represented by Mr. WAN ~ ~ 201952 A - WHBEFLEEREK

Chi-ping, Fenton HE— IR g%
succeeded Mr. MAK Ping-sang in February 2019 . MR019F2 A AEFELE - KAEKE
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Construction Workers Registration Board REXTAGZMZESHE
(CWRB) Members’ Meeting Attendance 2019F = &% i fE 42 8%
in 2019
Attendance
Chairperson ¥ /& i & A2 8%
1 Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth AR 18 T A2 M 4/4
Attendance
Members X & i FE 4D B
2 Ir AU YEUNG Hoi-pang B [5 % M5 T 42 Ab 4/4
3 Mr. CHAN Ka-lai PRER A % & 4/4
4 Ir Dr. CHAN Ka-lung, Raymond PRREEIE T T2 AM 2/4
5  Dr. CHAN Kwok-hong, Raymond* FeR [ R 18 1/3
6  Mr. CHAN Kwok-yin, Andrew PR BB O A 3/4
7 Mr. CHAN Pat-kan R \AR % & 4/4
8 Mr. CHAN Shut-ho, Franki PR 3l 375 o A 3/4
9  Sr DY Wai-fung, Peter B R = A/D 3/4
10 Mr. KWOK Tung-keung, Simon FERE K & 4/4
11 Miss LAM Kam-ping, Joey MERF Lzt 4/4>
12 Ir LEUNG Wai-ho, Alfred REZTIZAD 4/4
13 Ir LIU Sing-pang, Simon B T2 3/4
14 Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy SREAESE 2/4
15 Dr. PAN Wej EHRIE T+ 2/4
16 Ir POON Kwok-ying, Raymond BB I T2 AP 4/4"
17 Mr. TSANG Ting-fat B AE 4/4
18 Mr. WONG Ping \mELE 3/4
19 Ar. Franklin YU RIS IEER 4/4
# joined CWRB w.e.f. 22.03.2019 # 20193 H22R M A BEE T A

Z8%

> one meeting represented by Mr. YAU Hau-yin and another meeting > BALZEBELERREAE—XRE8& UK
represented by Dr. WONG Chin-kiu, Janet HERIBLIRELEFES —AE#

>

one meeting represented by Ir WONG Lap-chi " BEVYEIERMARERE —XEg®E
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AND BOARDS, AND TERMS OF REFERENCE
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Executive Committee

Membership
Chairperson
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

Members
Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan

(Retired w.e.f. 1 July 2019)

Dr. CHEUNG Tin-cheung

(Retired w.e.f. 28 October 2019)

Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan

(Membership since 1 November 2019)

Ar. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada

Sr Dr. LAl Yuk-fei, Stephen

Ir LAM Sai-hung

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth

Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick
Ir YU Sai-yen

(Membership since 1 July 2019)

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo

Terms of Reference

1.

To advise CIC on staff matters, including recruitment, salary and
other conditions of service;

To advise CIC on general administration matters, including
accommodation and facilities;

To examine and endorse annual estimates of incomes and
expenditure and programme of activities prepared by the
Management for the approval of the Council;

To deliberate on policy formulation and emerging issues and
to formulate initiatives that are of interest to the construction
industry;

To formulate strategic direction and provide guidance on the
long-term development of the CIC; and

To approve urgent and time-sensitive matters on behalf of the
Council except those specifically reserved for the Council under
the Construction Industry Council Ordinance and to report to
the Council on such approval given.
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Committee on Construction Safety (Com-CSY)

The Com-CSY strives to promote initiatives and measures to foster
a positive safety culture in the construction industry. It reviews and
monitors safety performance and encourages the adoption of new
technology to improve safety. To enhance the mechanism of safety
management, the Com-CSY also provides guidelines on preventive
measures in relation to construction safety.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir Dr. PANG Yat-bond, Derrick = CIC Member

Members

Mr. Collin CHAN — Airport Authority Hong Kong

Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong — CIC Member

Mr. CHAN Pat-kan — CIC Member

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu = CIC Member

Mr. IP Ka-sing, Dennis = MTR Corporation Limited

Ms. LEE Sau-king — CIC Member

Ir Dr. LIU Yuk-shing — The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Ir Prof. LO Hong-kam — CIC Member

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth — CIC Member

Sr WONG Chi-kin, Jesse — The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

Mr. WONG Kwok-keung — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors

Mr. Rex WONG — Hong Kong Construction Association

Mr. WU Wai-hung — Labour Department

Ir YU Sai-yen — CIC Member

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works) —

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing) —

CIC Member
CIC Member

Terms of Reference
1. To review and monitor safety performance of the construction
industry;

2. To review and enhance the mechanism of safety management;

3.  To encourage the adoption of new technology and innovative
ideas in construction safety;

4.  To conduct research on enhancing safety performance of the
construction industry;

5. To identify and recommend measures for improving safety
performance to CIC;

6. To promote the adoption of the improvement measures by the
construction industry; and

7. To nurture a safety culture for the construction industry.
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Committee on Environment (Com-ENV)

The Com-ENV aims to promote good practices and sustainable
development and to enhance innovation in environmental protection
of the construction industry. Academic and industry research is
undertaken to provide relevant standards and guidelines for industry

stakeholders.

Membership

Chairperson

Mr. FU Chin-shing, lvan — CIC Member

Members

Dr. CHAN Ka-lung — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and

Mechanical Contractors

Sr HO Kwan-hon, Alan — The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

Ir Prof. LO Hong-kam — CIC Member

Ir PAN Shujie = CIC Member

Ir POON Ching-su, Lisa — MTR Corporation Limited
Mr. POON Shun-wing, Eric = Urban Renewal Authority

Mr. TONG Yuen-king, Amen — Airport Authority Hong Kong

Mr. WONG Chun-main, Andrew — Hospital Authority

Mr. WONG Ping — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees

General Union

Mr. WU Siu-kei — Hong Kong Construction Materials Association
Permanent Secretary for Development (Works) — CIC Member
Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing) — CIC Member

Terms of Reference
1.  To promote environmental protection and
development in the construction industry;

2. To promote good practices in relation to sustainable design and

construction;
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3.  To encourage the adoption of new technology and innovative

ideas in environment protection and sustainable development in
the construction industry;

4.  To conduct research for enhancing environmental protection and
sustainable development in the construction industry; and
5. To advise on the environmental strategy for development of

construction standards.
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Committee on Construction Procurement
(Com-CPT)

The Com-CPT believes that steady and sufficient project rollout will
reduce the so-called “feast and famine” volatility long associated
with the construction market. It strives to enable contractors and
consultants to better plan and allocate their resources in the tough
business environment. With better market efficiency, an overall
reduction in construction cost will be achieved.

Membership
Chairperson
Sr Dr. LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen — CIC Member

Members

Mr. AU Koon-shan, Raymond — MTR Corporation Limited

Ir CHAN Chi-chiu = CIC Member

Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong — CIC Member

Mr. CHOW Ping-wai — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’
General Union

Ms. CHUNG Fung-hing, Rita — Hong Kong Housing Society

Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan — CIC Member (Chairperson of Working Group
for Flat Inspection)

Mr. HUNG Cheung-shew, Danny — Hong Kong Construction Association

Sr KWOK Ngok-chung, Dick — Chairperson of Task Force on RMAA
Procurement

Mr. LEUNG Wing-kee, Ricky — Chairperson of Task Force on Reasonable
Construction Period

Ir POON Lok-kee, Rocky — CIC Member

Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza = CIC Member

Mr. WONG Hin-wing, Simon — CIC Member

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works) —

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing) —

CIC Member
CIC Member

Terms of Reference

1. To review current practices on procurement in relation to project
planning, tendering, contract administration and site supervision
and promote good practices to improve the quality and cost
effectiveness in delivery of construction contracts;

2.  To promote good practices relating to dispute resolution;

3.  To encourage the adoption of new technology and innovative
ideas in construction procurement;

4.  To review current arrangements for selection and management
of subcontractors and recommend improvements; and

5.  To promote the use of written subcontracts.

RERBIERZBEGMAE BRENMRANT
BREAELARDRERTISMBE—KE

—HHREINMERY  EEZEEH
NieEAZEARBERERKRNDEHRET
EEFARHADEER - EBRATIH M
PREEEBREEXAK -

&
EY
TEIBEELREM - 2EXEEKE

B

BEILEE -BAEHABARAA
REBIIEA - Z2EXFZEXE
et -ZEXFZEXE
BREEE -BEREXRTE

BEREZL -BAEFEHES
FRARSEE - BEXHEKE
(BB T(ENEEF)
LFEkEE -BEEEEDS
FEDBEM - #E - RE - ERME
Tmﬁﬁﬁ,ad\ﬁﬂif
RKERE -AEBIHFERENETRE

ERETREM -Z2EXBENE
BEEMRT-REXZEEKE
EBRRAE-REXZEEKE
ERBPEAWER(I®) - BEXHEENKE
BRlFEERFEIMNER(BE) - 2E&%

HEKE

s E
1. REEXRBEEMNERTASREIRE
IEH%?%'J AR AHMEEMIME

W REBREMNERTN - URES
T‘EE’&L% # ) = AR AN RR AR

2. HEAMBRFIZHNREIERT:

3. BEFRANBERBBRKHZE
AREIFESMRERZF

4. BARTHENEERSEENTH
WiIRHAREZZ

5. HEEXEARMEEOEBEELN

%%

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁ/ 75



@ =

MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES AND BOARDS, AND TERMS OF REFERENCE

EEZEENZEERNERBEEE

Committee on Productivity (Com-PRO)

The Com-PRO aims to elevate construction productivity by improving
the construction process, advocating industrialisation and encouraging
research and development. Innovative construction approaches
including robotics and automation, offsite construction, and adoption
of novel technologies and materials are explored and promoted to the
industry.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo — CIC Member

Members

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu — CIC Member

Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai — CIC Member

Mr. FU Chin-shing, lvan — CIC Member

Ir KWAN King-fai, Alex — CIC Member

Mr. KWOK Tung-keung, Simon — The Hong Kong General Building
Contractors Association

Sr LAM Kin-wing, Eddie — CIC Member

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth — CIC Member

Ir PAN Shujie — CIC Member

Ir POON Lock-kee, Rocky — CIC Member

Ir SO Kwok-leung, Derek — Hip Hing Construction Co. Ltd

Ir WAN Wai-man, Raymond — The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Ir WONG Kin-wai, Ken = CIC Member

Mr. YEUNG Kai-yu, Franki — Hong Kong Housing Society

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works) — CIC Member

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing) — CIC Member

Terms of Reference
1.  To compile and update key performance indicators related to
the construction industry;

2. To review current productivity level in the construction industry
by introducing measurable indicators for different work trades;

3.  To encourage the adoption of new technology and innovative
ideas to elevate construction productivity;

4.  To conduct research on benchmarking or setting standards for
the productivity of construction process;

5.  To provide statistics in relation to construction productivity;

6.  To recommend strategies to the Council and Boards/Committees
for enhancing the industry’s productivity and competitiveness; and

7. To co-ordinate and promote research and development for
elevating construction productivity.
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Committee on Building Information Modelling
(Com-BIM)

The Com-BIM aims to formulate strategies for market transformation,
and to promote and facilitate the application of BIM and its related
technologies across the construction industry. It also supports the
implementation of related training programmes with a view to
establishing the CIC as a Centre of Excellence for BIM through setting
standards and common practices for BIM.

Membership (Composition to be streamlined in
2020)

Chairperson

Ar. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada — CIC Member

CIC Members

Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai — CIC Member

Mr. FU Chin-shing, lvan — CIC Member

Sr Dr. LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen = CIC Member

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth — CIC Member

Ir YU Sai-yen — CIC Member

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works) — CIC Member

Co-opted Members

Mr. CHAN Ching-leung, Andrew — Hong Kong General Building
Contractors Association

Mr. CHAN Sai-chun, Edmund — Hong Kong Housing Authority

Mr. CHAN Siu-bun, Ben — Lands Department

Prof. CHENG Chin-pang, Jack — The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology

Ms. CHENG Ka-lai, Karen — Architectural Services Department

Sr CHOI Shing-lam, Sunny — The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

Ir CHONG Kwok-ming, Daniel — The Hong Kong Federation of
Electrical and Mechanical Contractors

Dr. CHOW Ka-ming, Benny — Hong Kong Green Building Council

Ir Clement CHUNG — The Association of Consulting Engineers of
Hong Kong

Ir FU Po-wa, Calvin — The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Mr. FUNG Siu-man — The Chinese University of Hong Kong

Mr. HUNG Kwok-chuen, Terrie — Highways Department

Mr. Alvin LAl — Hospital Authority

Mr. LAM Tat-ming, Terence — Civil Engineering and Development
Department

Mr. Bruce LAW — The Association of Architectural Practices

Prof. LI Heng — The Hong Kong Polytechnic University

Mr. LIU Kam-ming, Silas — Planning Department

Ir Dr. LIU Sai-lok, Eric = Vocational Training Council
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Mr. LO Yu-bun, Ben — Water Supplies Department

Sr Miranda LUl — Chartered Institution of Civil Engineering Surveyors
(Hong Kong Region)

Ir NG Chun-keung — Hong Kong Institute of Utilities Specialist

Ir NG Tim-yeung, Sammy — bSHK

Mr. POON Shun-wing, Eric — Urban Renewal Authority
Prof. Steve ROWLINSON — The University of Hong Kong

BEREE-TREER
EEHHE -BFEKRE

Mr. Andrew SIMPSON — West Kowloon Cultural District Authority RLELEE-BAAXEERERRB
Ms. SO Ching — The Hong Kong Institute of Architects BT -AEREEMEE

Mr. B

illy WONG — Hong Kong Construction Association

Ir Kelvin WONG - Airport Authority Hong Kong

Mr. K

evin WONG — Hong Kong Institute of Building Information

Modelling

Mr. WONG Sek-cheung — Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
Mr. WONG Sui-kan — Drainage Services Department

Mr. Y

EUNG Kai-yu, Franki — Hong Kong Housing Society

Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice — Buildings Department

research & development for “BIM”.
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Terms of Reference HEsHE

1. To formulate strategies for market transformation, promote the 1. HIFJEEEMNMISER - HEERE
use and facilitate the application of BIM, digital construction, HESERBOAEREEERARZESRE
and its related technologies in construction industry (hereinafter BER SBEREUREBAERES
known as “BIM"); R (THEIZEFERER]D

2. To promote cross-disciplinary collaboration and adoption of 2. HEEZRNAIERRINERBRES
“BIM” in project delivery processes including planning and HAZEEEER] 2EREREE
design, construction, facility and asset management; AP BEREEER:

3. To develop CIC as a Centre of Excellence for “BIM” in the form 3. LA RIE4R &AM [Z %5 B E#
of a central hub and of the open sharing platform of “BIM” AETENRS - BEEERAEE
with specific focus on the following: EEEENEMPL  WERERT

%) & 2 -
e To develop standards, specifications and common practices . BRBEFRRBEE KK
for BIM; — 1B
e To develop and promote good practices in both BIM . ERAEEREFSEREREK
management and BIM operation; BEEEERBIENRTIEER
FaW
e To build capacity, develop and operate BIM Development s BV ERIKZBEREFERE
Ladder, BIM Training Ladder, BIM Professional Registration BREBS  REEEREFIIR
and Accreditation; and their relating training programs and B EEEEEBRIETMER
implementation programs; and BRI N R EMERE I B K&
AT & &
4.  To identify areas which require further investigation, promote 4. HRIEZiE— S AL - HEPE LS
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Committee on Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme (Com-RSTCS)

The Com-RSTCS's key role is to oversee, discuss, review and monitor
the operation of the registration and regulatory actions of Registered
Specialist Trade Contractors Scheme. It also sets the strategic direction
and formulates policies in managing businesses relating to the
implementation, adoption and promotion of the Scheme.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir CHAN Chi-chiu = CIC Member

Members

Mr. CHEUNG Tat-fai, Kenneth — Hong Kong Construction
Sub-Contractors Association

Mr. CHEUNG Yuk-kei — Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors
Association

Ir HUNG Cheung-shew, Danny — Hong Kong Construction Association

Mr. IP Ki-kwan — Construction Site Workers General Union

Ir LEUNG Wing-kee, Ricky — Airport Authority Hong Kong

Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy — The Federation of Hong Kong Electrical
& Mechanical Industries Trade Unions

Ir MAN Kwoon-yin, Kevin — MTR Corporation Limited

Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth — The Real Estate Developers Association of
Hong Kong

Ir SIN Wing-ning, Barry — Hong Kong Construction Association

Ir SHEA Tat-chi, Ringo — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical &
Mechanical Contractors

Mr. WONG Ping — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees
General Union

Mr. YUEN Hung-wai — Hong Kong General Building Contractors
Association
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Terms of Reference

1.

To implement the recommendations of the University of Hong
Kong's Research on “A Roadmap to Enhance the Subcontractor
Management Mechanism in Hong Kong”;

To steer the operations of the Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme and the Subcontractor Registration Scheme
(collectively, the “Scheme”), including but not limited to making
recommendations on scope of trades, registration requirements,
and any enhancements to the Scheme;

To review and approve registration applications of Registered
Specialist Trade Contractors (“RSTCs”) and Registered
Subcontractors (“RSs"”);

To take regulatory actions against RSTCs or RSs violating rules

under the Scheme; and

To promote the adoption of the Scheme by the industry.
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Objections Board

The Objections Board was established under Section 54 to 56 of
the CICO to deal with objections to levy or surcharge raised by the
contractor.

The Board consists of three members of the Council and the Council
may authorise the Objections Board to appoint a subcommittee for the
better performance of the Objections Board'’s function. The Objections
Board is chaired by an academic to avoid the possible conflict of
interest with industry stakeholders.

By virtue of Section 56 of the CICO, the Objections Board has the
power to confirm, cancel or reduce the levy or surcharge.

Membership (all are CIC Members)
Convenor

Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai (since 1 February 2019)
Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun (until 31 January 2019)

Members

Sr. Dr. LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen

Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan (since 1 February 2019)
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert (until 31 January 2019)

Terms of Reference
1. To determine objections to levy and surcharge made under
section 55 of CICO and under section 29 of the CWRO.
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Audit Committee

Formed in 2018, the Audit Committee supervises the work of the
Internal Audit Department and oversees corporate governance,
compliance, financial reporting, internal controls, risk management and

audit matters of the CIC.

Membership
Chairperson
Mr. WONG Hin-wing, Simon — CIC Member

Members

Mr. CHOW Yuen-ming, Paul —
Ms. OR Siu-ngam, Patricia — Gammon Construction Limited
Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza = CIC Member

Dr. WONG Chin-kiu, Janet — Development Bureau

MTR Corporation Limited

Terms of Reference
1. To assist the Council fulfill
overseeing

its corporate governance and
of the CIC (with Member
Organisations), including financial reporting, internal control, risk

responsibilities

management, internal and external audit functions as well as
compliance with policies, regulations and relevant legislations;

2.  To oversee the work of Internal Audit Department, to review
findings and management’s responses to the recommendations
made;

3.  To oversee the external audit process:

on the
audit fees and any

i To make recommendations to the Council
appointment of external auditors,

related matters;

i. To review annual audit report and any matters raised by
external auditors;

4. To approve the engagement of any external consultants to
conduct review if necessary; and

5.  To assist the Council in dealing other relevant issues.
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Management Committee on Construction
Innovation and Technology Fund (CITF)

The Management Committee on CITF oversees the CITF operations.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir CHAN Chi-chiu

Members

Ir Prof. CHUNG Kwok-fai

Ir KWAN King-fai, Alex

A representative from the Development Bureau
Ir CHENG Ting-ning, Albert

Terms of Reference

1.  To formulate and recommend for the Council’s approval, the

operational framework of the Construction Innovation and
Technology Fund (CITF);

2. To ensure the CITF is operated properly and efficiently in
accordance with the approved operational framework;

3.  To report to the Council on the operation of the CITF; and

4.  To decide on all matters relating to the CITF operation as and

when required, subject to the Council’s ultimate decision.
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Construction Industry Training Board (CITB)

Established under Section 29 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, the CITB is responsible for training and trade testing
matters of the construction industry. It provides training courses,

establishes and maintains industrial training centres,

placement issues and administers the relevant assessments, skills
standards establishment, etc. for the construction industry.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir YU Sai-yen

Members

Mr. CHAN Kim-kwong

Mr. CHAN Pat-kan

Sr CHAU Bing-che, Henry

Ms. CHENG Sau-kuen

Ir Dr. CHI Wuh-jian, Joseph

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Sr FOK Ching-yin, Amelia

Sr LAM Kin-wing, Eddie

Mr. LAM Qi-ki, Peter

Mr. WONG Chiu-lung, Dennis

Ir WONG Hon-ping, Edmond

Chief Occupational Safety Officer (System and Support)
Deputy Secretary for Development (Works)1

REXIREES

BEXIRZEER(BEXRZCHRIDE
29fF A BEZEXMNFIMITER
MHEEE - ZESRBEXRHMIIRRE
R FETIRPL - HEHEEARES
B YARNZ  KMKFFHEFSFEHE-

K&
FE
i8R T AR 6D

#E

BRI St 5 £

[ WAV e e
R 2 R £ 6

BHKIg 2+

S TR
BB B e &
=B T B S AD

MREE LR 26
R &
mHRELEE
HEFTRA
BREZ2IT(ZHERTE)
FRBEIMER(ITH)

&4/ CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL £ i % % &



MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES AND BOARDS, AND TERMS OF REFERENCE
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Terms of Reference

1.

To provide training courses for the construction industry;

To establish and maintain industrial training centres for the
construction industry;

To assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in
the placement of persons who have completed training courses
provided for the construction industry;

To assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any
kind of work involving or in connection with the construction
industry, to conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award
certificates of attendance or competence, and to establish the
standards to be achieved in respect of any such work;

To advise on manpower planning and development for
construction personnel at professional, supervisory and

craftsman levels; and

To foster an ethical culture.
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Hong Kong Institute of Construction (HKIC)

Management Board

The Hong Kong Institute of Construction (HKIC) was established as a
company limited by guarantee governed by the Articles of Association
under the Company Ordinance (Cap. 622). The HKIC Management
Board governs the HKIC. It reports and is accountable to the

Construction Industry Training Board.

Membership
Chairperson
Prof. LEE Chack-fan

Members

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

Ir Prof. CHAN Ping-chuen, Albert
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ms. KI Man-fung, Leonie

Ir KWOK Yu-won, Eric

Mr. LAM Qi-ki, Peter

Mr. LI Wing-leung

Mrs. LO LEE Oi-lin

Ir YU Sai-yen

Deputy Secretary for Development (Works)1

Permanent Secretary for Education

Ex Officio
Ir CHENG Ting-ning, Albert
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Terms of Reference

1.

To formulate strategies for the development of HKIC
(the Institute),
developments in the vocational and professional education and

taking into account of industry input and

training (VPET) sector;

To ensure efficient and effective management of the Institute to
realise its vision and mission;

To prepare and submit 3-year Strategic Plan and Annual Plan to
Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) for endorsement on
an annual basis;

To prepare and submit Annual Report to CITB;

To oversee and ensure quality provision of the Institute’s
programmes and services;

To decide on the Institute’s policies and guidelines on
programme planning, development, delivery and review; and
To approve programme proposals, including admission

requirements, programme objectives, intended learning

outcomes, and syllabuses.
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Construction Workers Registration Board
(CWRB)

Established under Section

workers registration services for the construction industry.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth

Members

Ir Dr. CHAN Ka-lung, Raymond

Dr. CHAN Kwok-hong, Raymond

Mr. CHAN Kwok-yin, Andrew

Mr. CHAN Pat-kan

Mr. CHAN Shut-ho, Franki

Sr DY Wai-fung, Peter

Mr. KWOK Tung-keung, Simon

Ir LEUNG Wai-ho, Alfred

Ir LIU Sing-pang, Simon

Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy

Dr. PAN Wei

Mr. TSANG Ting-fat

Mr. WONG Ping

Ar. Franklin YU

Assistant Director/Gas and General Legislation, Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department

Chief Occupational Safety Officer (Operations), Labour Department

Chief Officer/Technical Services, Buildings Department

Deputy Secretary for Development (Works) 1, Development Bureau

Terms of reference
1.  To set the qualification requirements for registration or renewal
of registration;

2. To act on and discharge tasks in regard to the Construction

Workers Registration Ordinance, which include inspection

of construction sites,

registration,

workers registration, maintaining the daily attendance records of

construction sites, and so on; and

3.  To perform and exercise such other functions or powers as are

imposed on it by the Construction Industry Council.

1A of the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance, the CWRB governs and provides quality

conducting construction workers
handling review and appeal cases relating to
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Construction Industry Sports & Volunteering
Programme Committee (Com-CISVP)

The Com-CISVP aims to better steer and promote sports and
volunteering programmes in the construction industry, and to develop

a long-term partnership with key industry stakeholders.

Membership
Chairperson
Mr. CHAN Ka-kui

Vice Chairperson
Ir CHU Yin-lin

Members

Mr. Adam CHAN — Welcome Construction Co. Ltd.

Miss LAM Kam-ping, Joey* — Development Bureau

Mr. Paul LIU — Dragages Hong Kong Ltd.

Mr. David LUl = AECOM

Mr. NGAN Chau-nam - Vibro (H.K

Mr. SO C.K., Cyril — Southa Group

Mr. TAM C.K., Steve — Chun Wo Construction Holdings Company
Limited

Mr. TSANG Ting-fat — Tin Wo Engineering Co., Ltd.

Mr. WONG Ping — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees

.) Limited

General Union
Mr. YAN W.M., Alan — Gammon Construction Ltd.

Terms of Reference

1.  To steer the development of Construction Industry Sports &

Volunteering Programme (CISVP);

2. To promote CISVP to the wider population of the construction

industry;

3.  To encourage setting up company sports clubs and volunteering

teams at company or association; and

4.  To support CISVP events including but not limited to proactive

promotion and participant recruitment.

* retired in November 2019 and succeeded by Dr. WONG Chin-

kiu, Janet
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Investment Task Force

The Investment Task Force advises the CIC on investment-related
matters, such as purchase, asset switching, redemption, etc. It also

oversees the performance of the CIC’s investments.

Membership
Chairperson
Mr. WONG Hin-wing, Simon

Members

Mr. AU Chun-hing, Edward (since 1 July 2019)
Mr. LAW Cheuk-kin, Stephen (until 30 June 2019)
Mr. LIU Chi-lun, Alan

Mr. Kassian POLIN

Mr. PONG Po-lam, Paul (until 30 June 2019)

Mr. TSE Yue-hong, Chris (since 1 July 2019)

Terms of Reference

1. To recommend appropriate investment of surplus funds;

2. To advise CIC on investment-related matters, such as purchase,

asset switching, redemption, etc;

3. To oversee the performance of CIC's investments;

4, To advise and formulate investment strategies for CIC; and

5. To decide whether external managers should be appointed to

manage CIC’s investment portfolio going forward.
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Joint Working Group on Modular Integrated
Construction (MiC)

The Joint Working Group on MiC was set up by the Development
Bureau and the CIC in May 2017 to identify suitable technologies and
practices for MiC, in order to promote, streamline, and widen MiC
adoption in Hong Kong.

Membership
Chairperson
Ir MO Kon-fei, Kenneth — CIC Member

Vice-Chairperson
Mr. KWONG Ka-sing, John — Development Bureau

Members

Mrs. LAM YU Ka-wai, Sylvia — Architectural Services Department
(May 2017 — February 2018)

Ms. HO Wing-yin, Winnie — Architectural Services Department
(March 2018 — present)

Mr. YU Tak-cheung — Buildings Department

Mr. KWAN Ka-sing — Housing Department

Ms. WONG Yeuk-lan, Eliza = CIC Member

Ir Prof. WONG Sze-chun = CIC Member

Secretary (on rotational basis between CIC and DEVB)

Terms of Reference
1.  To identify suitable technologies and practices of Modular
Integrated Construction (MiC) for Hong Kong;

2. To identify critical issues in implementing MiC in Hong Kong and
to formulate relevant measures to tackle the issues;

3.  To establish a roadmap leading to wide adoption of MiC in Hong
Kong;

4.  To promote the adoption of MiC in Hong Kong; and

5. To establish and monitor, task forces for

addressing specific issues.

if appropriate,
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ZCB Management Board

The CIC — Zero Carbon Park (CIC — ZCP, originally named as Zero
Carbon Building (ZCB)) was set up as a company limited by guarantee
governed by the Articles of Association under the Company Ordinance
(Cap. 622). It is governed by a Board of Directors appointed by the
CIC and consists of top green building specialists, engineers and key
stakeholders who steer the development of the CIC — ZCP.

Membership
Chairperson
Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Members

Mr. CHAN Yin-chung, Anthony
Ir CHENG Ting-ning, Albert
Mr. CHOW Lap-man

Sr Dr. LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
Mr. LAl Wing-chun, Martin
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert
Mr. LO Chi-wai, lan

Ms. LO Tak-wah, Eva

Mr. MA Pok-man, Josiah
Mr. MA Wing-kui, William
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
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Construction Innovation and Technology
Application Centre (CITAC) Management
Board

The CITAC Management Board assembles industry expertise to oversee
the CITAC in exploring and identifying innovative technologies from
local and international organisations. It is the governing body on the
operation and the implementation of research activities of the CIC.

Membership
Chairperson
Mr. CHOI Wun-hing, Donald

Members

Ir lan ASKEW

Ir CHENG Ting-ning, Albert

Mr. CHONG Hon-ming, Eric

Ir Wes JONES

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
Ir PAN Shujie

Ir Dr. TSUI Yun-cheong, Ricky

Ir WONG Chi-kwong

Mr. WONG Ka-yu, Oscar

Director of Buildings

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

Terms of Reference

1. To explore and identify innovative techniques and technologies,
both locally and internationally, that are suitable for adoption
in the Hong Kong construction industry for improvement of its
productivity, sustainability and safety;

2. To serve as a knowledge hub by collecting, showcasing
and promulgating the latest local and overseas construction
technologies with a view to promote their implementation and
application;

3. To establish a global research network and serve as a

collaboration platform with a view to encourage interdisciplinary

research activities and collaboration; and

4. To cultivate and nurture a culture within the construction
industry that is receptive and conducive to continuous

innovation.
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MANAGEMENT

EREEAE

niTHE

Ir CHENG Ting-ning, Albert
BEE TREA

Executive Director

Pl |r LEUNG Wai-hung, Alex Fj !r Dr. PANG Pui-loi, Richard
REE TEM BRI EM
Director — Director —
Collaboration & Trade Testing Industry Development
AERIZAMNAE TERRAE

Ir CHU Yin-lin B Ar. HO Kin-wai, Stephen

REFE TEM 2R B

Assistant Director — Assistant Director —

Training, Hong Kong Institute of Industry Development & Estates Office
Construction TEBRRRVEEENEAE

ERBERRBERR - FH

Ir Dr. WONG Kwan-wah, Francis
EEEFLTIREM
Director —

Hong Kong Institute of Construction

EREERRRR

Ms. IP Wai, Cheryl
¥ Wzt
Assistant Director —

Human Resources & Administration
ANBERRITHEEERE

Ms. LEE Oi-yen Ir TANG Siu-sing, Peter

FHER &+ Ik T2

Assistant Director — Assistant Director

Registration & Technology Fund Student & Curriculum Development,

HEMRARESHEARE Hong Kong Institute of Construction
EERERRBERR -
BERRBER
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Principal —

Dr. CHENG Tak-ming, Eric

Kowloon Bay Campus, Hong Kong
Institute of Construction

ERREERAERBRRRR

SENIO

Mr. HO Yau-ho, William Mr. MOK Peng-lam 13
MERx %% ERkEE
Principal Principal —

School of Professional Development in
Construction, Hong Kong Institute of
Construction
ERERERRRETEEBRARR

Sheung Shui Campus, Hong Kong
Institute of Construction (Acting)

EREEBREARRRR(BE)

R MANAGEMENT
BREEANE

o}

Ir YU Shek-hon, Rex
RERE T

Principal —

Kwai Chung Campus, Hong Kong
Institute of Construction

ERREERABRBRR

BRE XL

Senior Manager

Construction Procurement

BERBRRLE

ERiE EE
Senior Manager —
Trade Testing
TEAREREE

Ms. NG Siu-yi, Cindy
RIE L
Senior Manager

Finance (Acting)
MERREE(EE

Mr. CHO Ying-kit, Rocky

Mr. KO Chun-hon, Ivan

23

Mr. TONG Yiu-nam, Thomas
EEmE K&

General Manager

Innovation & Technology

Development

Ms. CHOI Chin-cheung, Lotus
ERH &+

Senior Manager —

Ms. CHOI Ying-wai, Rebecca
BRE Lt

Senior Manager

16/

Mr. HO Kwing-kwong, Alex
S et

Senior Manager

g Information Modelling

Corporate Communications Curriculum Develoy & Quality A e Buildi
HEEASRER Hong Kong Institute of Construction
General Manager FEEEERRABURR

HERESREE

CIC-ZCP (Acting)
BEXTHRAMARLE(BM)

A@L

Mr. LEUNG Siu-tin, Andrew
RPXR FE
Senior Manager

Information Technology

EARBEEREE

Mr. LAl Chi-wai
Senior Manager —

Registration Services

AMEBEREE

Dr. WONG Ming-wah, James
EPHEEL
Senior Manager —

Construction Productivity
BELENRREE

24 25

Ex8
Senior Manager —
Corporate Secretariat
HERERSREE

AMEMERRARE

Ms. Miranda YEAP

BEEEEARRLE

Mr. NAM Cheung-ching, Adrian
E:*E K&
Senior Manager

Internal Audit

REE Rt s

Ms. YUEN Hou-yee, Angela
Fu 158 Z+

26

Senior Manager —
Construction Safety
BEREZRRKEE
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ORGANISATION

CHART
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ir CHENG Ting-ning, Albert

K b
Hong Kong Institute of Construction (HKIC)
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SERISIR

Industry
Development
TR

Building Information Collaboration e EsomeL

; Training Development and
Modelling Scheme = e .

- N ] b Administration
At = BERERTH
Construction (e s T HKIC Administration
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Environment and AR

Sustainability Management
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Curriculum

Modular Integrated
Construction
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Placement
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ORGANISATION CHART
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Registration & Corporate Services
Technology Fund WBE
AMERNRES

Construction Corporate
Innﬁvatlion & g Communications Finance
Technology Fun Rk (e g3
BEXRAFTRBIHES
Construction Workers CIC — Zero Carbon Human Resources
Registration Board — Park and Administration
Secretariat B R TR R ANERRATE
BEETAZMEES
WER
Corporate Safety ;_r:‘:;\r::)&:;ion
Inspection and BER2 ERRE 9y
Enforcement :
KERHE
Specialist Trade Corporate Secretariat Internal Audit
Contractors/ BRI ERE R BB T
Subcontractors
Registration
SFITRAEE, _
S EEEm Estates Office Procurement
MEEE Eod Y

Workers Registration
T A

Centre for Professional Development was renamed as School of Professional Development in Construction since
1 January 2020.
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Talent
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The CIC optimises talent development programme for industry
practitioners through a variety of training courses and trade tests, with
an aim of nurturing a quality professional workforce which is essential
to the sustainable industry development.
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® OPERATIONAL

REVIEW

1. Industry Development
Construction Safety

The Construction Safety Department has been providing
secretarial support to the Committee on Construction Safety
(Com-CSY) to develop and take forward initiatives to foster a
positive safety culture and to provide guidance and training on
safe practices. The Com-CSY and its three sub-committees, viz.
Sub-committee on Safety Promotion, Sub-committee on Safety
Training and Sub-committee on Safety Technical Issues, continue
to carry out work following the consensus strategic direction of
prevention of fatal and serious construction accidents.

Key achievements in 2019

(@)  Strengthened the measures for the prevention of heat
stroke of construction workers by publishing the Guidelines
on Site Safety Measures for Working in Hot Weather
(Version 3).

(b)  Further enhanced the safety of lift works throughout the
occupation stage of a building. The revised Guidelines on
Safety of Lift Shaft Works: Volume 3 — Throughout the
Occupation Stage of Building (Version 2) were released.
Two seminars were held for over 300 attendees.
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CIC Seminar on Safety of Lift Shaft Works — Throughout the

Occupation Stage of Building
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Co-organised by the CIC and the Development Bureau
(DEVB), the eighth consecutive Construction Safety Week
(CSW) with the theme of “Innovation in Safety” was
held, focusing on safety of working at height. Events
included Site Safety Gathering in Construction Sites
Campaign, Kick-off Ceremony and Conference, Safety
Video Competition, 25" Considerate Contractors Site
Award Scheme, as well as visits to construction sites with
exemplary performance.

Support of the CSW by the industry was overwhelming
with 43 industry organisations supporting the event. Over
1,000 frontline practitioners and other stakeholders of the
construction industry attended the Conference and more
than 3,229 people voted for the Most Popular Safety
Video Award. In addition, 326 entries were submitted to
the 25" Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme.

With a view to promoting safety of working at height,
a Work-At-Height Safety Handbook has been published
with recommendations on safety measures to be taken
in different working at height environments. In addition,
the CIC utilised virtual reality (VR) technology to develop
training materials on working at height safety. Under
the Site Safety Gathering Campaign, 94 participating
construction sites obtained VR training sets fully sponsored
by the CIC and the DEVB to enhance their safety training of
working at height. A sharing session for working at height
safety was held in November 2019 with more than 300
participants.

Activity of “Construction Safety Week 2019” —
Site Safety Gathering in Construction Sites Campaign
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(d)  Activities for the fifth annual “Experiential Learning on
Site Safety Training Scheme 2019-20", co-organised by
the CIC and the Hong Kong Construction Association,
aimed to increase awareness of construction safety of
those undergraduates planning to join the construction
industry and plant safety seed during their learning
periods. Running from November 2019 to July 2020,
construction-related faculties from ten universities and
tertiary institutions joined this year's Scheme. It is expected
that around 450 undergraduates will benefit from the
Scheme.
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The opening ceremony of the fifth annual “Experiential Learning on Site
Safety Training Scheme 2019-20" was held at Noah's Ark, Ma Wan

FREITHZ 2 EBRTE2019200/AE N T EMBEHAET

With the aim of strengthening the safety culture and increasing
safety awareness throughout the industry, the Construction
Safety Department has prioritised the following initiatives:

(@)  Specific safety topics focusing on prevention of fatal
accidents will be promoted at the Construction Safety
Week (CSW) to increase safety awareness. The main theme
of the CSW 2020 is “Safety x Smart Sites” with a focus
on safety of lifting operations.
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(b)

A Task Force on Reviewing the Safety Roles and
Responsibilities of Key Stakeholders (TF-SRR) was formed
in 2018. The TF-SRR carried out consultations and
reviewed the safety roles and responsibilities of several
key stakeholders and compiled a list of key initiatives
for exploration. A safety consultant was engaged to
conduct a study on safety roles and responsibilities of key
stakeholders in the Hong Kong construction industry. The
study comprises two phases: the work for Phase | was
completed with a report issued in July 2019; the work
for Phase Il work is in progress. When completed, the
consultant will assist in preparing reference materials for
the industry.

A Task Force on Truss-out Bamboo Scaffolds (TF-TOB)
was established in June 2019. The TF-TOB carries out
work which aims to enhance the work safety of truss-
out bamboo scaffolds. The work comprises preparation
of safety guidelines for truss-out bamboo scaffolds,
exploration of feasibility of notification requirement to
the regulatory authorities prior to carrying out truss-
out bamboo scaffold works, and enhancement of
related training and promotion. In order to develop safe
guidelines for truss-out bamboo scaffolds, the TF-TOB and
relevant professionals identified five common designs of
bamboo scaffolds, and engaged professionals to carry out
engineering calculations. Load testing for verification will
be conducted at a later stage.

The opening ceremony of Construction Safety Week 2019
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Environment and Sustainability

The CIC continues to lead the development of a low-carbon
construction roadmap for Hong Kong. The Environment and
Sustainability Department (E&S) believes that promoting good
practices in relation to sustainable design and construction could
benefit all stakeholders. The adoption of new technology and
innovative ideas are strongly encouraged in the construction
industry as well.

CIC Sustainable Construction Award

The CIC Sustainable Construction Award (SCA) aims to
recognise sustainability best practices among organisations and
industry practitioners. Winners showcased their quantifiable
achievements, including the adoption of innovative technologies
in exhibitions at Central Government Office, Hong Kong
Convention and Exhibition Centre, shopping malls and The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. The Launching Ceremony
of SCA 2020 was held on 19 November 2019 with over 250

participants and it is open for entries until June 2020.
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CIC Sustainable Construction Award 2020 and Green Product Certification Launching Ceremony
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CIC Sustainable Construction Award 2018 Sharing Session
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CIC Carbon Assessment Tool

The built environment accounts for 70% of Hong Kong's carbon
emissions and the HKSAR Government has begun the city’s long-
term decarbonisation strategy. The CIC developed the Carbon
Assessment Tool to create a common platform for the industry to
evaluate the carbon performance of buildings and infrastructure
in Hong Kong from raw material extraction to the completion
of construction.

The Tool is designed to:

- Develop carbon emission factors for over 300 construction
materials

- Measure embodied carbon of construction materials and
carbon emission of on-site construction processes

- Analyse carbon performance of a construction project

The Tool was launched on 13 September 2019 with the
participation of over 44 supporting organisations, and 100
pilot projects have been engaged to test the beta version of
the Tool. Owners, developers, contractors, consultants and
industry practitioners are welcome to use this tool to assess the
carbon emissions of building and civil projects. The e-platform
is available at www.cat.cic.hk.

CIC Green Product Certification

The CIC Green Product Certification scheme aims to transform
Hong Kong into a greener built environment by providing a
certification platform for building and construction products
and materials. The scheme was formed by the unification of the
Carbon Labelling Scheme and Green Product Accreditation and
Standards. The certification criteria includes, but is not limited to,
carbon footprint, environmental management system, efficiency,
performance, human toxicity, ecosystem impact and resource
consumption. The scheme differentiates products which have
significantly less impact on the environment.
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Low Carbon Construction Roadmap 2030

Under the Paris Agreement and Hong Kong’s Climate Action
Plan 2030+ which aims to reduce absolute carbon emissions
by 26%-36% by 2030, the CIC developed a Low Carbon
Construction Roadmap 2030 to support the industry in meeting
this target. Recommendations include green finance, Design
for Manufacture and Assembly, low carbon construction
materials, construction waste management and electrification
of construction sites, etc. The CIC will collaborate with key
stakeholders on the implementation plan to greatly reduce the
carbon footprint of the Hong Kong construction industry.
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CIC Conference on Low Carbon Construction Roadmap Beyond 2030 and Carbon Assessment Tool

Launching Ceremony
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Way Forward

The Conference and Award Presentation Ceremony of the
SCA 2020 will be held in Q4 2020. Under the “Organisations”
category, the CIC encourage organisations to apply the CIC
Carbon Assessment Tool and procure sustainable materials with
the CIC Green Product Certification.

In recent years, green finance has gained importance globally
with the aim of building a sustainable world economy and
investing in low-carbon and climate-resilient infrastructures. In
her 2017 Policy Address, the Chief Executive announced a plan
to position Hong Kong as Asia’s green finance hub for raising
green capital. In view of the substantial GDP contributed by the
construction sector annually, the construction industry has a high
potential to embrace green finance opportunities. Thus, the CIC
will develop the Sustainable Construction Certification Scheme
in 2020. The Scheme aims to well define a green standard
and system, assess and improve sustainability performance of
construction projects as well as facilitate the application of green
finance in the construction industry.
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Construction Procurement
Site Supervision Practices

A number of high-profile incidents concerning construction
quality supervision in major infrastructure projects raised public
concerns as to the effectiveness of site supervision practices in
the local construction industry. In light of this, the CIC undertook
a study, aided by an external consultant, to review the current
site quality supervision practices, with a view to identifying
possible improvements and to offering recommendations
to elevate the performance of the industry with regard to
construction quality. The study was completed in 2019 and

findings are expected to be released in Q2 of 2020.
Reasonable Construction Period

Equitable risk-sharing in construction projects is also vital to the
long-term sustainability of a healthy construction market and the
fairness of construction contract periods has long been a topic
of great concern among industry stakeholders.

The CIC commissioned a consultancy study to review critical
factors affecting construction periods and to establish an
objective benchmark of construction period for building projects.
It is hoped that industry stakeholders could refer to the
benchmark when formulating contract durations. The study was
in progress throughout 2019 and is expected to be completed
in 2020.
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Partnering Culture

The CIC advocates the benefits of partnering and collaboration in
construction projects. To cultivate a stronger partnering culture
in the industry, the CIC organised a number of partnering
workshops for industry practitioners. The workshops aimed at
those who had yet to participate in New Engineering Contract
(NEC) projects, allowing them to appreciate the value of
partnering and the benefits collaboration could bring to all
project parties.

Seminars were held to provide opportunities for industry
practitioners to gain knowledge from NEC experts as well as to
exchange ideas among their peers.

Repair, Maintenance, Alteration and Addition
(RMAA) Market

There are over 30,000 buildings over the age of 50 years in
Hong Kong, a number that will only continue to grow. The
CIC recognises that, not only is it in the interest of the owners
and public safety that buildings are properly maintained, but
that the RMAA sector also poses many business opportunities
left untapped by the construction industry. Different reasons,
however, have been cited by industry stakeholders as barriers of
entry into the RMAA sector.

To facilitate entry into the RMAA sector, the CIC undertook a
consultancy study to holistically review the market situation and
to identify possible measures to facilitate wider participation
among industry stakeholders in the RMAA sector.
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Flat Inspection

With Hong Kong's high residential property prices, a flat
purchase often represents a lifetime investment for many
homeowners. It is understandable that there are very high
expectations on workmanship and quality. However, it has been
observed that there is a growing trend toward impractical, or
sometimes even unreasonable expectations during flat handover
inspections. It is also common for homeowners to employ “Flat
Inspectors” to carry out inspections, yet the credentials and
qualifications of these “Flat Inspectors” are often questionable.
In light of that, the CIC produced a series of promotional videos
to convey relevant messages on “Flat Inspectors” and common
inspection methods.

London Study Tour

A delegation, consisting of Members of the Committee on
Construction Procurement, senior management of the CIC and
other industry stakeholders, visited London in June 2019 to gain
first-hand knowledge of the latest advances in construction
project delivery. The delegation visited the construction site of
the tallest MiC residential tower in the world as well as the
London Underground Northern Line Extension project to learn
about the implementation of digital workflow and project team
collaboration.

The delegation also visited the BRE Innovation Park to gain
experience in digital inspection solutions and the latest
sustainable construction technologies. Finally, the delegation
attended the annual NEC Conference where Ir Albert CHENG,
Executive Director of the CIC, gave a presentation on the latest
development of NEC in Hong Kong to a group of construction
professionals from around the world.
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Publications

A number of publications were prepared and made available to
the industry in 2019:

o Construction Quality Supervision Alert

o Anti-Competitive Practices Alert

. Reference Material on Selection of Contractors

Promotional videos — Flat Inspection Files
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Site Visit at London Underground Partnering Workshop for Industry Practitioners
Northern Line Extension Project RERNEEMBHBEBIETES
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Construction Productivity

The Hong Kong construction industry is facing the collective
challenges of an ageing workforce, difficulty in attracting new blood,
and stagnant productivity growth. The Construction Productivity
Department (COP) supports the Committee on Productivity (Com-PRO)
in promoting and facilitating the adoption of advanced technologies
and construction methods to elevate the industry’s productivity. The
major work of the COP in 2019 covered the following five areas:

1. Industry Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

To strive for continuous development, the performance of
the HK construction industry needs to be regularly gauged

and benchmarked. Consequently,

performance indicators (KPIs) in the areas of productivity,
safety, environment and manpower were developed. These
were published under “Research & Data” on the CIC's website
in December 2019, and will be updated on a half-yearly basis.
With these KPIs, a solid foundation has been laid for continuous
monitoring of the industry’s performance in the respective areas.

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Dashboards
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Design for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA)

To promote and facilitate offsite prefabrication and modular
construction through collaboration along the supply chain, a
DfMA Alliance (the Alliance) was established in March 2019.
At the end of 2019, 139 companies/organisations from a wide
spectrum of the industry had joined the Alliance. The Alliance
is stepping to create an ecosystem for the adoption of DfMA in
Hong Kong and to deliver healthy improvement in construction
productivity, with members’ enthusiastic contributions.

The Alliance organised eight industry events with over 800
participants in 2019 to promote the adoption of DfMA in the
local construction industry, including a conference, technical
seminars, and factory visits.

Local and international experts from Mainland China, the UK,
and Singapore shared their valuable DfMA experience and
knowledge with our industry practitioners at these events.
To provide a focused platform for in-depth discussions with
a view to formulating strategies and tackling barriers for a
wider adoption of DfMA in the residential building sector, a
“Residential Hub” was set up under the DfMA Alliance.

In addition to promotion, knowledge sharing and organising
residential hub activities, a research study is being carried out
to establish measures to enhance DfMA adoption in residential
building projects in Hong Kong. The aim of the research is to
develop an appraisal framework for the assessment of DfMA
content to be included in building developments, in an effort to
provide a basis for offering incentives. It is hoped that a suitable
appraisal framework, together with attractive incentive schemes,
when developed, could facilitate the wider adoption of DfMA
components and modules in residential building projects.
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DfMA Alliance Launching Ceremony & CITAC Technical DfMA Technical Forum
Conference on Industrialisation B ABZERMHTE
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Residential Hub Meeting MiC Factory Visit for DfMA Alliance Members
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Construction Robotics & Automation

To enhance construction productivity, safety and quality, the
CIC has taken steps to drive the development, incubation and
promotion of construction robotics and automation systems.
Witnessed by Mrs. Carrie LAM, Chief Executive of the HKSAR,
Mr. Nicholas YANG, Secretary for Innovation and Technology,
and Mr. Michael WONG, Secretary for Development, the CIC
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with the Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation (HKSTP) in
May 2019 to jointly facilitate the development of construction
robotics.

Leveraging the MoU, the CIC and HKSTP co-organised the
15t International Symposium on Construction Robotics, which
included a mini exhibition. With over 300 participants, the
Symposium provided a platform for knowledge and experience
sharing on construction robotics. In addition, a one-to-one
business matching event on robotics and advanced technologies
was co-organised in October 2019. 26 solution providers from
the HKSTP and 14 construction companies participated in
the event. The matching event effectively facilitated business
matching for adoption of innovation in construction.

To drive the demand for, and supply of, construction robotics,
and to uphold the safety and functional standards of these
robots, the CIC plans to establish a certification scheme for
construction robots. An Expert Group was formed in October
2019 to steer and oversee the development of the scheme.
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MoU Signing between the CIC and HKSTP on Construction
Robotics Development

ZEREEMRELRRI AR ERMARER

R T B
15t International Symposium on Construction Robotics Business Matching Event on Construction Robotics
held in July 2019 and Advanced Technologies
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Research and Technology Development 4., WFFEERAE

The CIC is committed to working closely with industry FERNETERNENEERZEZ S
stakeholders and academics to drive research and innovation and B NHEBHRAMEF  TEBES
to support practical research projects through the use of the MARBNERESRKIBERMAR
CIC Research and Technology Development Fund. For researchers EHE RTEZEEPEENHEA
of CIC-funded projects to disseminate their research outcomes BRTEEMMMANHARKR  UE
to the industry and to help identify the research needs of the MM RAMITENHRERT R &G
industry, two Research Forums, on BIM and Sustainability, were 20192 AMT7A D RIER P T EFE B
held in February and July 2019 respectively. More than 200 B RwmENHEREETRRIE
industry stakeholders attended the forums. HRS51200% B R FHELM -

Research Forum on BIM
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Construction Innovation Expo 2019

The Construction Innovation Expo 2019 (CIExpo) was
successfully held from 17 to 20 December 2019 at the Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre (HKCEC). The ClExpo
was co-organised by the CIC and Development Bureau, and
supported by the Center of Science and Technology Industrial
Development, Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the People’s Republic of China. It was officiated by the
Chief Executive of the HKSAR, Mrs. Carrie LAM. The four-day
exhibition attracted over 23,500 visits and 228 exhibitors from
15 countries and regions. Over 40 local and overseas experts,
academics, government representatives and corporate owners
with engineering backgrounds shared their knowledge and
experience at the three-day International Conference, covering
themes on Building Information Modelling (BIM), Modular
Integrated Construction (MiC), Design for Manufacture and
Assembly (DfMA), Robotics and Automation, as well as at the
associated Building Asia Forum. Over 2,500 delegates attended
the Conference, while about 120 delegates joined the Technical
Tours. The CIC Construction Innovation Award Presentation
Ceremony was also held during the CIExpo.

Over 90% of the responded exhibitors agreed that the
ClExpo was well-organised and 86% of them agreed that
the ClExpo helped develop their business network. Visits and
liaisons conducted in the ClExpo also helped them in building
partnership with the construction industry in the Greater Bay
Area and Mainland China. More information of the CIExpo can
be found at http://ciexpo.cic.hk/.
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Mrs. Carrie LAM, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR, officiated at the ClExpo

Grand Opening
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CIExpo Grand Opening
BB EMER

ClExpo Exhibition Hall
REeRER

OPERATIONAL REVIEW Q
CEME %

CIExpo Exhibition
BEERE

CIExpo International Conference
AESRREE

Building Asia Forum
CRE D) bl

Technical Tour
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Building Information Modelling (BIM)

The Building Information Modelling (BIM) Department strives
to promote and facilitate the wide adoption of BIM and its
related technologies in architecture, engineering, construction
and operations. The CIC continues to develop itself as a
Centre of Excellence for BIM, formulating strategies for market
transformation and promoting cross-discipline collaboration and
wider adoption of BIM. During 2019, which was named “CIC
BIM Year”,
attention and encourage collaboration on industry-wide BIM

a year-round campaign was conducted to draw

adoption.

Key Achievements in 2019

(@ In January 2019, the CIC launched the CIC BIM
Certification and Accreditation Schemes to ascertain the
competency of BIM practitioners and the quality of local
BIM training programmes. The certification scheme for BIM
personnel accords priority to applicants who wish to be
certified by the CIC as BIM managers. The accreditation
scheme for BIM training courses is targeted at course
providers who are offering, or are planning to offer, BIM
Manager courses. Since the launch of the scheme, nearly
200 BIM Managers have been successfully certified and
two BIM Managers courses have been accredited by the
CIC.

EESEER

BEREEERBR N HEDERTE
£ IR BEREEFEHERZE
REEERERIMEARARE - &
SHREHENARDEREEERE
t%?%ﬁu@ﬂ HEERER R
£ HBEHEEAIEREEEERE
&mmgzﬁm F2 52019 @
RIZEEZSELEERETF] &

PEBER-FHEREE WX
RET BEARMEDEREZEMR

A BB R -
2019FMEERR

(@ TE2019F 1A ZEHETEE
EEERAATRRETE - AT
BEEEEER A BMEE N LIE
RAMIFIRENEE - BERE
ERBEFERAFEELEER
PEFEER —N%L = BAR#
KIBHERGEE - BEEBERR
R J\IMM%WEH%EAE%EWH
TRHEEZEEEERLCEREN
RIZE Y o m%%mmm '
ﬁ‘ﬁzooﬁrf&* 2 B8 AR
EESRUEREMMEIEZEREEL
*ﬁﬁi,ﬂ«@p%kjﬁxw%%%é\ R
BB o

CIC BIM Certification and Accreditation Schemes

Certificates Presentation Ceremony
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The CIC revamped the BIM Portal to provide a convenient
and user-friendly platform to access and share more
information about BIM, including the CIC’s BIM trainings,
local events, BIM showcases, BIM objects, BIM Talks’
videos, as well as local and overseas BIM standards and
guidelines, etc.

In April 2019, the CIC set up a new “CIC BIM Space” to:

i. Showcase innovative BIM technologies and
applications;

i Collaborate with industry partners and stakeholders
to promote the adoption of BIM via seminars and
workshops, such as BIM Solution Day and BIM
Advanced Workshop; and

iii.  Provide advisory services to industry practitioners,
especially Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs).

CIC BIM Space
BRERBRERRGERERER

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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BIM practitioners’ sharing sessions
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The CIC
and Workshop to version 2.0 and provided more

revamped the BIM Awareness Seminar

comprehensive content to increase the knowledge
and understanding of industry practitioners on BIM
technologies and transformation process. In 2019, the
CIC organised three BIM Talks for over 1,000 attendees
by inviting local BIM experts to share their successful
implementation of BIM in real life projects.

The first “CIC BIM Competition 2019” was organised
to promote BIM technology to tertiary students and
construction industry practitioners in Hong Kong through
a collaborative and competitive learning approach. There
were two categories in the Competition: Open Category
and Tertiary Student Category. Eight tertiary educational
institutions formed teams to participate in the Tertiary
Student Category competition, with teams composed of
students from different disciplines.

CIC BIM Competition 2019

002 EXBZEERERRELE

In August 2019, the CIC published two new BIM
Standards: BIM Standards for Mechanical, Electrical and
Plumbing and BIM Standards for Underground Utilities,
to establish and elaborate BIM Standards for specific BIM
usages and disciplines. In December 2019, we published
CIC BIM Standards for Preparation of Statutory Plan
Submissions to provide general guidelines for reference.
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International Conference on BIM
BEFEREBKEERZ R

After signing Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs)
with six local higher education institutions in the past two
years, the CIC signed further MOUs with three additional
institutions in 2019: The Hong Kong Design Institute
(HKDI),
(IVE), and Technological and Higher Education Institute of

Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
Hong Kong (THEI) for introducing BIM content into their

curriculum.

In December 2019, the CIC organised the International
Conference on BIM as one of the major events of
(CIExpo). The
conference gathered together world-class speakers and

Construction Innovation Expo 2019
BIM experts covering best practices and the latest global
trends in BIM, attracting around 630 attendees. The
CIC also organised the second Asia Pacific Regional BIM
Group Meeting with representatives invited from different
economies sharing their experiences and policies on the
development of BIM.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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Hologram Table with Disney Castle demonstration at the ClExpo
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The collaboration project “Zero Carbon Building -
Integration of BIM-AM (Building Information Modeling —
Asset Management) with 10T (Internet of Things)” between
the CIC and the Electrical
Department, won the Autodesk Hong Kong BIM Awards
2019 organised by Autodesk Far East Limited. The Award

recognised the CIC's contribution in driving the industry’s

and Mechanical Services

transformation through the use of BIM and demonstrating
a more efficient and sustainable development approach
for the industry.

The CIC received the “Grand Award (Others Category)”
at “HKIBIM Award 2019" organised by The Hong Kong
Institute of Building Information Modelling (HKIBIM) in
recognition of our ongoing efforts in promoting and
driving the wider adoption of BIM technology in Hong
Kong.

An industry-wide comprehensive BIM adoption survey
was conducted in 2019 aimed at establishing a fuller
picture of the current adoption status of BIM in the Hong
Kong construction industry. This will form a baseline
for benchmarking in the future and help to formulate
strategies and appropriate actions to advance BIM
adoption in Hong Kong. The survey results were presented
at the International Conference on BIM in December 2019.
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The CIC sent representatives to attend the buildingSMART
International Standards Summits in Germany in March
2019 and Beijing in October 2019 in order to build ties
with overseas BIM experts and gain insight into the latest
international standards and developments of BIM.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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Delegations from Hong Kong attended the buildingSMART

International’s Standards Summits in Beijing
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In 2020, the BIM Department will:

Expand the current CIC BIM Certification and
Accreditation Schemes by launching the Certification of
BIM Coordinators and Accreditation of BIM Coordinator
Courses;

Organise Celebration of BIM Achievement 2020 to
recognise outstanding practitioners in the construction
industry in the adoption of BIM; and

Continue to develop and publish new BIM standards,
specifications and common practices to support BIM
implementation in the construction industry.
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Construction Innovation and Technology
Application Centre (CITAC)

CITAC was established in 2017 to showcase and promulgate
innovative technologies and practices which can improve
productivity, safety and sustainability in the construction
industry. It also explores and identifies innovative solutions,
both locally and internationally, that are suitable for Hong Kong
construction industry.

In 2019, under the strategic direction of its Management Board,
CITAC showcased the use of construction innovations and
technologies via the following initiatives:

Exhibition

In 2019, about 6,500 people visited the centre to learn more
about innovative technologies in the construction industry
regarding industrialisation, informatisation, intelligentisation,
integration and infinity.

Representatives from government departments and professional
institutes, including Drainage Services Department, Housing
Department, Architectural Services Department, Development
Bureau, Urban Renewal Authority, Institution of Civil Engineers,
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and Hong Kong Institute of
Architects, visited CITAC to exchange and explore the potential
to implement innovate technology in the construction industry.

Apart from local institutions, overseas delegations such
as Okinawa International University, Guangzhou Municipal
Construction Group Co. Ltd., Brazilian delegation of Enredes,
Chilean delegation of Technological Development Corporation,
also visited CITAC to exchange ideas on the application of
construction industry innovation and to seek potential future
collaboration.

To promote a wider adoption of construction innovation for
the betterment of the industry, and to keep up with fast-
paced technological developments, CITAC will regularly renew
the exhibition. The third round of exhibition will be launched
in January 2020, featuring new technologies at the Internet of
Things (loT) corner, a Virtual Reality (VR) Cave, and showcasing
the application of Artificial Intelligence (Al) technologies.
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Conference

CITAC organised ten technical conferences and/or seminars
in 2019, bringing together government officials, academics,
industry practitioners and many others to share and discuss the
latest initiatives and insights regarding construction innovation.

22 February 2019
201952 H22H

18 March 2019
2019%3H18H

16 April 2019
20194 816H

25 June 2019
2019 6H25H

3 July 2019
20194 7A3H

3 September 2019
20195 9A3H

20 September 2019
201946 9A20H

20 November 2019
20194115201

25 November 2019
2019115251

5 December 2019
2019412 85H
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CITAC Evening Seminar on Construction Innovations
CITACEE T &1 & — BIFTE &

DfMA Alliance Launching Ceremony &
CITAC Technical Conference on Industrialisation
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Conference on Informatisation — Driving Site Supervision with Digitalisation
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CITAC i-Club Evening Seminar — Building Life Cycle Management
CITAC i-ClubBt 51 & - 2 A mBEREE

15t International Symposium on Construction Robotics
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Technical Seminar on Off-site Rebar Prefabrication and
the related BIM Applications
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CITAC Technical Conference —
Infinity: Innovative Materials and Sensing Technologies for Construction
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CITAC Anniversary Conference —
Organisational Framework and Corporate Culture for Construction Innovation
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Evening Seminar on Innovative Construction Technology from Israel & ltaly
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CITAC i-Club Evening Seminar on loT Integration in Modern Construction
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CITAC Evening Seminar on Construction Innovations
CITACRIFh 2 S I AT 5 &

The 1°t International Symposium on Construction Robotics

F-EZEEHCEEMGE

CITAC Anniversary Conference — Organisational Framework and Corporate Culture for
Construction Innovation
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i-Club Membership

CITAC website and i-Club, a membership scheme linked to the
i-Club forum, were officially launched in May 2019 to create an
interactive platform for industry practitioners to identify potential
areas for industry improvement, share ideas and enable co-
creation of innovative solutions for the sustainable development
of the industry. As of 31 December 2019, registrations from 104
corporates and 384 individuals were received.

CITAC website: www.citac.cic.hk

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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www.citac.cic.hk

Industry experts were sharing their insight with i-Club members at CITAC i-Club

Evening Seminar
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Beijing Study Tour

Led by Mr. Donald CHOI, Chairperson of the CITAC Management
Board, a study tour to Beijing was conducted from 6 to 9
November 2019 to gain insight into the latest technology
developments and master planning concepts in Mainland China.
The delegation visited the 18" China International Exposition
of Housing Industry & Products and Equipments of Building
Industrialization, Beijing’s Subsidiary Administrative Center, China
Academy of Building Research, Xiongan District and China Zun.
Impressed by many of these technologies, CITAC is looking into
the possibility of their implementation in Hong Kong.

The study tour to Beijing
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Shunde Couniry Garden Visit

A technical visit to Bright Dream Robotics of Country Garden
in Shunde was held on 11 October 2019. There, the delegation
was given the opportunity to discuss with Mr. YEUNG Guogiang,
the Chairman of Country Garden, on the challenges and
opportunities that lay ahead for the development of construction
robotics.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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The technical visit to Bright Dream Robotics of Country Garden
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ClExpo Technical Tours

CITAC arranged eight different technical tours during the
Construction Innovation Expo 2019 for industry practitioners,
students and interested parties in order to demonstrate local
innovative buildings and facilities, including the MiC Display
Centre, CIC — Zero Carbon Park, CIC BIM Space, green building
features at Maxim’s Centre and Hong Kong Land’s portfolio,
Happy Valley Underground Stormwater Storage Tank, Hong Kong
West Drainage Tunnel Project, revitalisation projects at Shanghai
Street 618 and Lee Tung Street, together with T - Park (a sludge
treatment facility) and O - Park (the first organic waste treatment
facility in Hong Kong).
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CIC - Zero Carbon Park (CIC - ZCP)

Established in 2012, the Construction Industry Council -
Zero Carbon Building was renamed CIC - Zero Carbon Park
(CIC = ZCP) in 2019. As a centre for exhibition, education and
information, CIC — ZCP aims to demonstrate zero/low carbon
building design and technologies.

The mission of CIC — ZCP is to:

a)  Showcase state-of-the-art eco-building design and
technologies to the local and international construction
industry, and to increase their application in Hong Kong;

b)  Raise awareness of low-carbon living and promote
behavioural changes through guided tours and education
programmes; and

Q) Share the latest zero/low carbon building technologies and
practices with industry practitioners.

In response to the development and needs of society, the
CIC — ZCP has transformed into an experiential platform that
raises awareness of climate change and displays the latest smart
city technologies. It also promotes the well-being of community
through organising open-air activities.
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Key Achievements in 2019

a)

Working hand-in-hand with the government and industry
partners, CIC — ZCP introduced two groundbreaking
zero carbon building facilities, namely the Electrical
& Mechanical Modular Integrated Construction for
Stormwater Air-conditioning System (emMiC) and the Air
Improvement Photovoltaic Glass Canopy. Both are the
first of their kind in Hong Kong, demonstrating cutting-
edge technologies and providing benchmarks for similar
implementations in future. In addition, a Battery Energy
Storage System was put in place to further tackle the
intermittency limitations of renewable energy.

To propel the continuous development of CIC — ZCP and
enhance the experience of visitors, renovation works
phase | were completed in 2019, including refurbishing the
Multi-purpose Hall, replacing the bamboo decking at the
Courtyard and the Stage, and installing LED walls at the
Multi-purpose Hall and the Stage.

CIC = ZCP organised the CIC’s annual signature event
— Construction Month 2019 from November through
December 2019. Major events included the Grand
Launching Ceremony, Zero Carbon Studio, Happy Building
STEAM Playground, Construction Month Cup 2019 3x3
Basketball Competition, Zero Carbon Music Fest and
Revitalisation Art Workshops. Around 53,000 visits were
drawn to the Park to enjoy the fun-filled activities and
keep abreast of the latest construction trends.

A wide range of events including the “Active Wednesday”
regular fitness activities, “From Low Carbon Life to Smart
City Girl Guide Smart City Ambassador Programme”, and
“Come Low Carbon Christmas” decoration and carnival,
were held with a view to promoting low-carbon living
style, smart city and wellness in community.
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e) Novel exhibits under the theme “Climate Change and
Smart City” were introduced to the Exhibition Centre. The
STEM experience corner was launched with various zones
related to drone, robots and augmented reality to provide
visitors with highly engaging experiences.

f) The overall visitor count for 2019 was around 179,600,
up 87% from 2018; total media value achieved HK$33.7
million.

g)  CIC = ZCP has been demonstrating a variety of renewable
energy and the related applications. For instance, the
renewable energy generated from the photovoltaic panels
and biofuel made of waste cooking oil at CIC — ZCP
not only supported the operation of the Park but also
contributed to the China Light and Power Co Ltd. (CLP)
through the Feed-in Tariff Scheme. In 2019, a total of
98,000 kWh electricity by the renewable energy system
was purchased by the CLP.

In 2020, the CIC - ZCP will:

a) Continue to demonstrate the state-of-the art eco-building
design and technologies in energy generation and
sustainability;

b) Provide a networking and hang-out spot for construction
industry practitioners and create value for them;

Q) Engage public and industry practitioners through various
activities;

d) Reach out and collaborate with its competitors in the
education sector, private sector, green groups and NGOs
to achieve synergies; and

e) Carry out phase Il renovation including hard and soft
landscape upgrades.
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Hong Kong's first Electrical & Mechanical Modular The innovative Air Improvement Photovoltaic (AIPV)
Integrated Construction for Stormwater Air-conditioning Glass Canopy is the first of its kind in Hong Kong
System (emMiC) has been installed EEERE=RFLLAGRERBXE

REZBHANKEARANRKEARS

Renovation works phase | were completed in 2019 CIC - ZCP organised the CIC’s annual signature
BEXTRAME -—BERBHNIEN2019F T K event — Construction Month

BEXTMAMMBERZSFEREIELA]

“Come Low Carbon Christmas” decoration Novel exhibits and the STEM experience corner were
and carnival launched in the Exhibition Centre
[Come Low] Z fix B2 JL (& [& 2 & J% 52 F % REFRLEZLZEHERKISTEME R E ]
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Modular Integrated Construction (MiC)

The MiC Display Centre

Modular Integrated Construction (MiC) is a breakthrough in the
construction industry and an innovative construction method in
Hong Kong. The CIC has actively promoted MiC to the industry
stakeholders and the public since 2017. The MiC Display Centre,
the first MiC building in Hong Kong, is located at the CIC —
Zero Carbon Park. It was officially opened on 6 November 2018.
The MiC Display Centre aims to provide visitors with first-hand
experience and information on MiC.

As a result of the joint efforts of the CIC and the Development
Bureau (DEVB), the MiC Display Centre is now highly recognised
by the industry practitioners and the public. As at the end of
2019, over 8,000 visitors had visited the MiC Display Centre.

The following pie-chart shows the proportion of visitors from
different sectors in 2019:

Government Sector

BT R

Construction Sector

BERR

Education Sector

HER

Public
N

CIC /HKIC
BEXEE B RERR

D

EEELAEES
ra

[EEEKIBEEZRBE BN AT
BERE  hRBETEN-BRE -
B2017% - BEXEZE ERNIAE
RAMAREREMAEAKIEEL -4

KAk ARRHO(HEEHD R
EEE-ERBARKAKIZEER

EOEEY NREEETRKI
A A R2018F11TAGAERK - §
FARAL2BERBIEEAKIEEEZN
BRRE—FER-

MBREEZRTNERBIMNERZE
N THERIBR TERNAZN S
ERA - BRBUAKRZE2019F - 28
A EE#BiB8,000A °

AT R2019F2BENRBIDMLELH
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Apart from the members of the Joint Working Group on MiC,
we were honoured to have the following government officials
of the HKSAR visiting the MiC Display Centre:

Mrs. Carrie LAM, Chief Executive

Mr. Paul CHAN, Financial Secretary

Mr. Michael WONG, Secretary for Development

Dr. LAW Chi-kwong, Secretary for Labour and Welfare
Mr. WONG Kam-sing, Secretary for the Environment

Events Organised in 2019

In 2019, the CIC organised a series of activities to facilitate the
implementation of MiC in Hong Kong, including:

International Conference

Followed by the success of the first International Conference
on MiC held in April 2018, the CIC and the DEVB jointly
organised the second International Conference on MiC during
the Construction Innovation Expo 2019 on 18 December 2019.
The conference was very successful with local and international
experts invited to share successful examples of MiC worldwide,
development opportunities and challenges in employing MiC,
allowing the construction industry to better understand the
implementation issues in modular construction.
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Over 600 people attended the International Conference on MiC

in December 2019
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Seminars and Forums

Seminars and forums on different topics were organised by the
CIC on a regular basis to present and discuss issues encountered
at different stages of implementation of MiC projects. The
events provided the industry a clearer direction and reference
in the adoption of MiC technology. For instance, the “Client/
held in January 2019
provided a platform for the three parties to exchange ideas and

Contractor/Supplier Forum on MiC”

discuss issues on the adoption of MiC in building projects in
Hong Kong. In August 2019, the CIC invited four tenderers of
the student residence at Wong Chuk Hang site for the University
of Hong Kong Project to share their tendering experience with
industry practitioners.

Training Courses

In September 2019, a three-day intensive training course on
innovative construction was jointly organised by the BCA
Academy of Singapore and the CIC. Sharing sessions on Design
for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA) as well as Prefabricated
(PPVC)
strategies were conducted by representatives from Singapore

Prefinished Volumetric Construction policies and
government departments, the contractors and the consultants.
MiC site and prefabrication factory visits were also arranged. The
CIC will continue to offer more MiC-related courses to provide
the training needs of industry practitioners.

Course on innovative construction held in Singapore
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Mainland China and Overseas Visits

From 2017 to 2019, the CIC organised several overseas technical
trips and corporate visits for government officials and industry
professionals to Mainland China, Singapore, Germany and
the UK. In June 2019, the CIC arranged a technical visit to
Singapore to examine its ongoing PPVC projects and Integrated
Construction and Prefabrication Hubs. Discussions were held
with Singapore government officials, with the aim of bringing
their experience and good practices in the use of this technology
to Hong Kong.

Guidelines on the Statutory Requirements for
MiC Projects

In September 2019, the CIC promulgated the Guidelines
on the Statutory Requirements for MiC Projects to provide
construction industry practitioners with information and
guidance on the statutory requirements for MiC projects. The
CIC also organised a “Seminar on the Guidelines on Statutory
Requirements and on Procurement Issues for MiC Projects”, at
which representatives from industry stakeholder organisations
shared their experience and views, and representatives from
four government departments (Buildings Department, Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department, Fire Services Department
and Water Supplies Department) introduced their respective
regulatory requirements and streamlined procedures.

MiC Projects in Hong Kong

In 2018, there were only two pilot MiC projects in Hong Kong.
A year later, the number has increased to over seven. These
projects are:

1. Disciplined Services Quarters for the Fire Services
Department at Pak Shing Kok, Tseung Kwan O

2. Student Residence at Wong Chuk Hang Site for the

University of Hong Kong

InnoCell at the Hong Kong Science and Technology Park

Elderly’'s Home at Jat Min Chuen, Sha Tin

Transitional Homes at Nam Cheong Street, Sham Shui Po

Transitional Homes at Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

N o vk W

Transitional Homes at Yip Shing Street, Kwai Chung
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Construction progress at the Disciplined Services Quarters
for the Fire Services Department at Pak Shing Kok, Tseung
Kwan O

HERBBAETRLAETBESRERE

Transitional Homes at Nam Cheong Street, Sham Shui Po
(Expected flat in-take in the 3rd quarter of 2020)

FREEEHBENREE GBI R2020FF =F AK)

The benefits of MiIC are widely recognised by the industry
stakeholders and the public. It is expected that more MiC
buildings will be built in Hong Kong, with the construction
industry embracing a new era with wider adoption of MiC.

Photo source:
Architectural Services Department

BRER: ZEE

Photo source:
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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Construction Innovation and Technology
Fund (CITF)

The Construction Innovation and Technology Fund (CITF) aims to
support the adoption of technologies and nurture the capacity
and mind-set of construction industry stakeholders. Since its
launch in October 2018, the total number of applications
received was 1,073 as at December 2019. CITF is gaining
momentum in its efforts to encourage innovation and technology
applied to Hong Kong construction projects.

Up to the end of December 2019, a total of 753 applications
were approved for HK$160,790,716. About 32.9% of the
beneficiary companies were Levy-paying Contractors, 39.6%
were Sub-contractors, 24.7% were Consultants, and 2.8% were
Local Higher Education Institutions, Trade Associations and
Professional Institutions. Beneficiary companies received funding
support under five different categories: about 68.9% from
Building Information Modelling (BIM), 20.7% from Advanced
Construction Technologies, 2.3% from Modular Integrated
Construction (MiC), 5.3% from Prefabricated Steel Rebar and
2.8% from Manpower Development.

The CITF is used to support technologies with proven
effectiveness in boosting productivity, uplifting built quality,
improving site safety or enhancing environmental performance. It
also supports local and overseas emergent technologies at initial
phases of commercialisation as well as mature ones which can
be adapted for local use. Pre-approved Lists for BIM Training,
BIM Software and Technologies were updated and expanded
continuously to ensure that CITF applicants could have hands
on reference with an aim of simplifying and expediting the
application process. There were 144 pre-approved BIM Training
Courses, 79 pre-approved BIM Softwares and 86 pre-approved
Technologies on our pre-approved lists at the end of 2019.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
CEME

REFXAFENMZES

BEZEANENMEES (ER)EER
BEAERARBEREFERFTOHED
BENERBME o A M2018F 108K -
Eﬂzizowiuﬂf’%iwiﬁau&
FNM,073R e AR AR EEREE
EEREETREABFRE -

B E2019F 128 K - & & 4t H753
REEE I E SR AE160,790,716
TC o BH%I32.9% 8 X B A T B
RE KRR - 39.6% R0 B - 24.7%
BEMBAF  LAK28%AXMEE

BlE HeREXEE THEERE
BRETFRGEBERESED FEE
=B 5 4689% Al FEER K
1520.7% [#EE K I B2 EEH2.3%
ﬁl’ﬁi\%ﬂﬂ A {55.30/0&/\j]§§6E{52.80/0 °©

ESARIBERRELEND &S
BEEEER NETHRZE2REARRK
MR FIEF > X RFIEEEAILE
B A P AL HR B0 R 3 Ko 0 S0 ) Bl R
B BER B B AR i
AR R - EEERREEIIRE
EREREEERTUHELHMRERMNTESL
?ttTZ%ﬁ%%:‘é?i%ﬁ&igm CABEES
R E 2E LB INREAERIE o
BE2019FE - AL ZBEARAD R
Bl4AEZEESEFIBIIRE - 790
BEEERERTMNSMEMTER -

¥

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 Eiﬁ/ 141



¥

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

=

Ay

EBHE

During the year, more than 80 events were staged in partnership
with industry and trade associations to promote the CITF to
industry stakeholders, two of which were signature events held
in July and November 2019 featuring industry leaders who
shared experiences on how they made use of CITF to adopt new
technologies in their construction projects in Hong Kong.

At the first signature event in July 2019, companies shared
success stories in adopting sensors, robotics and laser scanning
technology in their construction projects. Over 100 industry
stakeholders attended and benefitted from the information
shared by speakers. Riding on the overwhelming industry
response to this event, another signature event was held in
November 2019, which comprised three components, namely
a CITF Gallery, a Smart Construction and Talent Connect
Symposium and several BIM Experience Workshops.

Innovation in Practice Forum (July 2019)
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Successful applicants sharing
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CITF Symposia Opening Ceremony
[(BEXEFEHMEES | ZBERTEHEER

The aim of the CITF Gallery was to showcase the latest
technologies to industry stakeholders and provide a platform for
pre-approved suppliers to share information on the technological
development and applications. At the Smart Construction and
Talent Connect Symposium, successful applicants were invited
to discuss their experience in adopting technologies and the
insights they gained from non-local visits. Hands-on and practical
BIM Experience Workshops were also held for contractors and
subcontractors to learn how they could adopt BIM in their daily
operations and in various stages of their construction projects.
Through these events, industry stakeholders gained a deeper
understanding of the CITF and how innovations and technologies
could enhance the effectiveness of the construction process.

CITF Symposia - CITF Gallery (November
2019)
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BIM Experience Workshop
BEEERBRE2EBEIED

Further enhancements had been made for the CITF Framework,
as well as its simplified application procedure. The scope of
eligible applicants has been extended to materials suppliers.

To further raise awareness of CITF and encourage industry
stakeholders to make applications, briefing sessions were tailor-
made for trade associations, professional institutions, local higher
education institutions and individual companies to explain how
CITF could help them in the course of technology adoption to
meet their specific needs.

The CIC also maintained a strong presence in industry
networking events to promote the CITF. To generate greater
awareness of the CITF among target professional groups and
industry practitioners, outdoor advertisements were placed in
the community, coupled with print advertisements and feature
articles in newspapers and journals of professional institutions
and trade associations. Online marketing in social media
channels was stepped up, featuring useful tips of CITF and the
latest technology developments in the construction industry, to

different groups of industry stakeholders.
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Billboard at East Harbour Tunnel

ReBEREALESE

CITF Digest
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Featured articles in Ming Pao
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the CITF Secretariat also

launched a technology sharing platform on the CITF website to

Other than the above channels,

demonstrate technologies that could be adopted by the industry
in various types of projects. To facilitate continuous learning
by industry practitioners and other interested parties, course
materials and PowerPoint presentations of successful Manpower
Development applications used at approved conferences, courses
and visits are also displayed on the CITF website. With even
more promotion planned for 2020, applications are anticipated
to increase along with more success stories which demonstrate
how CITF supports industry stakeholders in adopting new
technologies at a lower cost.

CITF New Website
[FREZEAMEBERES B
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Training and Development
Hong Kong Institute of Construction

Since its establishment in 2018, the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction (HKIC) has strived to train accomplished and
professional construction practitioners while focusing on
providing a better articulation pathway to its students.

The HKIC is led by the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Management Board (HKICMB), which is chaired by Professor LEE
Chack-fan and comprised of members from multi-disciplinary
backgrounds, including the construction industry, education
sector, Construction Industry Council (CIC), government and
marketing fields. Over the course of 2019, the HKICMB
discussed and endorsed a series of strategic documents with
recommendations, laying down a clear positioning and roadmap
for the future development of the HKIC.

In order to work towards the plan for change advanced by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in
its 2018 “Construction 2.0” initiative, the HKIC aims to boost
the professional image and promote the sustainable development
of the industry through enhancing its programmes, building a
flexible and systematic training path, attracting more young and
energetic talent to the industry, encouraging innovative ideas
and new technologies and encouraging professional skills, so
as to enhance the level of professionalism and productivity of
the industry. Thus, in 2019, the Construction Industry Training
Board (CITB) approved the blueprint and roadmap for course
development of the HKIC's full-time (one-year and two-year)
programmes for providing a better articulation pathway.

On the other hand, the “Centre for Professional Development
(CPD)" of the HKIC was responsible for providing part-time
courses. To complement the long-term development of the
HKIC, the CITB approved the renaming of the CPD to the
“School of Professional Development in Construction (SPDC)”
from 1 January 2020. The future development plan, target
market and tasks for the SPDC was detailed in 2019 in order to
provide programmes that match market needs and encourage
construction industry stakeholders to participate in continuous
education opportunities.
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Training 123

The Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) has persistently B e REHFRELINEIREE -
increased its training capacity over the past few years. In 2019F 2 HHIRIEMEE AH A3,206
2019, there were 3,206 graduates of full-time courses, while A HAE65519 N N IR B i S 2
65,519 in-service construction practitioners completed part-time BT FRAE I RE -

courses.

The HKIC also launched its first Certificate Course in Electrical ERPRETEH AREHEXERY
Installation in 2019 in order to cater to the demand for well- BERMAT TR BB H2019F
trained technicians by the Electrical and Mechanical (E&M) BRAANREREEIZERIE REAXE
sector. The 82-day course provides targeted training to aspiring AT B G A 3R 182 K &t 3 14 5 i 5%
adult learners who wish to join the construction industry. The A WEH EREREN = F R
HKIC also laid down a three-year development plan for E&M 2 NERBRFEHERFTRORE
programmes to offer courses and nurture professionals that WEBHES -

better meet the needs of the industry.

First Graduation Ceremony of Certificate course in
Electrical Installation in September 2019
209F9ARTTHNERLEREaREE AR

Graduates of the first Certificate Course in
Electrical Installation
BMMEREEEEZEELE
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In addition, the HKIC continues to enhance the effectiveness
of its teaching and learning. Advanced technology and new
elements have been added to the programmes, e.g. six sets
of wheeled and crawler-mounted mobile crane simulators
were procured in March 2019. The first class of a mobile
crane operation training course adopting the use of simulators
commenced in the same month. Moreover, in order to
help students and practitioners learn the latest construction
technologies, the HKIC set up a three-storey training module
using the Modular Integrated Construction (MiC) module at the
Tai Po Training Ground in December 2019 for use in the newly
devised MiIC training programme on components installation.
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Mobile crane simulator training room in Tai Po
Training Ground

RIS H REERBEIRE

Three-storey MiC training module in Tai Po Training Ground

K38 Y655 10 = 1B B MIC I k1 48

The opening ceremony of the “Safety Experience Training BB R2019F2 8 & R B T A

Centre” (SETC) in the Kwai Chung Campus was held in February [Z2@ERilGhd BB ER
2019. The SETC not only displays construction safety exhibits [Z2BRIRPLIBEREEESR
and incorporates elements of the five-sense experience, but also TEMMAEBRITEI TRHEE
features Virtual Reality (VR) scenarios for visitors and students RESWESSENREAELEE—T
to learn more about construction safety. THREEELDHRE °
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Moreover, the HKIC also filmed a series of short videos on
“Craftsmanship and Legacy” in 2019 to heighten public interest
in construction crafts, while allowing students and graduates to
refresh their memories and consolidate knowledge anytime and

anywhere.

oM BEINR2019F 5 7 1458 8
EEINTERIER - RIS
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Virtual accident site in the Safety Experience Training Centre

ZERBRBIRTLOERBIES

Out-of-classroom learning in the Safety Experience

Training Centre
ZERBBIRPOTMELRE

Opening of Safety Experience Training Centre in
February 2019
Z 2 EERII&PLRR2019F2 AR &

The HKIC kicked off the uplifting project for the three campuses
in late 2019. It is expected to be completed by the end of 2020.
Throughout the renovation period, efforts will be made to ensure
that ongoing training programmes will not be affected.
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The main focus of the SPDC for programme development in
2019 was on the delivery of courses on Modular Integrated
Construction (MiC) and Building Information Modelling (BIM).
The first class of the “3-day Executive Programme in Pre-
fabricated, Pre-finished Volumetric Construction (PPVC)”, jointly
organised by HKIC/SPDC and BCA Academy in Singapore, was
held successfully from 6 to 10 September 2019. A total of 23
executives from the local construction industry participated in
the course. The first training course on MiC in Hong Kong,
“Certificate in MiC for Foreman” programme, was also launched
on 19 December 2019.

In the area of BIM training, the “Professional Certificate for
BIM Manager” course offered by the SPDC is one of the first
two BIM Manager courses in Hong Kong accredited by the
CIC. The first class of this certificate course was launched on
6 November 2019, with completion of the course being one of
the prerequisites for applying for registration as ClC-certified BIM
Manager.

Curriculum Development & Quality Assurance

In 2019, the HKIC continued to drive quality improvements in
new programme development as well as the operation of existing
programmes. A major accreditation exercise for all streams of
Diploma in Construction programme and two safety supervision
programmes, i.e. Certificate for Construction Safety Supervisors and
Certificate in Site Safety Supervising Techniques, was completed
during the year. These courses were accredited at the Hong Kong
Qualifications Framework (QF) Level 3 in June 2019. The related
courses passed the accreditation procedures of the Hong Kong
Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications
(HKCAAVQ), marking the second year the HKIC successfully had
its courses accredited without any conditions or requirements.
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In 2019, the HKIC conducted 29 capacity-building programmes
for over 370 managerial and teaching staff in the form of
sharing sessions, seminars and workshops on quality assurance
(QA), competency-based curriculum development, assessment
design, programme monitoring, learning and teaching materials
enhancement and preparation for programme accreditation.
Support was also given to newly-appointed External Examiners
to help them better familiarise themselves with the requirements
of the Qualifications Framework. Under the existing “account
manager system”, staff of Curriculum Development & Quality
Assurance Department (CDQA) took a proactive role in
mentoring all seven Programme Teams (covering more than 160
programmes) and considerable inroads were made in reinforcing
the QA mechanism of the HKIC programmes.

To promote a culture of quality, the HKIC launched new quality
published a staff
e-newsletter with a dedicated section on sharing good practices

improvement measures at all campuses,

and carried out a comprehensive stock-taking of staff awareness
and knowledge of Quality Assurance and Qualifications
Framework to help map out a holistic plan on enhancing staff
competencies in these areas.

Qualifications Framework Accreditation 2019
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Student Recruitment, Student Development
and Career Support Services

Believing that training should not be solely restricted to
skills enhancement, and that character building and moral
development of students are equally important, the HKIC in
2018 established the Student Development Department primarily
responsible for the whole-person development of students. Staff
of the Student Development Department proactively liaise with
teaching staff, administrative staff and students of every campus
to strengthen connections and instill the concept of the “five-
element” whole-person development.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
CEME

BLERE BEEKIEXER
%

BIIYFFEELEERM - MBEER
BEE  BRN2018FRIULIBAEHR |
M ENEE2ABRIEE - 5P
ERGBMESEROABELSEE
YR ESRR AL R 2 A%
REER o

HKIC Whole Person Development Lecture — Moral and Civic

Education Series
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Student Counselling Service was fully implemented in 2019. The
HKIC provides students in full-time programmes with various
individual counselling and group activities in order to help
them overcome difficulties in learning and boost their self-
confidence. To further enhance teaching and administrative
staff’s understanding of the student counselling services and
its implementation mechanism, a number of briefings and case
sharing sessions were held in the year to introduce the content of
Student Counselling Services and tips on student case handling.
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The Moral and Civic Education programmes were implemented
starting from September 2019. Key programmes, including
“Thematic Exhibitions and Quiz Games on National Flag,
Emblem and Anthem of the People’s Republic of China”, “Taster
Workshops on Traditional Chinese Handicrafts & Cuisine” and
“Whole Person Development Lecture — Civic Education Series”
were organised, in order to foster students’ civic mindedness and

awareness of Chinese traditional culture and national identity.

OpenAthens services were launched by the Learning Resources
Centre in September 2019. CIC and HKIC users can make use of
OpenAthens services to remotely access the electronic resources
from outside the CIC and HKIC premises anytime and anywhere
on any device.

HKIC Adventure-based Training Camp
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The HKIC launched a number of new initiatives in 2019
to support the promotion of Vocational and Professional
Education and Training in Hong Kong. In May, the HKIC jointly
established the Corporate Tech Academy Network (CTAN)
with CLP Power Academy, Hong Kong International Aviation
Academy, HKPC Academy, MTR Academy and Towngas
Engineering Academy, culminating in a kick-off event and
exhibition, “Road to a Bright Professional Future”. In addition,
in order to raise stakeholder interest and confidence in taking
construction training programmes, the HKIC launched its first-
ever "Taster Programmes on Built for the Future” which allowed
participants to gain knowledge and experience on skills, BIM
and construction supervision training through two- to three-day
courses.

During the year, the HKIC continued to participate in the
“Education and Careers Expo 2019”. The event organiser even
designated one of the exhibition days as “Exploring Construction
Industry” Day with thematic talks on BIM, MiC, Joinery trade and
HKIC Programmes, to introduce HKIC courses and prospects in
the construction industry. To reach a larger number of targeted
students, the HKIC also actively participated in various education
exhibitions, including the “HKIE Engineer Day” organised by the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the “Information Expo on
Multiple Pathways 2019” and the “25" Hong Kong International
Education Expo” by the Education Bureau. The HKIC also
participated in or organised more than 200 student recruitment
activities, reaching more than 7,000 recruitment prospects.

To communicate and promote the industry to secondary
schools, the HKIC's “STEM Alliance” programme has attracted
70 secondary schools and over 1,600 students to participate in
related activities since its establishment in 2018. “STEM Alliance”
organised two major activities in 2019, namely the "“STEM
Competition — Snowflake Puzzle Challenge” in April, and the
three-day “Construction Career X STEM Camp” in July. Apart from
STEM activities, the HKIC regularly arranged life planning talks
and HKIC campus visits, etc. for secondary schools in the year.
Whereas, the HKIC endeavours to promote courses to parents
and teachers, in 2019 it co-organised a “Parents & Teachers Talk”
with the Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups, and its first
“Teacher Development Day” with a secondary school.
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“Building Hong Kong, Building Your Future” Charter
Signing and Kick-off Ceremony
[(EEFE EEECIRPRBHERZREAN
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In recent years, the continued decrease in the number of
secondary school graduates has posed a challenge to the
student recruitment work of the HKIC. An early admission
scheme for Certificate in Construction, Diploma in Construction
and Advanced Diploma programmes were launched by the
HKIC in 2019. Promotion strategies were also diversified to
broaden the source of students to include young persons
seeking alternative employment. In 2019, the HKIC launched
the “Building Hong Kong, Building Your Future” Charter
Signing and Kick-off Ceremony to solicit support from local
property developers, contractors, subcontractors, government
works departments, industry associations and professional
organisations. It also helped to promote the “Building Hong
Kong, Building Your Future” videos produced by renowned artist,
“anothermountainman”, for the enhancement of the HKIC brand
and recruitment of students.

Education and Careers Expo 2019
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STEM Competition — Snowflake Puzzle Challenge
organised by “STEM Alliance”
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Construction Career X STEM Camp
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To enable students to find an ideal job in the construction
industry and help employers to hire suitable students flexibly,
the HKIC launched its online recruitment platform in 2019,
Career Portal, featuring a variety of functions and interactive
applications to optimise job searching procedures and
arrangements. Moreover, different strategies were formulated
for students of full-time courses and ethnic minority students.
These included the Career Advisory Scheme, aimed at
enhancing students’ employability and strengthening their basic
transferrable skills in the workplace, which, in turn, would help
them to transit seamlessly from study to work.

In addition to inviting the alumni and experienced construction
practitioners as career mentors through the popular “Build
Your Life Mentorship Programme”, for the first time the HKIC
also successfully arranged a 10-day construction site practice
scheme for construction diploma students in conjunction with
the promotion of the “Approved Technical Talents Training
Programme”. A high placement rate has been maintained with
almost 90% of the graduates of the HKIC's full-time courses
managing to secure employment after graduation.

In April 2019, an Employer Luncheon and Appreciation
Ceremony was held to acknowledge the support of employers
and commend those who staunchly supported the training
work of the CIC and HKIC. The opportunity was also taken to
promote the good culture in the industry and to share training
experience. The HKIC attaches great importance to maintaining
close connection with its graduates, thus the Alumni Lo Pan
Dinner was held in June 2019. In addition, the HKIC Graduation
Ceremony 2019 was also held in November with more than 500
students, parents and instructors sharing the joy of graduation.
In December 2019, the WorldSkills Competition Construction
Alumni Association was formed in the hope that the experience
of former players could be passed on.
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HKIC Graduation Ceremony 2019
019FF B EERERXHE

Alumni Lo Pan Dinner 2019 WorldSkills Competition Construction
09 RRENBE Alumni Association
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Employers Luncheon and Appreciation Ceremony 2019
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Other Administrative Tasks

A visit to Germany and Switzerland was arranged by the HKIC in
October 2019 for members of the Construction Industry Training
Board and Hong Kong Institute of Construction Management
Board. The purpose of the trip was to visit the vocational and
professional education institutes (mainly on skills training) in
these two countries so as to understand the training content
of vocational and professional education, the challenges faced
and the related solutions; and to understand the operation of
apprenticeship schemes in these two countries. The respective
dual system of vocational education and training in Germany and
Switzerland is considered highly effective in providing technical
talent to their countries. Members and the management
benefitted greatly from the visit, through which comprehensive
improvements will be made to the operation and programmes/
schemes of the HKIC and Apprenticeship Management
Department so as to enhance training effectiveness and attract
more new entrants to the construction industry.

Finally, the HKIC's logo was registered in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and the HKIC was also successfully registered as
a charitable institution under Section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance in 2019.
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Collaboration Scheme

In addition to full-time and part-time courses, the CIC offers
a variety of collaborative training schemes as supplementary
measures to fulfill the demands of construction tradesmen
and provide comprehensive and structured craft training to
construction practitioners. With the support of industry partners,
including main contractors, sub-contractors and labour unions,
the Collaboration Scheme cultivated 2,103 graduates in 2019.
Future focus will be placed on exploring and developing trades
that would benefit most from collaborative training.

(@) The Intermediate Tradesman Collaborative Training
Scheme (ITCTS) has been in operation for more than two
years. The two major elements of the scheme are initial
training provided by HKIC and on-site training provided
by employers. In 2019, Piling Operative (Bored Piling), Lift
Mechanic and six Specialist Marine Trades were included
in ITCTS in order to meet immediate demand from the
industry. Currently ITCTS covers more than 40 trades.

(b) In 2019, a review and enhancement of the Advanced
Construction Manpower Training Scheme — Pilot Scheme
(ACMTS) was completed. This included direct payment
of bonuses to trainees, introduction of an 11 to 19
day compulsory enrichment programme for ACMTS -
Structured On-the-job trainees and two-day compulsory
programme, namely “Foundation Certificate in Site
Instruction Techniques”, aimed at strengthening site
trainers’ teaching techniques.
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Throughout the year, 16 Recruitment Days were organised at
the Labour Department’s Construction Industry Recruitment
Centre, attracting the participation of 49 employers. The CIC
also co-organised three “Industry Overview for Special Trade and
Recruitment Day” events with social service agencies. Around
1,500 vacancies were offered throughout the year and 604 job
seekers took part.

Recruitment Day held at the Labour Department’s
Construction Industry Recruitment Centre
RETREZEZFREBERLETHRER
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Industry Overview for Special Trade and Recruitment
Day (Specialist Marine Work Trade)

In order to strengthen the relationship with employers
and enhance trainees’ understanding of the market, the
Collaboration Scheme Department organised five Employer
Sharing Sessions and four Trainee Sharing Sessions in 2019, with
more than 20 companies and 50 trainees participating.
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Collaborative Training Scheme Trainee Sharing Session
AtEEYIHERASTY

The CIC also organised an Employer Luncheon and Appreciation
Ceremony on 12 April to thank employers for their support for
our collaboration schemes and HKIC's full-time courses. Among
the ten awardees of the first Construction Industry Outstanding
Apprentice Award Presentation Ceremony held on 29 June 2019,
five individuals were from the Collaborative Training Schemes.
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Employer Luncheon and Appreciation Ceremony The 15t Construction Industry Outstanding
EXFEeEsrng Apprentice Award Presentation Ceremony
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Construction Industry Council Approved
Technical Talents Training Programme

The CIC is committed to promoting the development of the
innovative and inherent skills and capabilities of the industry
as a whole. In 2019, therefore, it established the Construction
Industry Council Approved Technical Talents Training Programme
(CICATP) to provide a comprehensive programme. This is in the
form of apprenticeships, which combine on-the-job training
provided by employers, and skill assessments and enhancement
training on construction safety, soft skills, innovation and
technology provided by HKIC. CICATP aims at training 1,100
graduates of full-time HKIC courses to become knowledge-based
Senior Tradesmen within five years.

CICATP requires employers to offer monthly salaries to trainees.
Apart from offering training allowances to trainees throughout
the two-year training period, the CIC also provides bonuses to
trainees upon their passing interim and final assessments, so as
to encourage continuous learning and skills enhancement. After
successfully completing the programme, trainees will be qualified
as Senior Tradesmen (Skilled Workers), providing an opportunity
to further develop their chosen careers as Trade Supervisors or
entrepreneurs.

The successful implementation of CICATP was the result of
strong support from relevant government departments and
industry stakeholders. CICATP has received a very positive
response since its launch in June 2019, attracting the
participation of around 200 graduates nominated by almost 60
employers.
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In order to promote the industry’s active participation in
apprenticeship training, the CIC inaugurated the “Construction
Industry Outstanding Apprenticeship Award” in 2019. This event
received enthusiastic support from industry stakeholders, with
more than 120 outstanding employees from 70 organisations
recommended to compete for the awards. After panel
interviews, a total of ten candidates were named as outstanding
construction apprentices.
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The ten “Construction Outstanding Apprentices” in their construction uniforms pose with

“construction pride” on their faces
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Numerous employers from the construction industry showed their
support for apprenticeship training by attending the Official Launch
Ceremony of CICATP
BEREFEREZTDHEACATPR B EUTHBREIRN I

A diversified enrichment programme is the strongest advantage
of CICATP
Z AL E N ZE R ECICATP R KE Y
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Trade Testing

In order to enhance the recognition of trade testing qualifications
in the construction industry, and to help candidates better
understand and prepare for trade tests, the Hong Kong
Construction Industry Trade Testing Centre (HKCITTC) carried out
the following works in 2019:

A. Qualification Recognition

1. Re-position as an Independent Qualification
Assessment Organisation

With the aim of affirming a clearer positioning and scope
of work, Aberdeen Trade Testing and Training Centre
(ATTC) was renamed as the Hong Kong Construction
Industry Trade Testing Centre (HKCITTC), effective from
October 2018.

“The Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade Testing
Centre Naming Ceremony and Open Day” was held
on 27 January 2019. Open Day activities included skills
demonstrations by WorldSkills competitors, trade testing
briefings and trade test workshop visits. 30 public
briefing sessions on trade tests for ten popular trades
were held, attracting more than 600 guests and visitors.
It successfully enhanced stakeholders’, workers’ and
students’ understanding of trade testing services and trade
test requirements.
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Naming Ceremony of Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade

Testing Centre
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Strengthening Industry Engagement

The HKCITTC aims to set the standards for skilled
construction workers in order to help the construction
industry select qualified skilled workers, and to boost
the standing of skilled workers through recognised
qualifications.

The HKCITTC took every opportunity to meet with
stakeholders to promote and enhance the understanding
of trade testing in the industry. In 2019, the HKCITTC
organised 28 visits, consultation forums and briefing
sessions for trade associations, individual employers, labour
unions, partner organisations and Ethnic Minority (EM)
organisations to promote trade testing services and deepen
their understanding of the purposes, functions and high
standards of trade tests.

Continued to Strengthen Effectiveness of
Trade Tests

The HKCITTC's core value is to provide equitable, reliable
and efficient trade testing services to the industry. The
HKCITTC continued to strengthen the effectiveness
of trade tests in 2019 through the following ongoing
improvement initiatives:

a. Reviewing trade testing assessment system — The
HKCITTC completed its review of the assessment
system in 2019, aimed at assessing candidates’
skill levels more comprehensively and objectively.
The HKCITTC chose two trades for pilot run, and
achieved satisfactory preliminary results;
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b. Introducing e-Written Test — The HKCITTC worked
with the IT department to develop the e-Written
Test System in order to streamline the written test
procedures and enhance the accuracy and efficiency
of scoring and marking of written tests. In 2019, the
system was introduced to trade tests, results showed
that candidates could adapt to this latest technology
easily; and

C. Reducing trade testing waiting time — the number
of trade tests conducted on Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays during the year was increased
by more than 20% as compared to those in 2018.
The HKCITTC made good use of existing resources
to maintain over 90% of trade tests with average
waiting time of within two months.

The HKCITTC will continue to make the utmost effort to

maintain a rigorous standard of service. The workflow of

trade testing and facilities will be further systematised and

enhanced in order to provide higher-quality and diversified

services to construction workers

4. Endorsement on the Adjustment of Trade

Testing Application Requirements

With a view to further enhancing the recognition of
trade testing qualifications and trade testing services,
as well as better utilising the trade testing resources,
the Construction Industry Training Board endorsed the
adjustment of trade testing application requirements. The
adjustment included raising the job experience requirement
and requirement on providing proof of working experience,
and encouraging candidates to receive comprehensive
training to equip them with better skills before taking a
trade test.
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The HKCITTC will further raise the standards of both
Intermediate Trade Tests and Trade Tests by adjusting trade
testing application requirements and introducing a written
test for Intermediate Trade Tests. These measures will be
effective from 1 January 2020.

In 2019, the HKCITTC organised 44 briefing sessions on
the adjustment of trade testing application requirements,
mechanisms on recognised training programmes and
recognised labour unions, in order to communicate details
of the adjustment and enhance the understanding of trade
test standards and services among industry stakeholders,
especially training institutes, employers and labour unions.
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The HKCITTC organised a number of briefing sessions for industry stakeholders

to outline details of the adjustment of application requirements
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Enroliment of the 1st Hong Kong Construction
Skills Competition for Competitors,
Supporting Organisations and Sponsors

The 1st Hong Kong Construction Skills Competition
(the Competition) will be held at the HKCITTC in 2020.
The main objectives for the Competition are to create
an atmosphere for the industry to identify and develop
construction workers as construction elites by elevating
their skills, and to recognise those workers with excellent
skills in their respective trades. The Competition will also
select Hong Kong representatives for the WorldSkills
Competition 2021 in Shanghai.

In 2019, the HKCITTC worked to promote the Competition,
recruit competitors and encourage the industry to
participate as supporting organisations and/or sponsors.
The Competition received tremendous support from the
industry, successfully recruiting more than 240 candidates.
More than 50 companies also registered as supporting
organisations and sponsors, which was far above
expectations.

Promotional leaflet for the 1t Hong Kong

Construction Skills Competition
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Worldskills Competition

The CIC nominated four HKIC graduates who won in
the Hong Kong Skills Competition to join the Worldskills
Competition which regards as the Olympic of skill trades
in Kasan of Russia in August 2019. The CIC determined
to enhance the skills level of construction and vocational
training of HKIC through this international competition.
Our Hong Kong competitors had benefited a lot through
competition and exchange on this international platform.
They also showcased professional skills of our Hong Kong
young practitioners to the world, set a good model for
the Hong Kong construction industry and brought the
international level of best practice back to Hong Kong.
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The CIC nominated four elites from the construction industry to participate

in the Worldskills Competition
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Candidate-oriented Service

Strengthening Exchange with Training
Course Providers

To promote a better understanding of trade tests, the
HKCITTC hosted 75 exchange sessions for examiners and
instructors (including instructors from HKIC, Collaboration
Scheme and other training institutes) in an effort to
establish efficient communication channels and build closer
relationships between different training institutes and the
HKCITTC.

Examiners shared their knowledge with all participants
regarding required standards, assessment criteria, trade
testing supporting services (especially test reading
in Cantonese and simultaneous interpretation in EM
languages), and the associated resources (such as trade
test tips videos, mock papers and reference materials
for written tests). These important trade-testing aspects
allow training institutes to effectively conduct courses
so that trainees are able to meet the requirements and
expectations of trade tests. The training institutes were
also encouraged to share these resources with their
members and trainees so that they were better prepared
for trade tests.
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The HKCITTC hosted exchange sessions for different training institutes regularly
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Enriching Materials for the Preparation of 2. L£EZ4HBHEMMRIEAH

Trade Tests and Promotion Materials EEEH

The HKCITTC produced and distributed various materials BEAREETEAAPLEIET

on preparation of trade tests through a variety of channels: ZIEBHER  BFBTRAEER
B E T #8H

a. Produced and uploaded 37 trade testing videos onto a.
the CIC YouTube Channel, including a promotion
video of adjustment of application requirements,
the HKCITTC trade testing workflow for candidates,
“Construction Trade Testing Agent” series, “Trade
Testing — Master Series” and Open Day highlights.
Through this, the HKCITTC aims to provide an easy-
to-understand approach for candidates to better
understand trade test requirements and standards;
and to gain inspiration and knowledge from skills

masters and role models;

The HKCITTC produced video to introduce the process
of trade tests
BEAREXETZEARPOERNRERRNEIEA
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Created interesting video to promote the
adjustment of application requirements

HELEHAEBNOFRAERERFERHE

¥

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ﬁiﬁ/ 173



OPERATIONAL REVIEW
% CEME

b. Designed and published a new “Trade Tests
Introduction Booklet” and application forms to
provide a comprehensive introduction to trade
testing. The Booklet covers trade testing services
and scope, application requirements and procedures,
trade test preparation tips, trade testing flow and
code of conduct for candidates;

New Trade Tests Introduction Booklet
EHITEBAGN T

C. Translated promotion videos and mock papers into
English and different EM languages to strengthen
the support for the non-Chinese speaking and EM
communities; and
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d. Designed, produced and placed various outdoor
banners, posters and leaflets at the CIC premises
(especially HKIC campuses, CIC Service Centres at
Kowloon Bay, Tsing Yi and Nam Cheong), labour
unions’ premises and various construction sites
for promotion of trade tests and adjustment of
application requirements so as to raise construction
workers’, HKIC students’ and public awareness of
trade testing, and its latest developments.

Widening Supporting Services to Ethnic
Minorities (EM) Candidates

The HKCITTC has been providing supporting services
to EM candidates since 2015. Since then, an increased
participation of EM candidates in trade testing has been
witnessed, accounting for about 25% of overall trade test
participation in 2019. It is envisioned that this will continue
to increase in coming years. As such, the HKCITTC stepped
up its own EM Service Teams' effort to extend the service
throughout the trade testing procedures and provide more
comprehensive services for the EM community:

a. 23 briefing sessions and workshop visits on trade
testing for EM organisations were held to enhance
understanding of trade test workflow, supporting
services, application requirements of trade test and
common mistakes;

b. More than 50 mock trade test papers in three EM
languages (Hindi, Nepali and Urdu) were available
on the CIC website to allow EM candidates to fully
understand test questions in their own languages;
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C. Established enquiry hotline and WhatsApp C.
communication channel to assist EM candidates in
their own languages. For example, helping them
apply for suitable trade tests, explaining the trade
test workflow and available preparation resources,
and alerting them of important details on the test
date; and

d. Delivered 530 simultaneous interpretation services d.
in EM languages during trade test briefings and

BARLBEERIEN
42 & WhatsApp 8 5 &
B ENLHERBEEERE
FIREWB - B E A&
REABNTEAR 7
BTS2 RE REHE
HAERRIRERITZAH
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trade tests to enhance communication between EM ZEREZAE ZHERE
candidates and examiners i
The HKCITTC will continue to explore cooperative BEAREZEIZARAPLOKE R
opportunities with EM organisations and encourage EM BROBGETEEBRTE EH#
candidates to participate in trade tests. g VWEESBHIHEKREZES

TR -

Organised several workshop visits for the ethnic minority communities

to enhance their understanding of trade test requirements
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Registration Services
Workers registration

The Construction Workers Registration is a statutory registration
scheme under the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 583) (CWRO) enacted in 2004. The Workers Registration
Office provided high quality workers registration services to
construction workers. There were 31,581 new and 64,262

renewal registration applications in 2019.
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Number of Number of

Registered Registered

Workers Workers

(as at 31/12/2019) (as at 31/12/2018)

HMIAAZ T AAK

Registration Category = fiit 38 5l (8 Z31/12/2019) | (# E=31/12/2018)

Registered skilled worker FEAER T 201,202 203,446

Registered skilled worker (Provisional) | & 24 £8 % T (B2 i) 1,410 1,481

Registered semi-skilled worker ARG T 30,642 29,119
Registered semi-skilled worker A 2R Rk T (BR B)

(Provisional) 13 8
Registered General worker AT A 245,778 246,944
Total 485t 479,045 480,998

Completion of Provisional Registration e FX R B =

The provisional registration was a transitional arrangement which
provided experienced workers an interim registration status
based on their experience since the enactment of the CWRO.
Considering that experienced workers were registered mainly
through the previous Senior Workers Registration Arrangement,
applications for provisional registration were closed on 30 June
2019 after consultation with industry stakeholders. This marked
a milestone for the development of workers registration.
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This year the CIC had achievements in three major areas, namely
workers development and welfare, workers registration analytics
and CWRO enforcement.

(a) Workers Development and Welfare

In 2019, the CIC initiated a comprehensive workers
development and welfare programme at the inaugural
Construction Workers Festival (CWF). The Launching
Ceremony of CWF and the Wealth Management Workshop
was held on 8 August 2019, officiating by Mr. CHAN Ka-
kui, Chairman of the CIC and Ir Kenneth MO, Chairperson
of the Construction Workers Registration Board. The
CWF not only showcased workers” workmanship, but
also provided a structured programme for workers’
continuous learning, and attracted young talent to join the
construction industry. With the theme ”Ignite Professional
Skills”, we held various events around wealth management
and innovative technology, to which registered workers’
families were also welcomed.

@® §/2019
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e Construction Appreciation Camp
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e ZCB x MiC Guided Tour
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@® 9/2019
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e Launching Ceremony of Construction Workers Festival and Wealth Management Workshop

e Guided Tour of Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade Testing Centre and Health Sharing Session

BRREXTEAATLSHERESZS

e Sharing on the Innovative Construction Technologies and CITAC Guided Tour

EHRENMKEEZE

@® 10/2019

® Seminar on the Retirement Planning for Construction Workers
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Innovative Construction Technologies and Seminar on Retirement Planning for

CITAC Guided Tour Construction Workers

EHEENREEZE s FORRET B RS AT &

Students fully engaged in the ice breaking game Students experienced craftsmanship in painting and
and learnt to cooperate and appreciate each other decoration in the Paint Taster Workshop

through activities RENMRBRIETTREIBRARTE
RSRASERKER EEEHEBEHEEIER

X &
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Group photo of award presenters, all awardees and their family members

Caring for the next generation of construction
workers

We held the first ever Construction Appreciation Camp
over two days and one night, targeting relatives of
construction workers and secondary school students who
were interested in the construction industry. Students were
able to acquire a comprehensive understanding of the
construction industry through interactive activities, thus
were able to better appreciate the professional skills of
their family members and take pride in their profession.

Scholarship for Family Members of Registered Construction
Workers (the Scholarship) aims to commend the family
members of registered construction workers for their
outstanding achievements in the Hong Kong Diploma
of Secondary School Examination. The Scholarship
also recognises construction workers’ efforts towards
sustainable development in Hong Kong while nurturing
the next generation of talent. A total of 246 applications
were received and 26 students were awarded in 2019.
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Apart from professional development, the CWRB had a
series of welfare programmes for workers.

Medical Examination Scheme and
Registration Outreach Services

The Medical Examination Scheme for Construction
Workers (MES) Outreach Team reaches workers directly
on construction sites. Registered workers only need to
pay HK$10 for a basic medical examination to assess
their health and ensure that they are physically fit for
working. The MES Outreach Team arranged visits to 125
construction sites and provided medical examination
services to 3,087 registered workers in 2019. Registration
services were provided in conjunction with the health
check to provide fingertip accessibility for workers to
renew their registration cards. The Outreach Team also
brought the latest news on the industry and CIC activities
to workers on site.
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MES Outreach Team visited a construction site to provide
services

BB NREMOE G T ETRE

Colleagues of Registration Office provided
outreach services to promote the CIC's activities
directly to workers
AMERERHINERBEEENIREER
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Seasonal gifts

Addressing the needs of workers, the CIC Service
Centres located at Nam Cheong, Tsing Yi and Kowloon
Bay distributed seasonal gifts to workers visiting Service
Centres all year round, including weekends and certain

public holidays.

Neck Sun Protector and Sun Sleeves

b7 1 18 = A0 b7 B8 T 4

Rechargeable Fans and Reusable Bags
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Calendar Cards and Red Packets

FERMAMZE

Cardholders promoting the easyJob App
HERIZEREANTE
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Exemption of Construction Workers
Registration and Renewal Fees

The registration or renewal fees for construction workers
costs HK$100 for a five-year validity. In line with the
support measures of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, the CIC is waiving the
construction workers' registration and renewal fees for
one year from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2020 to
relieve the burden of frontline construction workers.

Workers Registration Analytics

In order to provide insightful information to the public,
especially industry stakeholders, for effective planning
and analysis of manpower supply and training, Workers
Registration Department re-examined the workers
registration analytics model including telephone surveys.
The new analytics was presented in a dashboard format,
allowing interactive selection of different data for
examination. The dashboard was published on the CIC

website in 2019.

(b)
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Dashboard interface
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(¢) CWRO Enforcement

The CIC exercises the functions conferred by the CWRO
and shoulders the responsibility to enforce the statutory
requirements under the CWRO. We maintain a proactive
approach in raising the awareness of industry stakeholders
of their statutory obligations by means of education and
enforcement.

On the enforcement front, Inspection & Enforcement Team
conducted surprise inspections to regulate the compliance
of construction sites with the requirements of the
CWRO. The department also inspected the construction
registration cards of workers on construction sites to check
their compliance with registration requirements. In 2019,
the Inspection & Enforcement Team conducted a total
of 1,504 site inspections and 15,369 card inspections.
Apart from on-site inspections, the department conducted
compliance checks in relation to the submission of workers
daily attendance records (DAR). During the year, a total of
2,421 DAR were checked.

Subsequent to the compliance checks, the CIC took follow-
up actions by issuing a total of 312 summonses in 2019,
followed by prosecution of the suspected offenders.
Including the cases brought forward from the previous
year, 359 summonses resulted in convictions during the
year with fines ranging from HK$500 to HK$6,000. The
violations arose mainly from failure to submit DAR within
the statutory period, non-registered workers carrying out
construction work on construction sites and failure to
provide an electronic card reading device on construction
sites. Another 186 summonses arising during the year are
scheduled to be heard in 2020.

To enhance awareness and understanding of CWRO
requirements, 24 regular seminars about the requirements
of the CWRO and the operation of the Construction
Workers Registration System (CWRS) were held at the
CIC premises during 2019. In order to reach industry
stakeholders and provide effective education, 22 tailor-
made seminars were held at contractors’ venues, with the
management of principal contractors, subcontractors and
workers participating.
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Measures were put in place in the CWRS to remind
contractors of due dates of DAR submission. Moreover,
we produced electronic kits which included the major
requirements, common problems, and submission
procedure for DAR, as well as useful links. The electronic
kit was distributed to site controllers of principal contractors
to draw their attention to the importance of regulatory
compliance and help them understand their statutory
obligations under the CWRO. The CIC also continuously
sent electronic direct mails to contractors and relevant
stakeholders to deliver key messages as well as to enhance
the industry’s understanding of their legal obligations.
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Seminar on “Designated Workers for Designated Skills”
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Looking Forward

2019 was a challenging year for Hong Kong. The CIC showed care
toward registered workers and drove many strategic initiatives.
Looking forward to 2020, the CIC will continue to evaluate the overall
enforcement and outreach strategy to ensure effective implementation
of the statutory requirements of the CWRO; whilst the Construction
Workers Registration Board will take the lead in providing a high level
of support and welfare to all registered workers.
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Registered Specialist Trade Contractors
Scheme

Launch of the Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme

The Subcontractor Registration Scheme (SRS) had achieved wide
recognition since its inception in 2003. In 2018, a study on further
enhancement of the prevailing subcontractor registration mechanism
was completed by the University of Hong Kong. The study
recommended the establishment of the Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme (RSTCS).

In early 2019, the CIC organised four forums on the provision of the
RSTCS to bring stakeholders together for thoughtful discussion and
exchange of experiences and insights on the professional development
of subcontractors, sustainable employment prospects and ambitions
for competent subcontractors. The RSTCS also received the continued
supports from key employers such as the Airport Authority Hong
Kong, Hong Kong Housing Authority, Hong Kong Housing Society,
MTR Corporation Limited, Urban Renewal Authority, West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority and etc. for adoption in their projects.

Consequently, the RSTCS was successfully launched on 1 April 2019
with an overall aim to building a pool of professional and responsible
trade contractors with specialised skills through the recognised
registration system for the further development of the construction
industry. This represented the start of a new era in professional
development of local subcontractors.

AMEBEMTERAEESE

WHEMEMTEREESE

(HBEEEMHE)B2013FHHIAK - BE#
BEZRAESTE - BAEKNENR2018F EK
TEBRELERTY MBS - 2
FALCGEM B PIITE A B E D) (G &
EP

20195 7] FEBEMTHSEAE  ERD
ERE-E ROBBONEERBRNRET
REEXTRAGEREMERE  REEEZ
DEENHREREIRBRAMNOZRER
AMEIERSESTIERABBNFES
FOYRERETIREAS EHPEHE:F
BRBSEER BEFREZREE® BEREE
whe FEAHABERAR TMEREZRMA
NXERERERE -

BE1% - HEH2019F 4818 I8 F|+# 5 4
B BEEEBEARIUNTIMEE  BxE
ERMEAENFEMITERERER - UHES
BEENBRE  AAHMSBEBEREYTE
TERRME -

1% CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i i ¥ &



Registration Requirements and Designated
Trades

The RSTCS enhanced the subcontractor management mechanism by
collating aspects as applied to seven Designated Trades, i.e. demolition,
scaffolding, concreting formwork, reinforcement bar fixing, concreting,
erection of concrete precast component and curtain wall.
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Registered Specialist
Trade Contractors Scheme

The new RSTCS logo depicts the five core registration elements
of the RSTCS namely:

Safety — requires full-time personnel to possess appropriate safety
qualification and site safety record

Management — requires full-time director and technical staff
personnel to possess appropriate years of professional experience
and in compliance with the requirement for continuous professional
development

Job Experience - requires proof of satisfactory records of
construction work

Execution — requires long-term employment staff

Finance — requires sufficient levels of employed capital and working
capital.

This five-fold symmetrical design also portrays the high degree
of connectivity between the CIC, the Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors (RSTC) and the construction industry.

Registration

Since the launch of the RSTCS, the total number of registered
companies has continued to increase. As of 31 December 2019,
there were 1,573 Registered Specialist Trade Contractors (RSTC) and
4,674 Registered Subcontractors (RS) for a total of 6,247 registered
companies.
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Regulatory Actions

The Committee on RSTCS
registered companies including court convictions or violations of

instigates regulatory actions against

relevant laws, as well as breach of the Rules and Procedures of the
RSTCS. When there is a prima facie case, a hearing will be conducted
by the Committee on RSTCS and any regulatory actions imposed
will be published on the Scheme’s website. An independent appeal
mechanism is also established to handle appeal cases.

In the year of 2019, a total of 40 registered companies were
sanctioned, mainly in relation to violations of safety, wage payment
and MPF legislations. The concerned companies were subject to
penalties ranging from warning letters to suspensions of registration
from one to six months.

Communications and Publicity

The RSTCS also provides a platform for registered companies to
increase their exposure among a broader network of stakeholders. A
new website (www.rstc.cic.hk) was launched to display RSTCS details,
online registration form for RSTCS, notices of seminars and events,
registers of RSTC and RS with information on registered companies.
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Launched new dedicated website of Registered Specialist Trade Contractors Scheme
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To keep step with industry trends and enhance market competitiveness
of registered companies, the CIC launched a series of programmes and
initiatives aimed at strengthening its support to registered companies
in 2019:

Technical Seminars and Workshops

o Hosted different BIM Experience Workshops and MiC Display
Centre Visits to provide registered companies with a deeper
understanding of state-of-the-art BIM and MiC technologies in
the construction industry, and to raise industry awareness of
sustainable development of construction works.

Good Management Practice Seminar

o Organised a corporate governance seminar for key management
of registered companies, with a view to enriching their
understanding of best practices of corporate governance, as well
as the latest regulatory updates for quality corporate governance.
We were honoured to have Mr. Ricky LAI, the Chief Corruption
Prevention Officer of Independent Commission Against
Corruption and Miss Caroline NG, Divisional Occupational Safety
Officer of the Labour Department as speakers.

Induction Workshop

o Organised tailor-made briefing sessions for trade associations
and weekly workshops for applicants. These did to not only
enhance their understanding of the Scheme, and encourage
them to apply, but also enabled the CIC to consult stakeholders
and consider their views for review.

Visited Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade Testing Centre
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Corporate Services
Corporate Secretariat
Basic Functions

The Corporate Secretariat (C-SECT) provides secretarial services
and administrative support for the two highest-level bi-monthly
meetings, namely the Council and the Executive Committee,
with one conducted in even-number months and the other in
odd-number months. The C-SECT ensures the organisation’s
compliance with statutory and appointment requirements,
upholds the corporate integrity and governance standards, and
assists the Council on important policy decisions and strategic
directions.

The C-SECT improves the quality of meeting documents and
correspondence by implementing Grade Management for
secretariat staff.
procedures,

It also develops governance systems and
formulates corporate policies and guidelines,
prepares documentation framework and templates, as well
as providing regular training on relevant topics for staff.
For transparency and accountability, the C-SECT publishes
the bilingual booklets “Information for Council Members”,
“Corporate Governance Manual” and annual “CIC Major Work
Plans”. On a need basis, the C-SECT will be tasked with pilot
projects e.g. Consultation on Greater Bay Area opportunities,
Task Force on ethnic minorities, etc.
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Key Achievements in 2019 2019F M EEKR

WERK TIERATHRR:

The C-SECT made the following accomplishments:

The CIC was awarded the “Commendation on Corporate
Governance Improvements” under the category of “Self-
nomination Awards” by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. This is the first Corporate
Governance Award for the CIC.

The Task Force on Ethnic Minorities in Construction was
set up in April, to explore measures to attract more
ethnic minority workers to join and stay in the industry,
in collaboration with the Home Affairs Department and
the ethnic minority communities. A strategy paper on
training provision and recruitment opportunities for ethnic
minorities was submitted to the Council in December.

The C-SECT organised the CIC Greater Bay Area Industry
Forum in May. The event provided a platform for fruitful
exchange of views and attracted over 110 industry
stakeholders to participate. A summary of industry’s views
was submitted to the Government in June.

Informative publications, e.g. “Information for Council
Members” and “Corporate Governance Manual” were
reviewed and renewed. The preparation of the “"CIC 2020
Major Work Plans” was completed in late 2019 and the
booklet was published in early 2020.

On Grade Management, the C-SECT organised three
interactive training sessions, providing guidance on
bilingual writing skills and paper preparation for the
secretarial officers.
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6.  The following six guidelines and internal circulars were
published on the intranet:

o Operational Guidelines for the Policy on CIC
Members Overseas Visits;

o Modus Operandi of the Task Forces of Construction
Industry Council;

o Updates on Grade Management for Secretariat Staff;

o Mechanism on Collation of Views in Response to
Government Consultation Papers;

o Guidance Note on Staff Working Procedure
regarding Appointment of Members for Committees
and Boards of the Construction Industry Council;
and

o Handling of Memorandum of Understanding
Work Plans for 2020

Looking ahead, the C-SECT will continue to strengthen corporate
governance for the CIC and enhance the quality and standard
of the secretariat services. Departments will be encouraged to
put greater effort and commitment into areas of sustainability
and risk management.

As a pledge to drive for excellence and self-improvement,
we shall strive for more and higher level recognition in best
corporate governance via active participation and exchange in
prestigious award competitions.
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Corporate Communications
Basic Functions

The Corporate Communications Department (CCD) plays an
intricate role in strengthening the CIC's position as a strong
advocate of the construction industry. Focussed on promoting
the CIC as a pivotal organisation, fostering a sustainable, positive
and caring culture within the industry and building a positive
public perception, CCD establishes effective communication
channels with industry stakeholders and formulates strategic
publicity plans to maintain the CIC's excellent reputation both
internally and externally.

CCD is comprised of the Marketing team, Public Relations team,
Media Team, Construction Industry Sports and Volunteering
Programme (CISVP) team and Outreach Services team. The
department takes the lead in strategic planning for marketing,
promotional and CSR activities, managing external relations as
well as crisis management when required.

Key Achievements in 2019

Comprehensive Promotional Projects

CCD functions as an internal public relations consultant providing
professional marketing as well as event management advice and
support in order to align the brand identity and position of the
CIC across different platforms. In 2019, signature campaigns and

events included:

° Launch Ceremony of BIM Year 2019 & BIM Certification
and Accreditation Schemes

° CIC Innovation Award

o Opening Ceremony for the Safety Experience Training
Centre (SETC)

o Construction Industry Happy Run and Carnival 2019
o Construction Industry Uniform Roving Exhibition

o Launching Ceremony of Registered Specialist Trade
Contractors Scheme (RSTCS)
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o Construction Safety Week 2019

o Construction Industry 5-a-side Football Fun Day 2019

° WorldSkills Kazan 2019

o Construction Industry Volunteer Awards Scheme
o Lo Pan Service Month
o Launching Ceremony of CIC Sustainable Construction

Award 2020 and CIC Green Product Certification
o Construction Month 2019
o Construction Innovation Expo 2019
o Construction Sports Day and Charity Fun Day 2019
Brand building

CCD updates and adjusts the overall publicity strategies,
organises a series of signature events and launches the branding
and marketing campaigns of the CIC through the engagement
of various media channels, including traditional printed
media, electronic media, social media platforms, and outdoor
advertising and public transport campaigns.

In 2019, a number of key initiatives were launched to further
strengthen the CIC corporate standing in the industry and
community at large.
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“Construction Power 2019 Calendar” was well-received
and it won two Bronze Awards in Astrid Awards 2019 and
Questar Awards 2019 respectively. Following the success
of the 2019 Calendar, the 2020 Calendar was launched
in late 2019, generating a wave of positive feedback from
the public.
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Quarterly press conferences were launched in 2019 as a
means to disseminate key CIC initiatives systematically,
while three media luncheons were organised to maintain
strong relationships with media.

CCD develops a strategic publication plan to communicate
effectively with different segments of the industry and
other stakeholders. Feature stories about the industry
regularly published in Ming Pao and am730, the
Chairman’s blog and Executive Director’s message target
the public and industry in order to raise awareness of
the CIC and the construction industry in general. The
bi-monthly magazine, Construction Post, covers industry
news in a light-hearted manner to draw more interest to
frontline workers.

An new TV Announcement in the Public Interest (APIs)
was launched to promote the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction and construction training, thus projecting the
bright prospects of the industry.
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V. A website enhancement project was kicked-off in mid-
2019, with an aim to provide a positive user experience
and enhance the usability of the website with a series of
upgrades.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Construction Industry Sports and Volunteering
Programme (CISVP)

CCD promotes the CIC's corporate social responsibility and
cultivates a caring culture and healthy lifestyle within the
construction industry with the Construction Industry Sports and
Volunteering Programme (CISVP). Since the establishment of the
CISVP in 2016, over 300 sports and volunteering events have
been organised.

In 2019, a total of eight major sports events were held,
attracting the participation of over 5,480 industry practitioners
and members of the public. The key volunteering activities
include the Construction Industry Volunteer Awards
Presentation Ceremony, in which a total of 40 construction-
related organisations and 17 NGOs took part. Besides, CISVP
organised and participated in 94 volunteering activities, with
5,950 volunteers providing a total of 15,697 service hours. In
addition, the “Construction Industry Caring Organisation” Logo
Scheme was launched to enhance the public awareness of the
corporate social responsibility and good deeds of construction
organisations.

Further details of the work of CISVP are set out in the chapter
of Sustainability Report of this Annual Report.

Stakeholder engagement
Industry Stakeholders

CCD promotes the CIC's new initiatives and strengthens its
image by organising industry-wide events, such as quarterly CIC
Construction Luncheons and periodical Breakfast Round Table
Meetings. These regular gatherings provide an excellent platform
for leaders of the industry to exchange views on relevant industry
topics.

The CIC Outreach Services Team was set up in late 2017 to
establish solid lines of communication with frontline workers.
The team conducts daily briefing sessions at construction sites
and contractor’s training centres to deliver key messages relating
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to safety information, industry news, HKIC courses and CIC
happenings to workers. As of December 2019, the team had
conducted over 750 briefings and reached out to over 23,000
workers.
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Government and Overseas Counterparts

The CIC values its relationship with the HKSAR Government,
the Mainland and overseas counterparts around the world.
CCD serves as a liaison unit to regularly organise meetings and
guided tours at CIC campuses and training grounds, providing
a networking platform for the CIC, industry participants and
stakeholders in Hong Kong and overseas to exchange views
and share experiences. In addition, five meetings with legislative
council members were organised to better relay the concerns of
the industry to lawmakers.

Invited by the Center of Science & Technology and Industrial
Development of the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the People’s Republic of China, the CCD
participated in the 18" China International Housing Industry and
Building Products and Equipment Expo held in Beijing 2019, with
CIC Senior Management and a CITAC delegation joining the
Opening Ceremony and Conference.
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Human Resources and Administration
Corporate Culture

The CIC strives to excel across its scope of functions and to
explore new ways to improve year on year while growing its
responsibilities on behalf of the construction industry. “Caring,
Integrated, Committed” are identified as the core values for CIC
staff.

The CIC Corporate Culture Fun Night was successfully held on
2 August 2019 with the participation of more than 900 staff
and their family members. The Fun Night witnessed the official
launch of the CIC Corporate Culture Building journey and 30
Culture Champions were nominated from various departments to
cultivate the CIC core values amongst colleagues. Afterwards, a
series of Team Building and Corporate Culture workshops were
held for all levels of staff and the Culture Champions.

"You are Marvellous” campaign and the “CIC Achiever Awards”
were rolled out to reinforce the CIC's core values. A number of
“Care for the Society” activities were held and supported by
staff and their family members, including visits to elderly homes
and single elderly persons, street fundraising activities, Blood
Donation Week, etc.
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The CIC Corporate Culture Fun Night witnessed the official launch of the CIC
Corporate Culture Building journey and the commitment to the core values of
“Caring, Integrated, Committed”
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Talent Development

The CIC engaged the University of Hong Kong to organise a
12-day Leadership and Management Training Programme for 30
management staff of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
(HKIQ).

The Certificate in Learning and Teaching programme was
attended by 231 teaching staff, of whom 218 also attended
the Continuous Learning Programme to further enhance their
learning and teaching skills.

A number of training workshops on performance management
and coaching were held for around 80 senior management and
management staff.
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HKIC Leaders completed the Leadership and Management Training Programme organised by the

Education University of Hong Kong
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Enhanced Measures for Automation and
Energy Saving

Further energy saving and automation efforts were also made
in 2019. Multifunction Devices (MFD) in all CIC offices were
upgraded in 2019. The new MFD has a “Follow You Print”
feature to enable staff to access to printing facilities in all CIC
premises, while functions have also been added to reduce the
volume of colour printing.

An improved monitoring system has also been included in the
MFD which provides real time report on paper usage, energy
consumption and CO2 emissions in support of the formulation
and implementation of green policies for the CIC.

Corporate Safety

Training sessions were held for staff to enhance their safety
awareness through sharing of real-life accident cases, in
particular selected high-risk cases on work-above-ground and
fatal accidents.

The online accident reporting workflow was launched in 2019
to shorten accident reporting time, facilitate case monitoring,
archive case documents and support the paperless office.

A Self-learning safety package was introduced to staff for
acquiring basic safety knowledge encountered in their daily
work. Topics included safety in manual handling, display screen
equipment and personal protective equipment.
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Meeting Challenges

The CIC, likewise Hong Kong society at large, has been
facing unprecedented challenges in 2019. Human Resources,
Administration and Corporate Safety had been working closely to
support various departments to implement measures to ensure
the safety of colleagues and students, and to minimise the
effects on CIC services provided to the public.
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The CIC Annual Dinner 2019 was an annual occasion for staff to get together after a year's hard work to enjoy an

evening full of fun and laughter
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Estates Office

The core functions of the Estates Office (EO) involve the
furnishing, upkeep and enhancement of the facilities of the CIC
within two major aspects, facilities management and capital
project, in support of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction
(HKIC), Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade Testing Centre
(HKCITTC), Construction Innovation and Technology Application
Centre (CITAC), CIC = Zero Carbon Park (CIC-ZCP), CIC Service
Centres and back offices.

The ultimate mission of EO is to build up and promote not only
a pleasant, safe and hygienic environment for students, users
and colleagues, but also the standardisation, customisation, and
sustainable environment for buildings.

For facilities management, EO is responsible for routine, planned
and lifecycle maintenance services for common building services,
building structures, landscaping and F&Es; statutory compliance
checking and upkeep; and license renewal. For capital project,
EO is tasked with optimising space utilisation, contracting and
project management of revamp works, A&A Work and new
development works and Building Information Modelling (BIM)
participation.

Core Values

EO aims to provide the highest standard of facilities management
services in building services, ground repair and maintenance, as
well as the professional project management services of various
capital projects in order to uphold the core values of the team.

Key Achievements in 2019

EO managed to successfully execute a wide range of duties
and commitments in 2019, including several revamp and
new development projects for the HKIC so as to support the
sustainable development of the CIC.
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ciCc

BIM Space

Establishment of the new office and the CIC BIM Space
located on L29, Enterprise Square Five in Kowloon Bay.

CIC BIM Space project achieved "GOLD” rating in BEAM
Plus Certification by the Hong Kong Green Building
Council.

Hong Kong Institute of Construction

ciCc

Renovation work of Safety Team Office at Kwai Chung
Campus was completed.

Demolition works of Sha Tin Training Ground was
commenced.

Master plan for the development of the HKIC's Tai Po
Campus was completed.

The existing training ground tenancies were extended in
2019. In terms of new applications, the technical feasibility
studies of the various sites were completed. The feasibility
studies of Lam Tei site targets to submit the Town Planning
application by Q1 2020.

Main Contract for Renovation Works at Hong Kong
Institute of Construction — Kowloon Bay Campus, Kwai
Chung Campus and Sheung Shui Campus was commenced
in November 2019 with target completion by end of
October 2020.

- Zero Carbon Park (CIC - ZCP)

CIC-ZCP renovation and audio visual system upgrade works
at Multi-purpose Hall and Eco-plaza were completed.

Others

The Estates Office Management System was established
and launched.
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Work Plans for 2020

In 2020, EO will continue to diligently perform its supportive and
constructive functions, including:

o Development of the HKIC's Tai Po Campus

o Upgrading projects for various HKIC Campuses

o Comprehensive statutory compliance study and subsequent
rectification works

sustainable facilitates and comfortable work
environment to all HKIC Campuses, HKCITTC, CIC Services
Centres, CITAC, CIC-ZCP, Headquarters and Back Offices

o Providing

Long Term Goals

In the long term, EO will ensure that health and safety, environmental

sustainability and innovation initiatives are committed and
implemented in various capital projects throughout planning, design
and construction stages. EO also aims to streamline the operation
flow and enhance the request lead time of building facilities repair
and maintenance in order to enhance operational efficiency and meet

user expectations.
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Information Technology

As the centre with professional knowledge on information technology,
the
for formulation of the CIC's IT development strategies, IT risk

Information Technology Department (ITD) is responsible
assessment and security control, as well as design and management
of the Enterprise Architecture, including the applications, data and
infrastructure to meet the Council’s business requirements and growth.
While facilitating users to enjoy the benefits of emerging technologies,
ITD ensures appropriate IT services are delivered to end users, studies
their requirements and recommends the best path to fulfillment. ITD
also manages and ensures that IT vendors and service providers deliver
their services according to the specified requirements in terms of time,
cost and quality.

Key achievements in 2019
Website, web portals and Apps

o Deployed various web portals for promotion, information
sharing and online application, including Construction Workers
Festival Portal, Construction Innovation Expo 2019 website, CIC
Sustainable Construction Award 2020 website, CIC Construction
Innovation Award assessment platform, and Procurement
Qualified Vendor List online platform.

o Released the Registered Specialist Trade Contractors Application
Portal to automate the registration and assessment process.

o Enhanced easylob mobile app to support additional trade
categories and job posting capabilities.

o Enhanced Daily Attendance Record app to alert workers who are
using non-activated new cards.

Management System

o Launched Training Management System to streamline the
information flow and operation process related to Recruitment,
Training and Career Placement.

o Enhanced Trade Test Management System to support e-Written
Test with various difficulty of questions and passing calculation
functions.
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New initiatives

o New storage appliance was implemented to provide larger
mailboxes and additional file server space for documents and
email archive.

o Agreed an Autodesk authorised training centre approach with
the vendor for the CIC BIM Space to avoid expensive BIM
software license.

o Deployed the cost-saving, easy and flexible video conferencing
solution based on Skype to replace the tradition Video
conferencing setting.

o Deployed Computer-based IT security awareness training to
enhance users’ security awareness.

Work plans for 2020

o Develop a new IT application system and mobile app to
manage the entire registration and administration process of the
Technically Competent Person Registration Scheme (TCPRS) in
order to provide a more user-friendly service to the public.

o Build a network and security infrastructure for the classrooms
and teaching facilities in various campuses of HKIC to provide
centralised account management, document storage and internet
environment.

o Deploy a new portal and launch a new mobile app for the School
of Professional Development in Construction to provide various
course information and materials and to facilitate on line course
enrollment.

o Upgrade the reporting tool for the CIC's financial results through
Business Intelligence for better monitoring of the CIC's financial

performance.

o Implement IT solutions to reinforce the CIC's cyber security.
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o Upgrade the Trade Test Management System and apply the
e-Written Test and e-Survey platform for most of the trades to
improve system performance and offer better user experience.

o Revamp the Levy Assessment and Collection System to enhance
the levy collection process and increase work efficiency.

o Upgrade the Enterprise Resource Planning System to facilitate
electronic submissions by vendors and allow access through
mobile devices.
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Internal Audit

Basic Functions

The primary role of the Internal Audit Department (IA) is to assist
management in carrying out its responsibilities of maintaining a
comprehensive system of internal controls so as to safeguard the assets
and interests of the CIC.

The Department facilitates management’'s evaluation of the

effectiveness of financial and operational controls, makes
recommendations to assist management in maintaining a strong
environment for which they are responsible, and monitors compliance

with relevant legislation and regulations.

Using risk-based methodology, a three-year internal audit plan is
formulated. This covers review of all key controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management
functions. The three-year plan is made in view of the significant risks
and/or exposures identified where applicable.

IA performs monitoring activities to evaluate whether processes,
initiatives, functions and/or activities are operating as designed and
suggests improvement initiatives where appropriate.

The Department reports quarterly to the Audit Committee as to its
on-going activities, audit progress and results, where applicable, or
more frequently as circumstances require.

Consultants may be deployed to provide services in specialised areas
such as information technology, when required.
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Key Achievements in 2019

IA completed the following audit projects:

1. Collaboration Scheme Department

2. Construction Innovation Technology and Application Centre
3. Corporate Communications Department

4. Career Support Services Department

5. Finance Department

6.  Construction Innovation and Technology Fund operation

7. Risk assessment

All key findings and recommendations were communicated, discussed
and followed up with the process owners in a timely manner.

During the year, an external consultant was engaged to carry out
consultancy/internal audit services on project management for the CIC.

Works Plan for 2020

IA shall carry out the scheduled audit assignments in accordance
with the approved three-year audit plan to promote good corporate
governance.

Long Term Goals

The Department identifies a number of critical success factors and
strives for continued excellence in the following areas:

(1) integrity and professionalism;

(2) competence and expertise;

(3) adding value;

(4) efficiency and effectiveness; and

(5)  building rapport and trust.

Working as a valued and trusted partner of management, the

Department aims to benchmark the best practices within the
profession.
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Procurement

Basic Functions

The primary function of the Procurement Department is to support the
CIC's operations by understanding its business requirements, managing
internal transactions for ordering and receiving goods and services
and handling procurement data. The main objective is to maximise the
efficiency of transaction flow and reporting.

The Procurement Department also:

o Manages the procurement process and supply base effectively
and efficiently by evaluating and engaging vendors, determining
the most appropriate method in contracting processes and
identifying new potential suppliers and developing relationships
with them.

o Manages internal operations by developing and maintaining
procurement policies and leveraging appropriate technology and
systems.

o Develops integrated purchasing strategies by monitoring supply
markets and trends, identifying critical materials and services
requirements to support the CIC's overall corporate strategies
in key performance areas and to develop supply options and
contingency plans that support the organisation’s plans.
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Key Achievements in 2019
In 2019, the Procurement Department accomplished the following:
1. Management of major tenders including:

. Consultancies for (i) Architecture, (i) Quantity Surveying
and (i) Topography, Underground Utilities and Tree Survey
for the new Tai Po Training Centre Development;

. Consultancies for (i) Reasonable Construction Periods
for Building Projects and (ii) Accreditation Scheme for
Construction Robotics;

° Renovation and Fitting-out Works at (i) existing three
HKIC Campuses, (i) Nam Cheong Service Centre and (iii)
CIC = Zero Carbon Park;

o Feasibility Study and Planning Application for Lam Tei
Training Ground,;

o Application System Development for Technically
Competent Person Registration Scheme (TCPRS);

. Event Management and Production Services for (i)
Construction Innovation Expo 2019, (ii) CIC Construction
Month 2019, (iii) Construction Industry Sports Day and
Charity Fun Day 2019 and (iv) Construction Industry Happy
Run and Carnival 2020;

. Term Consultancy for (i) Legal Services and (ii) Quantity
Surveying Services;

o Demolition Works of Existing Buildings at Shatin Training
Ground;

o Term Repair and Maintenance for E&M Works and
Landscape Works; and

o Supply of Loose Furniture for HKIC Campuses.

2. Launching an updated Procurement Manual which lays down
various policies and procedures;
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3. Establishment of a Qualified Vendor List (QVL) for “Event
Management and Multi-Media Design Services” Category;

4. Technical Audit for Compliance of Direct Purchase Procedure,
Project Delays (Year 2017-18) and Compliance of Contract Plans
(Year 2016-18);

5. Quarterly Vendor Performance Reviews;

6. Revamp of Business Travel Agency List; and

7. CIC Vendor Survey.

Work Plans for 2020

For 2020, the Procurement Department has the following objectives:

o Upgrade the Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System to

facilitate electronic submissions by vendors and to allow access
by mobile devices to enhance efficiency and accuracy;

o Perform Technical Project Review and Audit for ongoing CIC

projects; and

o Conduct Vendor Engagement Sessions and Surveys for better
understanding of vendors’ capabilities and expectations.
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Finance

The Finance Department supports the CIC with a wide spectrum of
finance functions, including financial and management reporting,
budgeting and forecasting, levy assessment and collection, strategic
planning and decision support, treasury and investment management,
financial analysis, company secretarial work, bank account operations
and all finance related projects.

The Finance Department arranges statutory audit with external auditors
and reports the audited financial statements to the Audit Committee.
It compiles annual budgets, performs budgetary controls and monitors
business performance. It administers the assessment and collection of
construction levies payable by contractors on the value of construction
operations under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance and
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance.

It provides secretarial and decision support to the Investment Task
Force in formulating investment strategies and monitoring investment
performance. It implements systems to enhance the finance and levy
operations, and also proactively adopts relevant electronic services
for the benefit of various stakeholders. It conducts process reviews
to streamline efficiency and service delivery. In addition to company
secretarial support for the subsidiaries of the CIC, it develops and
executes internal control policies and procedures for all finance and
accounting matters.

Core Values

o Reposition from service providers to business partners;

o Align Finance capabilities with the CIC’s goals;
. Focus on activities that drive business outcomes; and

o Strive for high standards of corporate governance, professionalism
and integrity.
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Key Achievements in 2019

1.

10.

11.

Set up the tax exemption for Hong Kong Institute of
Construction (HKIC) under Section 88 of Cap. 112 Inland
Revenue Ordinance with approval by the Inland Revenue
Department in August 2019.

Dispensed with the word “Limited” in the Company’s name of
HKIC under Section 103 of Cap. 622 Companies Ordinance with
the approval by the Companies Registry in July 2019.

Set up Jetco collection channel in HKIC campuses to facilitate the
collection of fees from students via automatic teller machines.

Appointed an investment adviser with the aim to diversify
our investment portfolio; and raised the investment return
from 2.0% in 2018 to 2.6% in 2019, increasing interest and
investment income by HK$16.5 million against last year.

Conducted quarterly financial review and exercised stringent
budgetary control resulting in savings in various expenses, such
as general and administrative expenses and advertising and
publicity expenses.

Strived to improve the efficiency of levy operations to minimise
the impact from the decline in levy income due to the delay in
appropriation for public works, and achieved 97% of 2019 levy
income budget.

Commenced the development of a new Levy system 2.0 to
revamp the entire process of levy assessment and collection with
enhanced functionality and efficiency.

Promoted and increased usage of online credit card payments
as means of collection for a variety of events, such as CISVP
activities, conferences, seminars, courses, etc. Such income
is collected more efficiently from the public with reduced
administrative effort.

Continued to promote e-Payment to the CIC's suppliers
for settlement of invoices for operational efficiency and
environmental sustainability, and set up mandatory e-Payment
with designated new vendors.

Conducted a holistic review on pricing for services provided by
CIC and advised on the calculation methodology for a unified

percentage of overhead costs.

Optimised the workflows of finance modules in ERP system.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
CEME
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CIC Sustainability Framework
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3 Intelligence
&

The CIC operates its business intelligently and it strives to promote wider
adoption of innovation and advanced technology among the industry with
its Industry Development branch positioned as an Innovation Hub.

BEXZE EERERAEESENF LEBEEU/BIFHONT
XERR BOMIXRERCEMAAIFBZ -



& SUSTAINABILITY

REPORT
MHERRES

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) strives to be an industry
leader driving toward unity and excellence on sustainable construction
in Hong Kong, and, in doing so, cultivates a culture of sustainability
into all aspects of our business. Sustainability policies and targets
are formulated under the CIC Sustainability Framework: Resources,
Talent, Intelligence and Culture. The Sustainability Working Group
was established in 2018 to formulate, implement, monitor and
review the sustainability initiatives developed for the CIC's business

BEXZERE)HNIRBITREM  ED
EAREXBENEEZERARAFAAER]
FERENOR  BUS T RERRUCE
ARBMEBERET - RMEBREARF
BRRER HTER AT BEEXL
P05 ER AR B RBORMB R - 1702018
FRUAFEZRIENE AEHE B
I~ BERRmE ARG EHE MR R

operations. BERRER
CIC Sustainability Framework
BiEEZENIFEEZEIELF
RESOURCES INTELLIGENCE
2= 0 &b
"B TALENT L CULTURE
/2 \ AT 34 |4

000

\W/ %$

&

Energy BER Smart technology &8
Paper # R Big data K&i%
Materials #):%} Talent development and Innovation 8% Safety culture 22X 1t
attraction for staff and Caring culture for
industry practitioners community
EBIRERRERN BB

AT IBIRIER
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Resources BR

The CIC makes the best use of resources by improving enerqy ZEXZCEBEAZRELAIFEE I
efficiency, conserving resources and reducing waste through smart, HIF[#HEIE3| - BN SRSz 1R E
innovative technology and the formulation of guidelines. BRERLEY  tMEINSZSRAERNERE -

O kWh' electricity saved in
2019 (16%? of total electricity consumption)
20194 2L & O 39 -| 68 TRE'EN (EREEMN16%?)

Indoor Environment and Well-being ERIRBEER

The renovation works of CIC BIM Space and the office at Enterprise ‘fF@RiE X3 e@Za o BBTHLCEXE
Square obtained a Gold rating of BEAM Plus Interiors assessment 2 A A=EH T2 - FrELAMERM -
in 2019. Furnitures, walls, ceilings and carpets were from accredited & « XIER LB EHEAIBESEDE
environmental manufacturers and existing furniture were reused. More &It ESS EEYWHBEBER W AR
than 90% of workstations have access to outside views. BO0% M TIEULIRME PN EE - WWIBEES
019FZRERAZNELDTRRE -

Natural lighting illuminants office space Reused existing furniture

NSRS = R v EiE B A RE EM

1 Figure based on the electricity savings from LED lightings at CIC ' RIE2019F1AZE2019F 12 A Hif - & &
headquarters building with a comparison with T5 fluorescent tube XFZeuHmn ”Hﬁ%ﬁHLEDE BA % &t e
from January 2019 to December 2019 TSHEMAEEL R TE DI EIE

2 Figure based on the total electricity consumption of 252,505 kWh 2 RIE2019F 1 AE2019F 12 A M EE 2
at CIC headquarters building from January 2019 to December 2019 %@,ﬁ@ A= BB E£252,505F R

15 bt B8R
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Renewable Energy

The new glass canopy at the Eco-Café at CIC — Zero Carbon Park (CIC
— ZCP), the first air improvement photovoltaic system in Hong Kong,
generates renewable energy from sunlight and decomposes particulate
matter (PM 2.5) and volatile organic compounds. Its self-cleaning
capability greatly reduces maintenance costs and efforts, and boosts
power generation performance by 5%. The system is manufactured
using environmentally friendly materials which have been recycled and
reused.

Paper

For paper saving, the Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade
Testing Centre (HKCITTC) not only launched electronic written tests
and electronic surveys, but also a SMS notification service for test
application receipts and reminders. Together with the introduction of
electronic forms for the Qualified Vendor List (QVL) registration for all
procurement services, a total of 124,000 sheets of paper were saved.

Materials

The CIC recycles and donates training materials on a regular basis. The
CIC also incorporate an intensive usage of safety helmets each year.
Recycling areas were set up within the premises to encourage users
to take part in the upcycling of expired or damaged safety helmets,
turning waste into other usable plastic products. A total of 776 expired
or damaged safety helmets were collected in 2019.

The Air Improvement Photovoltaic Glass Canopy at CIC — ZCP
BEXETRAMBANERFIEAGRKERE]

BARIR

BEEETHR AR AWE-Cafée KR TIER
FEARGREBRE] B2 EEA LA
RABERREBLERR  FEDRBRET
KA (BE25MAUAT) REZEEA RS
M KGR - REHRFNEAKREET
RERAMETE  THEBEEERTT5% ° It
AGMENERBANRRYHMRE -

MR

BREFHERAEAN  BEEEREXTEA
APOTELETMSERMBMRE > ATE
BHAPAEEERMBARIEE - N EHE
BEATETFRZETAERHEEBQVL
I A HETE T124,0009R 4 -

%

S THRBRREMBABREEIDE - 1H -
HRBESFHAEERALEE  AE
INBERESARELEERKAE &
BERELSEMABENLTE2E - M
BELLZE2EARBESERNERER -
FE20194F - TP H W E T776TRB IR
BHRZ 2R -

Recycling spots for safety helmets
2 1RO K AE

Zy CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL & ¥ &g



Almost 100 industry-wide events are organised by the Construction
Industry Sports and Volunteering Programme (CISVP) annually,
attracting participation from 10,000 industry practitioners. The CIC
incorporated green elements into its events, for example, the provision
of water stations, reusable utensils and adoption of e-registration
forms.

The Way Forward

The CIC introduced the Estates Office Management System which
aims to enhance automation and raise efficiency for repair and
maintenance works, project and space management of the CIC
offices and campuses. The CIC will launch the Sustainability Data
Management System to collect and monitor sustainability data such
as energy consumption and recycling in a more systematic way.

The CIC Green Product Certification launched in 2019 enables
building and construction practitioners to make informed
decision on selection and procurement of products and
materials with minimal environmental impact. While internally,
the CIC is now formulating a Green Procurement Policy with
recommendation on product and service specifications to
encourage our staff to take environmental and health concerns
into account when making procurement decisions

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AFERRRE
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Talent

The CIC optimises its talent development programme for industry
practitioners through the Hong Kong Institute of Construction (HKIC)
training courses and the Hong Kong Construction Industry Trade

Testing Centre (HKCITTC) trade tests.

AT

REXZEERTARESRRNFIRE
REARERTEAAT OO TEARR
ELEBICREROATER -

290,151
h / training places provided by HKIC in 2019/2020

é%@%%ﬁmmwmwig%ﬁ&%

90,-' 5] 5314

Q 2 0,9-' 5 trade tests conducted in 2019
2019%F 31T QEU 20,9] 5 R T2,

Industry Practitioners

Construction workers are the cornerstone of the construction industry.
The CIC organised the “Construction Workers Festival” (Festival) which

aimed at:

i) Enhancing the professional image of construction workers;
ii) Developing positive perceptions of the construction industry

among young people; and

iii)  Recognising workers for building a sustainable society.

A series of seminars and events under the Festival were organised such
as Construction Appreciation Camp, health sharing and retirement

planning session.

XRAMKE
RETRUEEAREXRREE Rt
BERRMEET RS L

) MBREETROEEHR:

i) WESABSEEMREERS R

i) BAIRHERABSEZRTLENE
Eﬁ o

(RETRGIAEREEBBRRERE
¥ RESTEREE RN BB H
HEE—ERED -

2? CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



A Consultancy for Workforce Analytics for the Construction Industry of
Hong Kong was engaged in 2018 to refine the data analytics model.
With a structured data model in place, the worker data shall provide
insightful information on manpower resources as well as different
types of performance indicators to measure specific goals across all
sectors of the construction industry.

Employees

The CIC
opportunities to nurture a well-trained and highly motivated

is committed to providing staff with development

workforce. A Staff Development Scheme has been in place to subsidise
and encourage staff to further develop, with HKCITTC- and HKIC-
organised training and sharing sessions aimed at helping enhance staff
knowledge.

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, Chairman of CIC, led the workers and
guests to practise Baduanjin at the Launching Ceremony

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
TEHEERRRE

EEN0BFRRTABREXREH NN
BRERE - AR BESTHAE - ERLQR
ERBBEEBRRYE RREXTAEES

AMANERER  ARFESEERIEST
NEEXERASERMERNARER

=N

FERNAEBEIRMBINEERLE - KK
BEN-—SIREE  ZWBEINEK - &
ERUTIETRERE] UEMEKHEE
T#E WEBBBREXFTIZANHAPOLR
EAREERABIRNWEIRSZES - 1L
MM EENE -

A training session at HKCITTC
BEREREXTERFAPTOIFIGEE

of the Construction Workers Festival
EEEZRSIERIPWEIENIEETIRHIREE L
HEIRNMZERE\KRIS

The Way Forward

HKIC is preparing for accreditation and qualifications framework
for Certificate in Construction Programme in 2020 to ensure high
quality training.

RERRK

BAREBR TEETEM0202F2E
BERENREREFEER - ABRKRRE
NEERER-
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Intelligence

The CIC operates our business intelligently by promoting and applying
smart and innovative technology, and big data analytics through MiC
Display Centre, BIM Training Centre, CIC — Zero Carbon Park (CIC
— ZCP), Construction Innovation and Technology Application Centre
(CITAC) and across the CIC.

=2

REHNERERCEREF  BBAKS
R EERRFT O (EER) ERESEH
BRI BEETHORM - AR R
RERTFLAERERERXZS  HEEH
BIFT R RBEBOMEMAESLERM -

Sharing of
new technologies to 'j\;_\bz’ ) -| 98, O 0 0

BB AT AL -
REEBREEIRL AR |5AY ]
BEXRTRAMME C=>

ERNESE
P DERAEHE

industry practitioners through CITAC,
BIM Training Centre, MiC Display
Centre and CIC — ZCP

Innovation

CIC BIM Space was established in 2019 as a knowledge hub
to demonstrate BIM applications via government departments,
developers, various consultants and contractors. A variety of cutting-
edge BIM technologies were displayed in the CIC BIM Space.

CIC BIM Space
REXAOEEERERER

=
BREXZS 818 #7228 7020194 AX

AvAR J?é.‘ﬁ%ﬂlﬁx“uBFEJ CERP - BRERAR
HEZEEEERLONER KRRIRIA
REEEERBAMENANAEE -
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CIC = ZCP introduced Hong Kong's first Electrical and Mechanical
Modular (emMiC) for
Conditioning System. The stormwater inside the culvert runs at around

Integrated Construction Stormwater Air
20 degree Celsius and serves as an excellent condensing medium for
the air conditioning system. It is the first cooling system in Hong Kong
to use underground stormwater as a cooling agent, making for energy
consumption of 50% less than a traditional air-cooled system.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
AFERRRE

BEXTMAMELRTEEEAKEERS
FRRI7KZET R L - BB MBS THEERERA
MRKEBHABR MKNBREORRE
K20 - SERBEARELSRRGHLAHE -
ERBBEEM T R/KIERSANE R F
BoBRESHNELERBEC%MER

Electrical and Mechanical Modular Integrated Construction for Stormwater Air

Conditioning System at CIC — ZCP

RREXZTHMRMANBEERSKRKERHRZR

Jointly organised by the CIC and the Development Bureau, the
Construction Innovation Expo 2019 (ClExpo) ran from 17 to 20
December 2019 attracted over 23,800 visits and participation from
228 exhibitors from 15 countries and regions. The ClExpo 2019
featured four key themes, namely "Offsite Construction”, “Robotics
and Automation”, “Digital Solutions”, and "Advanced Technologies
and Materials”. International conferences and technical tours were
arranged during the event.

The CIC launched the Design for Manufacture and Assembly (DfMA)
Alliance and implemented new measures to promote and facilitate a
wider adoption of DfMA with a focus on the building sector. The CIC
also set out the Guidelines on the Statutory Requirements for MiC
Projects for the construction industry and views from stakeholders
were collected to identify concerns in adopting the MiC technology.

EEEEEBMN2019F12A172208 8 4 £
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The Way Forward

To further promote intelligence across the industry, the CIC is
working towards a Knowledge Hub incorporating MiC resources,
CITAC i-Club and DfMA Alliance.

The existing MiC Display Centre located at CIC — ZCP will be
revamped into MiC Resources Centre. Apart from providing guided
tours for the public, focus group workshops or seminars will be
conducted in the Centre. There will be regular updates on local
and overseas MiC projects.

The CIC will launch the BIM Certification and Accreditation
Schemes for BIM coordinators to uphold the standard and quality
of practitioners, and develop the syllabus for the BIM Coordinator
Courses. The Schemes will be promoted to practitioners and
training providers.

& 8 AR 2R

RTE—SREBEXEHL RELE
R—EREMAEAKIBEEEM &2

i 2RI MR B R L i-Club R R B R

BREBBEOMBEE -
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MiC Display Centre
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Culture XAk

The CIC cultivates sustainability culture in our workplace and the BEEX(ZC A BREETINREEENRESE
community through promoting and improving the safety and well- HZ2EERE 515 TIEM 2 Mt @ &
being of the CIC staff and industry practitioners. We also encourage R X{t  WEEE T ML EER R -
staff and industry practitioners to contribute to the community. BRI E -

Q’@O 94 volunteering services were -| 5 / 697 service hours in 2019

organised with

2019 HHETTT % 94 RIRE - s Bz -| 5, 697 AN
3 O 87 applications for Medical Examination Scheme for construction workers

were received in 2019

[£3,087
BiE R T ABERBRETEN2019F KUk 2 L/ / DR
students were awarded the Scholarship for Family Members of
6 Registered Construction Workers in 2019
2019$,\ﬁ[ \ 26 HELEESHMREXRTIARBREEZS
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Corporate Safety

In view of the high risk of work above-ground accidents in the
industry and the importance of a safe building culture, accident sharing
sessions were conducted to share relevant real-life cases with CIC staff,
strengthening their safety awareness and encouraging knowledge
exchange. Starting from 2019, all the CIC accident cases have been
reported through a digital platform, which allows faster responses
to any accident in our premises, and reduces the effort on case
monitoring. For HKCITTC, content of trade testing has been reviewed
and updated to incorporate safety knowledge.

With the establishment of the Safety Experience Training Centre at
HKIC Kwai Chung Campus, over 500 training sessions were organised
with more than 11,000 visitors, including industry practitioners, CIC
members, teaching staff and students.

Safety Experience Training Centre
T2 BRI BRAB L

ez
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Corporate Culture

To enhance the CIC's team spirit and cohesiveness as well as to
express the core values of the CIC's corporate culture, namely
caring, integrated and committed, a group of CIC Corporate Culture
Champions were formed to coordinate the initiatives and to engage
colleagues to live with the core values. Activities such as Corporate
Culture Fun Night and Movie Night were held with a total of over
1,000 staff and family members participating.

Construction Industry Sports and Volunteering
Programme (CISVP)

B E x &

Objective

The CIC is keen to improve the quality of life and well-being of
practitioners in the construction industry, especially construction
workers. The Construction Industry Sports and Volunteering
Programme (CISVP) was established in October 2016 to encourage
practitioners’ participation in sports programmes and volunteering
services. The CIC believes the programme will not only benefit the
participants but also contribute to social harmony.

In 2019, CISVP organised almost 100 industry-wide events and
activities with participation of over 10,000 construction practitioners
(man-time).

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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Industry-wide Major Events

o Construction Industry Happy Run and Carnival 2019

o Construction Industry Council Basketball Invitation Competition
2019

o Construction Industry Table Tennis Competition and Carnival
2019

° CIC Lo Pan Cup Dragon Boat Race 2019

o Construction Industry 5-a-side Football Fun Day 2019

o Construction Industry Volunteer Awards Presentation Ceremony
and Lo Pan Service Month 2019

o Construction Industry Council Football League 2019

o Construction Month Cup 2019 3x3 Basketball Competition

o Construction Month 2019 - Construction Industry Caring
Organisation “Cracking Movie Night”

o Construction Industry Sports Day and Charity Fun Day 2019

Construction Industry 5-a-side Football Fun Day 2019
EEED ARKRRLZHA2019

EREHRS

. BEEMROEEREFE2019
. BEEFYEREFEE2019

s RBREFXFRRBEBRFE2019

o BREEZSENRESFHE2019
. BEERARIKRZHE2019
. EEESTEAEBERRS 2019

. BEEEZSEMEIRBER2019

J £ AR2019= AERE

. 252019 - ZEEBEEMRBITESE
1R

. BEXEYTEEEREH2019

Construction Industry Sports Day and
Charity Fun Day 2019
BEFREHSEREREZRLE2019

Construction Month 2019 — Construction Industry Construction Ind

ustry Volunteer Award Presentation Ceremony and

Caring Organisation “Cracking Movie Night” “Construction Industry Caring Organisation” Launching Ceremony
EH2019-ZEXHERBIELEERY R BEFEETIRAB0BZEXUERBIMIE
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Sports and Volunteering Workshops

° Volunteer Sharing Workshop — Project Amen
o Sports Workshop — Experience of Rouligiu
o Sports Workshop — KT Tape Workshop

Volunteer Services

CISVP provided 94 volunteer services benefitting over 15,000 people
in 2019. Services included home repair and moving services for the
elderly and low-income families, as well as visits to elderly living alone
and families in need. We also assisted communities in organising
maintenance services for residential care homes, blood donation, flag
selling, volunteering for day-tour services, taking part in tree planting
and coastal cleanup.

Visits to the Elderly

BERE
Home Repairs Day Tours
REHEE —REEE

Tree Planting

iR

I

Furniture Moving

HRERA

Event Helpers
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Docent Service
BERK

Charity Sale
HERE

Coastal Cleanup
BEER

Blood Donation Daily Supplies
18 M AR 7% Giveaway
— EBEYE Flag Selling
Residential Care EIERTE

Home Repairs

EEREE

In 2019, CISVP presented the Construction Industry Volunteer Awards
Presentation Ceremony for the second year with a total of 40
construction-related organisations, including government departments,
developers, contractors, sub-contractors, labour unions, professional
bodies and industry volunteer groups, as well as 17 NGOs, taking part. In
addition, the launch of the “Construction Industry Caring Organisation”
Logo Scheme was held to increase the public awareness of the corporate
social responsibility and good deeds of construction organisations.

FEMR019FENE _EREXE TR
AP18 - KRS TAORBIE X HE - BRBUN
BBPT - BRE - AEB 2B I8 X

XEE XARTEE URI7TEEEHRSE
28 - ZH - BEBEREEXBERE R
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The logo of “Construction Industry Caring Organisation”
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Construction Industry Blood Donation Day Coastal Cleanup
EEERMmA BB R

Maintenance Service for Residential Care Homes Home Repairing Service
E BB ERE KB B RT
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The Way Forward

The CIC will continue to strengthen staff awareness on safety
requirements through trade-specific safety training workshops.
The CIC will also increase accessibility to safety information
through reviewing our in-house rules on corporate safety and
displaying safety messages at training grounds.

In order to enhance the services for construction workers and
improve the working environment of staff, the CIC Service
Centre in Nam Cheong will be renovated to provide more
space for workers and staff. Visitors will be able to obtain
more information from the construction industry in the new
service centre.

The CIC will continue to engage more organisations in the
construction Industry to participate in the CISVP and promote
the “Construction Industry Caring Organisation” Logo Scheme
to strengthen the caring image among the industry.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
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4 Culture
X1k

&

The CIC cultivates sustainability and caring culture in the workplace and
the community through promoting and improving the safety and well-
being of the CIC staff and industry practitioners.
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(O HIGHLIGHTS OF AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2019

2019 F EMBEHFBRREER

Based on the consolidated financial results for the year ended 31
December 2019, total income of CIC Group was $1,246.79 million
(2018: $1,330.58 million), a decline of $83.79 million or 6.3% against
last year. Total expenditure for 2019 rose by $89.42 million to
$1,142.14 million (2018: $1,052.72 million). The operating results for
2019 recorded a surplus of $104.65 million (2018: $277.86 million).

BEAE2019F12A3NB IEFENLEAMB
XE BEXFENERFHARARI2EAL679
&7 (20184 : 13183,0588 1) * BEFH
8,3798 JL 806.3% ° 2019F WA X B mT
8,942& 7T » E11{84,2148 7T (20184 : 1018
52728 7T) - 2019F ME B X E B RBIE

i —

4658 7T (20184 : 2187,786& JT) °

CIC Income, Expenditure & Surplus for Year 2018 and 2019

BIEXET2018 R 2019F 2 A ~ THR AR

Amount (HK$'m)

2RE(EERET)
1,500 1,330.6
O—
20—
S
1,052.7
900 —O— Income
A
600 ---[J---- Expenditure
277.9 s
300 O
M7 —{>— Surplus
0 Year pasges
2018 FE
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HIGHLIGHTS OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2019

Levy income declined to $1,103.16 million in 2019 (2018: $1,214.22
million) and contributed 88.5% (2018: 91.3%) of total income. The
9.1% year-on-year decrease in levy income in 2019 was mainly caused
by the decline in civil engineering infrastructure works in public sector.
Total levy assessed on the value of construction operations in the
private and public sectors amounted to $604.11 million (2018: $617.49
million) and $498.26 million (2018: $595.32 million) respectively,
representing 54.8% (2018: 50.9%) and 45.2% (2018: 49.0%) of total
levy income. In addition, penalty on overdue levy amounted to $0.79
million in 2019 (2018: $1.41 million).

Course fee and related income slightly increased to $27.95 million in
2019 (2018: $27.64 million). The higher income on Building Information
Modelling courses were partly offset by lower income on safety
courses and other part-time courses.

Workers registration fee income for 2019 increased to $7.91 million
(2018: $6.46 million) due to minor fluctuations in the actual number
of workers registration applications and amortisation effect of income
from previous years.

Trade testing income for 2019 declined to $7.10 million (2018: $7.66
million) primarily due to the decline in the number of trade test
applications in 2019 as compared with 2018. The surge of demand
from the “Designated Workers for Designated Skills” tended to slow
down in 2019 after its implementation in 2017.

Investment and interest income for 2019 amounted to $54.88 million
(2018: $38.43 million). The increase in investment and interest income
was due to the increase in funds available for placement and the higher
interest rates on time deposits.

019 EMBENBRREH

2019F MBI AT FEE111E316 87T (20184F :
12181,42287T) * 1H#BUTAH)88.5% (20184 :
91.3%) ° 20194 & 3% W A & F9.1% #) &
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@ HIGHLIGHTS OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2019

0195 EMBEFRRER

Other income of $45.80 million in 2019 (2018: $36.18 million)
comprised of the reimbursement income of trainees’ allowances from
the Government under the Advanced Construction Manpower Training
Scheme (ACMTS) and the Investing in Construction Manpower Scheme
(ICMS) and other miscellaneous income. The increase in other income
in 2019 was mainly due to booth rental income from Construction
Innovation Expo 2019 and the increase in reimbursement income
under ACMTS.

CIC Income for Year 2018 and 2019
BIEEEET 2018 K 2019FE 2 A

Amount (HK$'m)

20194F B H b Yt A A&4,5808 JT (20184 :
36188L) TERIERBBMI#ERITE
BRI IR EREEANGTEIFES
BN REAMMEBEIA - 2019F E KA
MIEIMEBRE019EERIFEE S H M
LU AR T&EI 838 WA
B 380 o

SHE(BEAET)
1,500
1,246.8
&@P Other income*
H A Y A
1,000
@ Course fee and
trade testing income
aie R T8 BIE A
&P Levy income
Year Jup £
500 e BEA
2018 2019

* Other income in the above bar chart includes registration fee
income from sub-contractors, investment and interest income,
reimbursement of trainees’ allowances and other miscellaneous
income.

* HitWAE LESEREETREERS

ﬁ@?ﬁ?ﬂﬂ%ﬂlﬁz)\ BRERMBWA -
BRESHEFURBAREBEEREA -
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HIGHLIGHTS OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2019 @
0195 EM BB RRER

Total expenditure of CIC Group in 2019 was $1,142.14 million, an 2019F BRiEEXF S BT A11E4,2148 T -

increase of $89.42 million or 8.5% against the $1,052.72 million in Lt ¥20184F BJ101E5,272& JT © 12 18,9428
2018. JLEk8.5% °

CIC Expenditure for Year 2018 and 2019
BEEET2018FE2019F 2K K

Amount (HK$'m)
TRE(BEBEET)

Other expenditure*
H A 37 i+
Advertising and publicity expenses
BEEEEEH
‘ Repair and maintenance expenses
HEREER
@D General and
administrative expenses
—RITHRER
Iy Workshop expenses
IHx
Training expenses
« FRE A
E% @ Staff costs

2018 2019 EERA

1,200

800

400

* Other expenditure includes depreciation and amortisation, (net  * HtZEeEmeE R #E - ERERCF
reversal of) impairment loss on levy receivables. BB RMERSE -

(@)  Staff costs amounted to $463.45 million in 2019 (2018; $413.57 (a) 2019F K |8 B & A A4186,3458 7T
million). The increase of 12.1% was mainly due to annual salary (2018%F : 4181,357& JT) ° E N HY12.1%

adjustments, and recruitment of additional staff for Hong Kong FTERERFEFHNARE UERE
Institute of Construction, Collaboration and Trade Testing, and BEESZE  SESFJFTEIRIZA
Industry Development. A TEERBESEIINETL-
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(b)  Training expenses amounted to $249.14 million in 2019 (2018: (b) 20194 K 3l 48 & B A2184,9148 T

$268.29 million), a decrease of 7.1%. The decrease was mainly (20184F : 2186,8298 Jt) * T f£7.1% °
due to decline in training expenses under Collaborative Training TENETEZaEEVGE - B2
Schemes, Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme HEEANVRAE RPEHE URF
(ECMTS), and Diploma in Vocational Education Subsidy, and EBOImERRY  REEH RN
lower expenses in trainees’ uniform. It was partly offset by SR o FB R T N0 58 hR A 22 fE T &
the increase in training expenses due to the new enhanced i35 h0 EY Il AR B AR P 8 o

Apprenticeship Scheme.

()  Workshop expenses dropped by 17.7% to $28.81 million in 2019 () 2019F T £ & B T %17.7% © ® &

(2018: $35.01 million) mainly due to the lower expenditure on 2,8818 ;L (20184 :3,501&E jT)r = &
consumable materials and tools, personal protective equipment, EHRIBEEMERIBERETIA @
restoration of trade test venues, as consistent with the decline ANRERE URERIZAHSH
in the number of students for in-house training and the number RSz R - B B12019F B2 B A Sl
of trade test applications in 2019. TEAAPHFHENTEER -

(d) General and administrative expenses amounted to $120.63 (d) 2019%FH—RRITHERA1182,0638 T

million in 2019 (2018: $114.17 million). The 5.7% increase (20184 : 1{81,4178 7T) ° 2019F W 4§
in 2019 was mainly due to increase in consultancy and MAES7T%  TEZERHRBAMEEE
professional fees, full-year effect of office management fee, and AEm MRAEEBRENEFHE -
higher research and studies expenses. It was partly offset by KRR FMBERMAZIEM - AREAH
reclassification arising from adoption of new accounting standard G EAKHE) MEENEF D -
on leases. B TE D X HE BN -

(e)  Repair and maintenance expenses amounted to $39.74 million in () 2019F MK ERE B A R3,9748 T

2019 (2018: $40.80 million). The lower repair and maintenance (20185 : 4,0808 L) T ERHNE
expenses on building premises and landscape areas, building Y BFRRERE EFREE
services installation were partly offset by higher maintenance ERBOXHRYD  MEBEKKRE LR
expenses on computer equipment and software. HREBROIZINESE T B EIE -

(f)  Advertising and publicity expenses increased by 32.5% to (f) 2019FMEESSEBEREMNTIZENE

$83.46 million in 2019 (2018: $62.97 million) mainly due to 8,346 L (20184 : 6,2978 L) ' B A
higher expenditure on Construction Innovation Expo 2019. BEINEEZELHAR00ZERFTEES

B SN o
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HIGHLIGHTS OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2019

Depreciation and amortisation amounted to $157.38 million
in 2019 (2018: $114.55 million). The year-on-year increase of
37.4% was caused by the capital expenditure completed in
2019, including renovation works for Kwai Chung Campus
and MegaBox office, purchase of new cranes for Kowloon
Bay Campus, and full-year effect of depreciation for capital
expenditure completed in 2018, including renovation works for
Kowloon Bay and Kwai Chung Campuses. Part of the increase
was due to reclassification arising from adoption of new
accounting standard on leases.

Capital commitments increased by 475.0% to $658.91 million
in 2019 (2018: $114.59 million). They comprised contracted
capital expenditure mainly for consultancy, renovation and
uplifting works at HKIC campuses, and preparation works
for development of new campus at Tai Po, provision of IT
development and support services, and the Modular Integrated
Construction demonstration project at CIC-Zero Carbon Park.

As at 31 December 2019, the Council held a total of $2,980.06 million
as accumulated fund and reserves, compared with $2,875.55 million
as at 31 December 2018.

019 EMBENBRREH

20194F W9 37T & & ¥ 55 /1185,7388 7T
(20184F : 181,455 Jr) ° 1& F #
37.4%  F ZERMBN2019F T T2
BARAY  REZERR R ILEEH
AEMBF IR WEERRKNFREE
HWEE UR2018FTKIENEF
TEE BIENEREMNZEBRKNE
IR - BoWEMREARNKBTE
FFERKHEE)MEENEHR L -

2019F B B AR A& HEIE AN T475.0% » =
6185,8918 7 (20184 : 1{81,459& 7T) °
ERIAMEARAS T ZEOREARES
b e REE A B AR M IREREE
B REHFERBERNEEIERS
BB SAENEZERSE  URRE
EEROTMAMNERAEKIESE
ER)REIER ©

HZE2019%F12A31H EEEZEeNEEE
% K FEH 58 /29188,006 8 7T - M A8 ¥ &

e —

201812 A31HEI A&28187,5558 JT °

D
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4h INDEPENDENT

AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYZYMENRE S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL
(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance, Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Construction
Industry Council (“the Council”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 246 to 291, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
fund and reserves, and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Council for the year
ended 31 December 2018, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 30 April
2019.

BYRBMBRES
BREXBERERE
(RIFEBEFFTTE 7 &K ZHEIRKPIKL)
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Other Information

The Council members are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Council members for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Council members are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
control as the Council members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council
members are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Council members either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council members are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

The Audit Committee of the Council assists the Council members in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHBENRES

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 26 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Council members.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council members’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TAM Kwok-yiu

Practising Certificate Number P02575

Hong Kong, 28 April 2020
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and #H&E & kK 22 H W & &
other comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 128318 ILEFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt 3 BT P& TT
Income LN
Levy income BRI A 4 1,103,155,329 1,214,220,180
Workers registration fee income TAGZHERA 5 7,909,794 6,463,708
Course fees and related income AR U B K AR R I A 6 27,954,724 27,637,263
Trade testing income TEA KA 6 7,096,332 7,657,748
Investment and interest income BERMBEBA 7 54,879,453 38,425,037
Other income HAth e A 8 45,798,357 36,177,454
1,246,793,989 1,330,581,390
Expenditure s
Staff costs EEER 9 463,452,261 413,565,789
Training expenses ElECE-9:¢ 249,143,575 268,285,175
Workshop expenses TiHEH 28,812,565 35,011,650
General and administrative expenses —RITHE R 10 120,632,421 114,172,855
Repair and maintenance expenses HEREER 39,738,985 40,804,981
Advertising and publicity expenses EEEEER 83,462,764 62,972,016
Depreciation and amortisation e RN 11 157,381,630 114,552,825
(Net reversal of) Impairment loss on JE R FRCF D) B E
levy receivables &5 18 14 (482,668) 3,359,990
1,142,141,533 1,052,725,281
Surplus for the year AEE R 104,652,456 277,856,109
Other comprehensive expense for ZAFEHMEEX H
the year
ltem that will not be reclassified to AnEREZRCER:
profit or loss:
Equity instruments at fair value through & QAR EBEE 2 # %
other comprehensive income TA
— Decrease in fair value - AREEZBE (399,883) (7,548,729)
Surplus and total comprehensive REERBER R A2 EW
income for the year 104,252,573 270,307,380
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Consolidated statement of financial position #R& 81 AR i &
At 31 December 2019 H20194F12 A31H
2019 2018
Notes HK$ HK$
B & BT 78 7T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M S NERE 11 935,222,611 924,003,697
Construction in progress EREIRE 11 20,343,901 4,833,815
Debt instruments at amortised cost REHEK AT 2 ZED
TA 12 = 70,210,581
Equity instruments at fair value through X AR BEFELFAH
other comprehensive income thEml s s RETA 13 37,467,957 37,867,840
993,034,469 1,036,915,933
Current assets REBEE
Debt instruments at amortised cost REHEK A E 2 EB
TE 12 70,054,642 -
Levy receivables JE I R R 14 88,573,393 77,717,483
Deposits, prepayments and other Re ENEBRAREM
receivables JE W BR 1B 15 52,761,778 53,474,471
Cash and bank balances BeRBTHER 16 3,092,327,878 2,984,523,907
3,303,717,691 3,115,715,861
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts and other payables and JERTBRIE - EMb R ARIE
accruals M IESE A 17 254,289,839 243,243,600
Construction Innovation and BEFEAMEBIEAS
Technology Fund 18 1,003,913,440 1,003,714,908
Lease liabilities HEBE 19 13,843,600 -
Contract liabilities aRAaRE 20 13,349,447 12,593,949
1,285,396,326 1,259,552,457
Net current assets REBEEFHE 2,018,321,365 1,856,163,404
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABEE 3,011,355,834 2,893,079,337
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Consolidated statement of financial position #R& 8 AR & (&)

(continued)

At 31 December 2019 R20195%12 A31H
2019 2018
Notes HK$ HK$
BT 5 BT I
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 14,734,771 -
Contract liabilities ARAE 20 16,565,082 17,532,720
31,299,853 17,532,720
Net assets EEFE 2,980,055,981 2,875,546,617
Represented by: (A
Accumulated fund 2REES 2,586,969,204 2,482,059,957
General reserve LA 389,353,310 389,353,310
Investment revaluation reserve KEEMHE 3,733,467 4,133,350
Total fund and reserves HeR@HBEHREE 2,980,055,981 2,875,546,617

The consolidated financial statements on pages 246 to 291 were ZA#4R 4 B 7§ 3R R 55246229158 E 20204
approved and authorised for issue by the Council members of 4FA28BEREXZEKE BB K ERESR
Construction Industry Council on 28 April 2020 and were signed on 3k ' WH T AL HBER

their behalf by:

CHAN Ka-kui R R B
Chairman BEEBRSERE
WONG Hin-wing, Simon BEREK
Council member BEEZIKE
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Consolidated statement of changes in fund

and reserves

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR TS %r[l]

GeRekRFEFE2ER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 128318 ILEFE
Investment
Accumulated General revaluation
fund reserve reserve Total
ERES EERE REEGRE mE
HK'$ HK'$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
(Note a) (Note b)
(5t@) (5 (b))
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 AR 2 &%  2,204,203,848 389,353,310 11,682,079  2,605,239,237
Surplus for the year KEERH 277,856,109 - - 277,856,109
Other comprehensive expense ~ FREME2E S H
for the year - - (7,548,729) (7,548,729)
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 2
g 2,482,059,957 389,353,310 4,133,350  2,875,546,617
Initial application of HKFRS 16 ¥ XEBE BT B RS
R E165% 256,791 - - 256,791
Restated balance at 1 January  EfHH2019F1818 2
2019 g3 2,482,316,748 389,353,310 4,133,350 2,875,803,408
Surplus for the year TEFEAEH 104,652,456 - - 104,652,456
Other comprehensive expense ~ FRHE M2 E X
for the year - - (399,883) (399,883)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 1283182
bl 2,586,969,204 389,353,310 3,733,467  2,980,055,981
Notes: e

TEHE 2RI ER LS RAREET
RBH2008F1ANB R EEET AZEME
ERB0B3F1ABNEEFEEESEY
RUTLTRHEERAERZERENZS
HNBEEELIAKERBEENEH
FRCHZEREBELRE - ZFgKE
AR EMFRRE  ERAMER
-

(@)  The general reserve has been set up to record the statutory transfer  (a)
of net assets from Construction Industry Training Authority on 1
January 2008 and Construction Workers Registration Authority on
1 January 2013. The general reserve was created for employing the
reserve in the operations of the Council or by investing the reserve in
such manner as the Council members think fit. The Council members
may apply the general reserve for any other special purpose.

b)) BREEHHEBEEESRAAEEFEL
FPAHMEERE < ET A EERB
ERRBIERFHRABEEEFERR
Be At BURM GE3ARR o

(b)  The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net
change in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in Note 3.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%L B 75 ]k

Consolidated statement of cash flows FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2019F12A31BEFE
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BT B TT
Operating activities EEED
Surplus for the year ZNCS R 104,652,456 277,856,109
Adjustments for: FE
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment & U %5 3% (B [@) )i (& &5 18
loss on levy receivables (482,668) 3,359,990
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAENEXH 654,238 -
Depreciation and amortisation I & 157,381,630 114,552,825
Investment and interest income "E RFBHA (54,879,453) (38,425,037)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant HEME - WERZEZEE
and equipment (Y k) 3,464,315 (303,559)
Operating cash flow before movements KT #ELELEH & E
in working capital HeRE 210,790,518 357,040,328
Increase in levy receivables J/E Uk 81 3R 1 0 (10,373,242) (4,803,232)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and B FANERKEMEW
other receivables 0 (5,497,810) (3,849,373)
Increase in accounts and other payables  JEfBRTE - Ha B ERIE K&
and accruals FEtE RN 13,385,166 53,052,041
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities EREECR D) E (212,140) 7,184,833
Net cash from operating activities RELEZBH2RERAFE 208,092,492 408,624,597
Investing activities RETEE
Placement in bank deposits with maturity 778 iE =18 A 2| H ~ R 17
over three months T (3,042,262,726) (2,931,979,247)
Payment for purchase of property, plant EBEAYE - #MER L EOHR
and equipment (149,058,026) (208,996,722)
Withdrawal of bank deposits with maturity $REUEiE =@ A2 H 2
over three months RITFER 2,931,979,247 1,735,611,582
Interest received W ER B A S 59,258,987 26,157,827
Dividend received from equity WEE A REEGAHMEE
instruments at fair value through other Waz kTR ZKRE
comprehensive income 1,986,908 1,968,418
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised && A LA # §5 B AN 51 £ 09 B 75
cost TA - (30,150,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - #EREEZ WA
and equipment = 1,024,000
Net cash used in investing activities ARBREETH2BEREESR (198,095,610)  (1,406,364,142)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS rﬂ]
BB ®mER %

Consolidated statement of cash flows mERERERE)

(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F 128318 ILEFE
2019 2018
Note HK$ HK$
Bt 3 BT BT
Financing activities Rl & SEE
Repayment of lease liabilities YRNHEEaE 19 (12,476,390) -
Construction Innovation and REZERBHEEEAIF
Technology Fund provided by EEEES  IKRRS
Development Bureau, net of X A<
transaction cost - 999,999,388
Net cash (used in) from financing ARBEZTH2BEE
activities R H) RN FE (12,476,390) 999,999,388
Net (decrease) increase in cash and BHE&RERBEEERF
cash equivalents (Rl 2) 18 hn 28 (2,479,508) 2,259,843
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHZREREFHERS
beginning of the year EHE 52,544,660 50,284,817
Cash and cash equivalents atthe HRZHEERZERARS
end of the year EHE 50,065,152 52,544,660
Analysis of the balances of cash and RE&REFELEELEE
cash equivalents Z DA
Cash and bank balances Be KIBITER 3,092,327,878 2,984,523,907
Less: Time deposit with original B RB=E AR
maturity over three months E B 7K (3,042,262,726)  (2,931,979,247)
50,065,152 52,544,660
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FINANC\AL SIATEMENTS
i & B 3 3R K A 5T

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31B IEFE

1. General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council”) was established
as a statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong Kong under the
Construction Industry Council Ordinance. The Council acts as an
industry co-ordinating body. Its principal functions are to forge
consensus on long-term strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs
and aspirations to Government, as well as provide a communication
channel for Government to solicit advice on all construction-related
matters. In order to propagate improvements across the entire industry,
the Council is empowered to formulate codes of conduct, administer
registration and rating schemes, steer forward research and manpower
development, facilitate adoption of construction standards, promote

good practices and compile performance indicators.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located at 38/F,,
COS Centre, 56 Tsun Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Group consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Council and its subsidiaries.

2. Application of new and amendments to
Hong Kong financial reporting standards
('HKFRSs™)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC) —

Leases

Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features and Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

4h NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

1. e

BEXZT (R RRB(REER SR
B 200762 A1 BEER B HETEH#E -
AZEREANGERE HIZBeER
PRERBEMEEEHRERERNER WK
R EEENTELBHT L ABTR
HEBREE MEHBEEXEMEMEBESZED
BER - AHMEBRETELRTRE KAEoE
RS ERTTE - ERAMEFTATE -
BERAAERANER  REXAKA

BEREE  HEEBERSFEZET AR
BT -
AHEEHAMBERE MU AETENLEHRE

5k EMAsesE E H A R L38E -

$$%T%i*/—\ﬁ7ﬁ“$&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁE’Jﬂ%@?’%;‘%ﬁ%
CEAZEREMBATNINEER

2. BRG] REBI(KE B
J%L%E'DXFE/%EM%#E*E’E
21

REECRBEERZHET REEZE
H(E B B 35 3 H E Al

AEBERERIGANEREBREEE
KE%TMTmﬁ% AR (EBEH
WA ® ) AR 2 37 5T RAGE ST 5 B 75
SRS

(BEMBRELEAE 6% HE

EE(ARMBERERE FERTREIMCZEE
Z88)-nEEBH

(BEMBREER)
FI5 (BT A)

ARAMEZRMER
i1

(BHGHER)F19% SEELE  BREERE
CHES)

(BEgER)E28% HEBCERAEY
CHES) RS

(BAMBRERER)EIF - 2015F22017FBHH

ENFR(B RS ER)
F12% 0 EBH(ETX)

BREMBREENN
FRUMEN BN

Z? CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i ¥ &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Except as described below, the application of the above new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's consolidated performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures in these consolidated financial
statements.

Impacts on application of HKFRS 16 “Leases”
and the related amendments

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations starting from 1 January 2019.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed for
lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group previously
presented operating lease payments as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group while upfront prepaid
lease payments will continue to be presented as investing or operating
cash flows in accordance with the nature.

ARE IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE

BT EI  REERA LM REE
ARCEAMBREEADT EHAKEZ
AERRAEFRR G AP RBAMRMR
ARFMBNEBEXNERTE -

FEREEBYBHRELERF 165 HE
REBEBIT St HEEE

EREVBREENFI6RE [HE I LB E
FANMEBEBEARABANGEESIA—E
2EERN - BEMHRE LA 165712019
FIARERRKB B ERF7THRIEE]
KB R -

HRERHEMEEENHEESN K28
ErBMEHENEZRGEATEAGEES
Bl AHARARMAREEREREE
ERHERE -

EREEENTEAATE HREKRA
C& T BISNE S BR 51N B R 5 3 & K B 1B B
BitE  YEMENFENHEHERBED
AR -HEREVNIHEENKCEEAX
MHREFE - R HEAGBR(EHE
BOMBREENRARBEBITNR EE
HAE  -BRREREZDEME - AEER
2N EERRARERERE - R
EEBMEREEAFE 16T - ARBH AR
HEABZHEMNRZIAMERTAE
ZAZRNBEy - MATHI N 2 HE R
REEGENEAREXLEHTRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%Ll & B & A

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12A31B IEFE

The following tables summarised the impact of transition to HKFRS KX 7l it T 72018412 8318 K& 20194141
16 on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position as of H © RIEEBP R EERF 1658 L A E

31 December 2018 to that of 1 January 2019 as follows: HEBARNTE:
HK$
BT
Consolidated Statement of financial position as at #R & Bt %5 ik R R R201951818
1 January 2019
Increase in right-of-use assets presented in property, plant &3 %) 2 # 28 & R & 2 &
and equipment & E 28,837,184
Increase in lease liabilities (current) MEABRORE)EM 10,663,517
Increase in lease liabilities (non-current) HEBBEGERS)®M 20,057,270
Decrease in accounts and other payable and accruals FETRRIE, H fh fE N AR IE K JE 5T
ERR D (2,140,394)
Increase in accumulated fund 2EESIEN 256,791

The following reconciliation explains how the operating lease RIEBFEBH KRS LD F175 T EN20184
commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 12A31H 2 4@ S&EH2019F1 18R
could be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of inital BEBEBEXTHRAZHEAEHRINSE
application recognised in the statement of financial position as at 1 ¥ 8k 201 :

January 2019:

HK$
BT
Operating lease commitment as of 31 December 2018  R2018F12 A31H 2 & EM G & E 31,813,015
Less: short term leases for which lease terms end before & 4 : #2019F 12 A31HAI&E R 2
31 December 2019 RHAEE (128,370)
Less: future interest expenses WL R ZF BT (963,858)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 January 2019 P2019FE1A1BEZHEAE 30,720,787
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied 72019518 1BERRHEHEEE
to lease liabilities recognised in the statement of 2 BB E
financial position as at 1 January 2019. 2.20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the new and amendments to HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material'

HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

The Council members anticipate that the application of these new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

ARE IS IR AR MY A %I‘[l]
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A318 L FE

E 58 i 1B [8 R & Rz #i 7] RAEMERT
(BB B|EER)

ARBAEBRBENEACDEMERRERZ
MR RRETBTEYM B RS ER:

(BEMBREER)FIN EREBHTR'
(BFI &)

(BREFEASIRBTLX) ERUMTEER
R(E A G ER)F8H
(BFI &)

(BREYMBREER)ETH BRAMEERAE
(BAIX) (BARBRS it &
ERNER(BFTA) -

(BB G ER)E39%R

(B3 %)
(BEMBREEETR  RRER?
CHEY)

(BEMBREEEI0R REFREBHLE
(BAIR)R(RBEHER)  KREMEE
F285% (BF]K) HELRA

' F2020F1 B 1H #B 3k A 1R F X BB A K
2 H2021F 1 A1H B sk A& F E 2 A

3 ZERT AR 2018451 A1 H #E s LATE 4 & HA [
AR MAKRBHIEKES, BUY - IRATE
RZET 2 ERMNARRE -

REGREAS  BANLEHITREERTZ
& B % s RN & B A 1B I A R R AR
EMBHRRELEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE

3. Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA under the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

3. TBEHHE

REAMBREBBEBRHMHARES
BB BT HREEIFES - BELSE
TANUTRHBERBEAABEE
B —BAEERABERTFS - B
RALTEERTAERRBHUEZAL
Bt -

7N
SHHEBEER NI EEAGEA RN
ZER ITWZEREAEETEBRNE
Aem—ABEDEAGHN B EEXARE
ZARBER AEEBEETTSE2EER
AEAMAREERABETEERKS
EEMBEEXRBERE - EXFHAMB
WERPAER AEENAABEGEZ L
ER BT HEC(EEMHRELENS
RIS IBE RN Z AR X AREZ
R (BEREGFERF2RIFEIFHOR
B FEI(EBGHER)FEIHREEM
BIReERBEERRI -

o BB mEmE - ANBEBEFERE
AABEFEZEHAHBIREREERE
ABBHEAALEEFECEBEENRDHE
BRE—F B_RRE=H Hum

s FRBAHEEERNEAHA
MEBGHHRAEEXRERARTS

ZHRECREHE)

s FARBABREBENEEXBEEER
EEHWABR 2B ABE(F AR
BREABERIN R

FZABABEREEXRENTA
BREZBARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Council and entities controlled by the Council and
its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Council:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Council reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when a performance obligation is

satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

ARE IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A318 L FE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to deliver services
to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognifion: measurement
of progress towards complefe safisfaction of a
performance obligafion

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to recognise
revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value of the
services delivered to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group's
performance in transferring control of services.

Levy income
Levy income is accounted for on an accrual basis and is recognised

when the assessment of the value of construction operations by the
Group are complete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government grant

Government grant are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivables.

Property, plant and equipment and construction
in progress

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the provision of services
or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress represented the expenditure made for
construction of property, plant and equipment for provision of services
or administrative purpose. Construction in progress are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment loss. Such items are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

ARE IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and building 25-50 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Renovation and building facilities 3-5 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Facilities, tools, machinery and 5 years
workshop equipment
Other equipment 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of the lease
term and the useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers
ownership of underlying assets or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflect that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying assets.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of the tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost (which comprises the initial measurement of lease liabilities,
initial direct costs, reinstatement costs, any payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received), and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the
interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments
made.
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The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for
some lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal
options. The assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.

Payments associated with short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and low value leases are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the profit or loss.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which
includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease. When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assefs
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"):
o the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OClI if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset starting from the following reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit impaired financial instrument improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in OCl and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gains or losses will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated fund.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the investment
and interest income line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss (“ECL")
on financial assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including deposits and other receivables, bank balances and debt
instruments at amortised cost). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for levy receivables
using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECL based on
lifetime ECL. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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For other financial assets subject to ECL, the Group measures the loss

allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises

lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be

recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of

a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is
experience and forward-looking information that is available

reasonable and supportable, including historical

without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’'s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfill
its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a
debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal
or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower,

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has been dissolved by deregistration, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.

(iii)

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount,
with the exception of deposits and other receivables, where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definition of a financial
liability.

Financial liabilities (including accounts and other payables and
Construction Innovation and Technology Fund (“CITF")) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial insfruments

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.
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HE2019F12A31B IEFE

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gains or losses previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred
to accumulated fund.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when the Group’s
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

4. Levy income

PR B2 S REER -
AEBEERCKRERAENEBRA
PR -

RERBBEEVBHREENFOR A EELD
MEREFRANEBEFELFAELLE
B Eam TARERILERE - TR
AEAREERBERZRFNBHELRE
ARBES MIFELEEEM -

EABBORTERLR BUEREME - 77
EHBERTRAE CHERERNTA
BEsEREEEENREMKENEZR  ©
BamAER -

4. BRBA

2019 2018

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Private sector FLE T HR 604,100,319 617,493,067
Public sector NETIR 384,220,749 446,484,588
Others (Note) H Aty T2 (7%) 114,042,200 148,829,252
Penalty on overdue levy BN EBRZER 792,061 1,413,273
1,103,155,329 1,214,220,180

Note: Others include levy income on construction operations relating to

the port and airport development, Mass Transit Railway, Express
Rail Link, South Island Line, Kwun Tong Line Extension, West Island
Line and Tuen Ma Line.

In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, a levy is imposed at the rate of 0.5%
on the value of all construction operations undertaken or carried out
in Hong Kong, for which the tender has been submitted on or after
30 July 2018, and with a total value exceeding HK$3,000,000* (see
below).

* Any construction operations which have commenced or been
tendered before 30 July 2018, the levy threshold is HK$1,000,000.
The levy rate for these operations was 0.5%, effective on 20 August
2012 while it was 0.4% before 20 August 2012 and 0.25% before
10 January 2000.

i HIRSRABEORKSRE &
BHER  REEK - EESR BER
JEiR BB GRMEBGTREBNE
BN

BE(REEEZZROADEREK  #FEMAE
BB ETI R2018F7A30H sk B IR IZ
£ M#A{E{EBH3,000,0008 L2 FTA#E
EIRBEREZ (BT) BRER05% -

* 2018 7A30H 2 RIE B E #1771
EHEETE - EEGRPIE A1,000,000
BT o EBEEE0.5% » WHR2012F88
2084 %k o {BTE20124E8 A20B 2 A1 » #
FREE0.4% K% 20001 108 2 81 - #3K
& 50.25% ©

Zy
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In addition, in accordance with the provisions of section 23 of the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance, a levy is imposed at the
rate of 0.03% on the value of all construction operations undertaken
or carried out in Hong Kong, for which the tender has been submitted
or a construction contract has been entered or the construction
operations have begun on or after 30 July 2018 and with a total value
exceeding HK$3,000,000" (see below).

5. Workers registration fee income

Workers registration fees are collected from construction workers
who are applying for registration which normally has a validity
period of 60 months in accordance with the Construction Workers
Registration (Fees) Regulation (Cap 583 (B)). Workers registration fee
income is recognised over time and the advances received relating to
future periods are treated as contract liabilities (Note 20). Revenue is
recognised on a time proportion basis based on the output method.

6. Course fees and related income and
trade testing income

Course fees and related income is recognised over time. Trade testing
income is recognised at a point in time. All these incomes represent
contracts with customers and were derived from Hong Kong.

(i) Course fees and related income

The Group provides construction training courses to trainees.
Such courses are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the trainee simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs. Revenue is recognised over the period of
training based on the output method.

All courses are for periods of one year or less. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these
unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

# Any construction operations which have commenced or been
tendered between 24 February 2005 and 29 July 2018, the levy
threshold is HK$1,000,000.

ARE IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A318 L FE

Foh - IBIECREET AGEM GO L2316
FEYREEBEITIA2018F7A30H 8 b
BREXRBEIEFITRESGNIERESET
2 M#AB{E1\3,000,000/8 T2 FIARE
IR (B T) BRXER0.03% °

5. TAFZEBERA

T AGEM B W A 23 T AR TR
e dZMARARBEERT AZM(E
) R PI)(%583(B) &) - — &R R60ME A ° &
MEBRATDE-—BRERAER  AROTA
A ERA - BRaRAECTE20) - KA
WEBLD > MEHRETHER -

6. REWERHEBEWAMIE
- ERE N

AIZWBREBEWAE—RERAER - L
BRAHMATIZEHEER - TEZZFRWA
REEFAHWEHTRENES -

ORE LS LT O
REBERNEERMEEEINRRE - K
HBRERAESBERREREPE
I IR E AR B A E R IR
ANEREFRTER ©

IERERP—FHAT - &EFEY
BHRELEYEISHEAMATT  DEE
ZATEREHNARNXZERARER

B °

# 200542 A248 Z£201847H298 Hi &
ERANCETHRENEETRE  H&
P91 A1,000,0005 7T °

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31B IEFE

(ii) Trade testing income (ii)

The Group provides trade testing services to construction
industry practitioners. Such services are recognised at a point of
time upon the completion of the testing.

All trade testing services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

TERAHABA

AHBREE XX BREMNAR
1 o BRI e OB A B B R R (E
R RETHER

FIBETIEAARBH —FRUAT - EF
BB EEREBISEAATT D
REZATHKENERNZZERK
TEH R -

7. Investment and interest income 7. REERAMEWA
2019 2018
HKS$ HK$
BT 7T
Interest on bank deposits WITFERZHE 51,504,149 35,402,761
Interest on debt instruments at amortised REHEAAGT 2 ZER
cost TAFE 1,388,357 1,053,836
Other interest income H A F B0 A 39 22
Dividend from equity instruments at fair value & A REE 2 WA EAD
through other comprehensive income FHEME RETAZRKRE 1,986,908 1,968,418
54,879,453 38,425,037
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F 128318 IEFE
8. Other income 8. HMIkA
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Reimbursement of trainees’ allowance BaEahE (T
(Note 1) 28,012,091 24,741,749
Registration fee income from sub-contractors K B % £ & &9 5 flt & U A
(Note 2) (B E2) 2,407,137 2,155,804
Income from conferences and workshops RKEFNwERIEHTHIA 8,438,837 2,966,939
Income from short-term rental of devices HHEEHERA 1,569,920 1,715,975
Other miscellaneous income H b 2 TE UL A 5,370,372 4,596,987
45,798,357 36,177,454

Note 1:

Reimbursement of trainees’ allowance represents the receivable from the
Government in respect of the allowances paid by the Group to the trainees
for several approved training schemes which are regarded as government
grants.

Note 2:

Registration fees are collected from sub-contractors who are applying
for registration which normally has a validity period of 24 months before
1 July 2017, and either 36 or 60 months on and after 1 July 2017.
Registration fee income is recognised over time and the advances received
relating to future periods are treated as contract liabilities (Note 20).
Revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis based on the output
method.

it &1 -

BB PR RN BT WA EU AR TR - LA
BERBEZEZERIGETAXNNER R
B BERMWRSRTER

B 5E2 -

DEEEMELES SRR FEMEUER - 1M
BAEE2017F7R18 2 81 A248 B - #2017
F7R1RE RN 2% 5363601 A - =M EW
ANE—BEBAER  BROEHERA
BAEAR ARG (K FE20) o W ARBEB LA - A
EHEETHER -

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EHZE2019812A31B L E
9. Staff costs 9. EEEH
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BT 78T
Salaries, wages and other benefits W IEREMEF 440,972,973 391,990,525
Contributions to defined contribution FE M PR REEI A R
retirement plan 22,479,288 21,575,264
463,452,261 413,565,789
10. General and administrative expenses 10. —RITHEH
General and administrative expenses included: —RITHRERBRE:
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
B T BT
Operating lease charges: ZEHERE:

Minimum lease payments =K E R - 3,866,330
Auditors’ remuneration % AN B & 526,330 456,670
Depreciation charges: FrERR:

- owned assets -BREE 145,872,250 114,552,825

- right-of-use assets -FRAREE 11,509,380 -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEWE @ ERERKREZ

equipment BB a) 3,464,315 (303,559)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12A318 L FE
. e 4 5, =8
11. Property, plant and equipment and 1. M HBERZBENEREL
- - {mm |
construction in progress =
Facilities,
tools,
machinery Total
Leasehold Renovation  Furniture and property,
land and Motor  Computer and building and  workshop Other  plantand Construction
building  vehicles  equipment facilities ~ fixtures  equipment  equipment equipment in progress Total
RIE -
HELH %% HBER TIH-#H nE - HE
REEN RE EMRE RETRIE EE£E RISRE HiRfE RREEE ERIRE ag
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
-y BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT B
Cost RA
At 1 January 2018 #201851A18 583,260,728 985,700 81,217,378 343,165,927 6,280,689 68,743,104 18,487,021 1,102,140,547 4,947,029  1,107,087,576
Additions b - 355544 - - 24,941 - - 380,485 208,616,237 208,996,722
Disposals HE - - (6,598,214)  (5,637,677) (77,244) (963,153) (581,660)  (13,857,948) - (13,857,948)
Transfer R - - 21,651,381 159,170,677 - 23193558 4,713,835 208,729,451 (208,729,451 -
At 31 December 2018, #2018F 124318
as original presented MEAM T 583,260,728 1,341,244 96,270,545 496,698,927 6,228,386 90,973,509 22,619,196 1,297,392,535 4,833,815 1,302,226,350
Initial application of NAERBRH
HKFRS 16 FEREIF16% 28,837,184 - - - - - - 28837184 - 28837184
Restated balance as at R2019F1 818 2 €5
1 January 2019 o 612,097,912 1,341,244 96,270,545 496,698,927 6,228,386 90,973,509 22,619,196 1,326,229,719 4,833,815 1,331,063,534
Additions iR 972,530 - - - 80,385 - 8,707,206 9,760,121 150,916,428 160,676,549
Disposals HE - - (3,843,114)  (13,688,877)  (156,322)  (2,837,458)  (1,107,863) (21,633,634) - (21,633,634)
Transfer 2 - - 22,862,852 74,624,602 - 30,787,112 731,776 135,406,342  (135,406,342) -
At 31 December 2019 #201912A31A 613,070,442 1341244 115290283 557,634,652 615,449 118923163 37350315 1,449,762,548 20343901 1,470,106,449
Accumulated depreciation Rt T E
At 31 January 2018 #201851A18 59,978,216 727,285 31,195,841 125,676,895 2,427,990 46,662,482 5,304,811 271,973,520 - 271973520
Charge for the year AEERE 16,591,156 97,318 15,617,299 70,530,761 623,638 9,149,630 1,943,023 114,552,825 - 114,552,825
Written off on disposals HERZEH - - (6,554,164)  (5303,152) (61,946) (886,957) (331,288)  (13,137,507) - (13,137,507)
At 31 December 2018 #2018512A318 76,569,372 824,603 40,258,976 190,904,504 2,989,682 54,925,155 6,916,546 373,388,838 - 373,388,838
Charge for the year AEERE 27,374,936 138,309 18,566,975 93,097,801 624,940 14,506,109 3,072,560 157,381,630 - 157,381,630
Written off on disposals HERZEH - - (3,843,114)  (9,056,842) (91,514)  (2,784,156) (454,905)  (16,230,531) - (16,230,531)
At 31 December 2019 #2019F12A31A 103,944,308 962,912 54,982,837 274,945,463 3,523,108 66,647,108 9,534,201 514,539,937 - 514,539,937
Carrying amounts REFE
At 31 December 2019 #2019612A318 509,126,134 378,332 60,307,446 282,689,189 2,629,341 52,276,055 27816114 935,222,611 20,343,901 955,566,512
At 31 December 2018 20186124318 506,691,356 516,641 56,011,569 305,794,423 3,238,704 36,048,354 15,702,650 924,003,697 4,833,815 928,837,512
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

EHZE2019812A31B L E
12. Debt instruments at amortised cost 12. BEENLRFTEZETIA
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BT 78T
Debt instruments listed on the Stock Exchange HE&ERX H T LM HER
of Hong Kong, with fixed interest rate of TEH FEBEEMNEA
1.96% to 2.52% per annum and maturity 1.96% % 2.52% I 7320204F
date in 2020 ER - 70,054,642 70,210,581

13. Equity instruments at fair value through 13. BAREEFTE LT A HAb

other comprehensive income THKEZRELA
2019 2018
HKS HK$
5T 7T

Equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange & EBRX BT L 2 HEZF M
of Hong Kong, at fair value FBHEUARRERD 37,467,957 37,867,840

Note: Bt 3 -

The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of entites Ll EAGEE BRI LT Z2EZFEEFH
listed in Hong Kong. These investments are not held for trading, instead, (LAT{ER) - ELLEW A THIEES M
they are held for long-term strategic purposes. The Council members REREHEEBN - AR HEREREBE
have elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as at L£EFRENAABEREPANESHER A
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these %G BEAMBEHEAEZLRERREEER
investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the — HIBEBHZ KRBT > SULTEHELRET
Group'’s strategy of holding these investments for long-term purposes and B3 E AE AR BT E W T A H 4 2wk
realising their performance potential in the long run. ZiEETIA -
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14. Levy receivables

ARE IS IR AR MY A %I‘[l]
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A318 L FE

14. FEUEK

2019 2018
HK$ HK$

BT BT

Levy receivables JE W B R 95,059,568 84,837,321
Less: Impairment loss B ORE B 1R (6,486,175) (7,119,838)
88,573,393 77,717,483

All levy receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.
The average credit period on levy receivables granted to the
contractors is 28 days after the date of the notice of assessment.

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the specified period of
28 days. Thereafter, penalty is imposed at 5% of the unpaid amount.
If the amount of the levy or surcharge, including any penalty imposed
remains unpaid within three months after the expiry of the specified
period, a further penalty of 5% of the unpaid amount will be imposed
on the outstanding balance. The Group would provide fully for all long
outstanding receivables, having considered, inter alia, the likelihood of
recoverability based on historical experience.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s levy receivables
balance are debtors with a carrying amount of HK$3,518,056 (2018:
HK$2,832,495) which were past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group had not provided for any impairment loss as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts
are still considered recoverable.

Impairment of levy receivables

Impairment losses on levy receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against levy
receivables directly.

PrE R FEBEHEN —FAKD -

AR AENFEBAENAHR28RA
BT B

R H28 K IR AL TR AR - (BB R A
B B R R BN BRBE Y 5% Y BT 5K o A
KM INE - BEATHKRHTR - EHME
AR EN28 K B JE M 1 B9 =8 A R M R B
AR BB RIS SR - B R
NRERS% - BBEC RIFBEERBFE
Wik g REHBRERERELE
HEE -

H £2019F 12 A31H » £ 7N # 12 JE W
WA - AR ERMEE3,518,056/% 7T (2018:
2,832,495 L) MRIBN M KX A AR E BB
EEHR AEEEREWEREBE ZEREX
WREsEXEE  HEEBBEKRERKE -
iMARE HekE BB RIEL B E -

FE W EK 2 BB
el MR 2 BE B RRARERER B

FARBEEUOSEBREMTEN  AlE
ERFEBBWHBAMERERSRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31B IEFE

The movement in the allowance for impairment loss is as follows:

FEARMEBERENESHOT:

HK$

BT
At 1 January 2018 201841 A1H 3,759,848
Impairment losses recognised R ZBAEREX 3,359,990
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 7,119,838
Uncollectible amount written off 85 R e W o) & B (150,995)
Net reversal of impairment losses FOR (B B[O (482,668)
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 6,486,175

At 31 December 2019, levy receivables HK$6,403,201 (2018:
HK$6,787,945) were individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to contractors that were either
under liquidation or in financial difficulties and the Group assessed
that the full amount of the receivables to be irrecoverable.

In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the Group
collectively considered any change in the credit quality of the levy
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the
contractor base being large and unrelated.

15. Deposits, Prepayments And Other

2019512 A31H » A # 18 /) & W # K
6,403,201 7T (2018 : 6,787,945/%8 7T) 2 & Bl
EEELRE - ERREEYKKRESRIE
EITERIARVBERBARERS  MER
BRETE  ZERKE2HIAATHRE -

ARBEGERBBFES KDE B
ZRARVGETEEERSAHNLBEHERK
BRNERERERED - AN ARENHK
BEERAAETEHE  BEEETHNER
BR -

15. % - ANEAREMBERIE

Receivables 18
2019 2018
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Deposits and prepayments R REMNER 12,916,530 11,052,327
Other receivables H b Y BR IR

— Interest receivables — The Group - IR B - ANk rE 16,735,025 18,493,048

— Interest receivables — CITF (Note 18) -ERFE - ZEEAFTK
B E S (K 5E18) 490,847 3,715,520
— Receivable from the Government - RE BT R E U AR IE 16,682,709 14,570,054
- Others i 5,936,667 5,643,522
39,845,248 42,422,144
52,761,778 53,474,471
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16. Cash and bank balances

Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demand deposits held

g A

7 N =]

R R SR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A318 L FE

16. RERBRITER

ARBORTRESAFRERES RED

by the Group. e
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BT 77T
Deposits with banks AT X
- with original maturity over three months - BREHZRN=1EA
- The Group - RN 2,047,262,726 1,932,979,247
- CITF (Note 18) -BEEATEIMEES
(KT 5E18) 995,000,000 999,000,000
3,042,262,726 2,931,979,247
Bank balances and cash BRITEFEANMRSE
- The Group - R 41,642,559 51,545,272
- CITF (Note 18) -BEEAFEREES
(f7x18) 8,422,593 999,388
3,092,327,878 2,984,523,907

Deposits and bank balances totalling HK$1,003,422,593 (2018:
HK$999,999,388) being Construction Innovation and Technology Fund
(Note 18) are kept at earmarked bank accounts.

17. Accounts and other payables and
accruals

All of the accounts and other payables and accruals are expected to
be settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

BEEANEREES (WFF18) 2 RITHFER
1,003,422,593/% 7T (2018; 999,999,388/% JT)
BEEGFREARFOD -

17. BAERIE - HBAIRIER B
ATEA

PRAERMNRE  HitENBRELESERE
R —FRNERERANFEE -

A
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31B IEFE

18. Construction innovation and technology
fund

The Finance Committee of the Legislative Council approved the
establishment of the CITF on 16 July 2018, with an allocation of
HK$1,000,000,000 for use over a tentative period of 5 years. CITF
is to encourage wider adoption of innovative construction methods
and technology in the construction industry with a view to promoting
productivity, uplifting built quality, improving site safety and
enhancing environmental performance by the Government of HKSAR.
The CIC was commissioned by the Development Bureau to be the
implementation partner. CIC opened a designated bank account and
keep separate books for the CITF. As at 31 December 2019, the fund
balance accumulated to HK$1,003,913,440 (2018: HK$1,003,714,908)
for which HK$1,003,422,593 (2018: HK$999,999,388) and
HK$490,847 (2018: HK$3,715,520) are included in cash and bank
balances (Note 16) and interest receivables respectively. The unutilised

amount has to be returned to the Development Bureau.
19. Leases liabilities

HKFRS 16 was adopted on 1 January 2019 without restatement
of comparative amounts. The impact on transition is in Note 2.
The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019, is in Note 3.

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)

The group leases a number of properties in Hong Kong with fixed
periodic payments over the lease terms.

The group also leases certain items of equipment with fixed payments
over the lease terms.

18. EEXAHERMEES

BEXBFTEABEESR —EFERAHETES
TEATFOEN - BAEKN2018F7H16
AEY I BEZEgRB BEFEAN
B E 2 # 8 i 8F B & 2 5K A 8l 3T i &
FEREE  AEBFERSREELEEN -
ReREEE WEIHWTE2NEARR
e  BEXEEREZLAVTRMY -EFE
RREXAFEBEESRYT—EAZAP
HRRFE RS - 7R2019F12H31H -
EHE 4 DB F£1,003,913,440/% 7T (2018 :
1,003,714,908% ) o 1M H #1,003,422,593
7 71 (2018 : 999,999,388/ JT) £490,847 78
70 (2018 3,715,520/ 70) D B FE AR B & &
RITER (T RERFEF - ZEFE
ERERNESELRTERER -

19. HE&E

ERBM S REENF165 H2019F1 8188
B AEBYREILRET - BEBE2019
FIAHREANBEEZRONHBA  F2
B2 - 2019F1A1B 2B EAMNES
B E2RMWES -

HEFBHMEE AR A S H)
AHRBEREEHRESTYE  aHEHR
SABEEMR -

AHEBTEHERLRE EHEHMNAX
[ E A5 3K

2% CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL i i ¥ &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE IS IR AR MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12A318 L FE

A

Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

BREEBHNOMOEREEEREFED

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

T

Leasehold land Other
and building equipment
HET#HR
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE B2EY Hi %
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January 2019 20191 H1H 28,837,184 -
Additions BN 972,530 8,707,206
Amortisation i (10,783,780) (725,600)
At 31 December 2019 72019512 A31H 19,025,934 7,981,606
Future lease payments are due as follows: RREMBERMAT
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
BEEEMNRK EIES RE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2019
2019F 20194 2019F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT Vi BT
Not later than one year —F KN 14,331,854 488,254 13,843,600
Later than one year and not later —F & {E AFE R
than five years 15,057,044 322,273 14,734,771
29,388,898 810,527 28,578,371
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HE2019F12A31B IEFE
Minimum lease
payments Interest Present value
HEHEENZ A HE
1 January 2019 1 January 2019 1 January 2019
2019451 A1H 20191 A1H 201951 A1H
HK$ HK$ HK$
T T BT
Not later than one year —F R 11,364,775 701,258 10,663,517
Later than one year and not later —F & {E AFE R
than five years 20,448,240 390,970 20,057,270
31,813,015 1,092,228 30,720,787
2019
HK$
BT
Movement of lease liabilities HEAEZY
At 1 January M1A1E 30,720,787
New leases Mg E 9,679,736
Interest expenses A EEH 654,238
Repayment BN (12,476,390)
At 31 December W12 H31H 28,578,371

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information
as at 31 December 2018 has not been restated. See Note 2 for more

details about transition.

AEERARFZELIERATAVB RS
EHIS1658 - I H2019F1 B18 AL 4
BRUNERRARBERE B ENE17TRE
HRIELEHEMNMEEBEERE - #1£2018
FRAJNBOLERATIERES - BERE

MEZHMAER F2EEE2-
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HE2019F12A318 L FE

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: RRBEERNKOBRESFTWT -
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
2019%12A31H 201951 A1H
HK$ HK$
7 JT & TT
Current liabilities mEBE 13,843,600 10,663,517
Non-current liabilities FRBEIE 14,734,771 20,057,270
28,578,371 30,720,787
Leases - other disclosures HE - HihiE &
2019
HK$
BT
Short term lease expense EAHHEEER 128,370
Low value lease expense KEBEHEEA 2,170,077
Interest expenses B X H 654,238
Leases as at 31 December 2018 M2018F12R31E 2 E
Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating A BUEMZERE AR BAHNHRER
leases are payable as follows: ERRAT:
HK$
BT
Within one year R—FR 11,364,775
After one year but within five year —FEERFA 20,448,240
31,813,015
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

HZE2019F 124318 ILFE
20. Contract liabilities 20. eRI&EE
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
B 7T BT
Course fees and related income R 2 Y N AE B Uk A 3,300,001 3,985,241
Workers registration fees TAGEHE 18,556,879 20,488,652
Registration fees from sub-contractors DEEEME 8,057,649 5,652,776
29,914,529 30,126,669
Current B 13,349,447 12,593,949
Non-current ERB 16,565,082 17,532,720
29,914,529 30,126,669

Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be settled within the EKEAKEZEOELIERORGEEN
Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as non-current based on 7% Bt T £ A KB EESLERHARE
the Group's earliest obligation to transfer services to the customers. EMAREE D HEAERE -

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in F&RIIRANEZ BB AR H % ot id

the current year relates to brought-forward contract liabilities. WERBESRRS -
Course fees Workers Registration
and related registration fees from
income fees sub-contractors
REWEMN
iR R N TAZME TEBEME
HK$ HK$ HK$
2019
Revenue recognised that was FUFAGREE

included in the contract liability 45 &2 #E R HY UL A
balance at the beginning of the
year 3,985,241 7,095,901 1,512,807

2018
Revenue recognised that was FtAERAE
included in the contract liability %5 & R KU A
balance at the beginning of the
year 4,102,857 4,728,888 278,540
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Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

(a) Course fees and related income

When the Group receives course fees before the construction
training course commences, it gives rise to contract liabilities at
cash receipt, until the amount is recognised as course fees and
related income. The Group typically receives the full amount
of the construction training course fees before the course
commences.
(b) Workers registration fees
The workers registration fees normally have a validity period
of 60 months in accordance with the Construction Workers
Registration (Fees) Regulation (Cap 583 (B)). When the Group
receives the registration fees from the construction workers, it
gives rise to contract liabilities at cash receipt, until the amount
is recognised as registration fee income over the period.
(©) Registration fees from sub-contractors
The registration fees from sub-contractors normally have a
validity period of 60 months under the Registered Specialist
Trade Contractors Scheme. When the Group receives the
registration fees from the sub-contractors, it gives rise to contact
liabilities at cash receipt, until the amount is recognised as
registration fee income over the period.

21. Taxation

Pursuant to section 28 of the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
the Council is exempted from taxation under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

Zero Carbon Building, wholly owned subsidiary of the Council, is
exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section 88 of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

Hong Kong Institute of Construction, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Council, is exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax under section
88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

ARE IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE

LHERRNARAGENEEBRTENA
B ERR I TR

(q) 3B72 Uk 2 0 40 B8 I A

EAKBEZERIIRRERGE K
BREER ELEGREE BEEZ
ERERARBERE RBERBEA K
KBRAFTEERERIRRERREZ
AR ERRARZER -

(b) TAEMEUA
TAGMEESBRERRBR(REXT AT
fit (& )R ANFES83IB)E) — K A
60fE A - EAMBI S ZEET A
MeEr ELE6RAGE BEEZZEA
PEREERAZEMBIA -

© PEHEMBKRA
DEHEMEE R ZREFMEN T
¥AEEHE —MAEOEAR - X
BRI S>BEEAMER  EEER
B EEZEREREER M
BUA

21. HIE

REB(RERZ G IF ) F285K
(2 75 1% 9)) JE 6 S0 BN RR AR o

A BR

AEgz2EMBAR  TH KR RE
(RBIEP)FGRERREBN BT ERNE
i e

AEEZ2EWBRAR  BARESKR R
BARBEP)FIREFHR BN T EN
B -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31B IEFE

22. Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of capital fund. The Council
members of the Group review the capital structure periodically. As
part of this review, the Group will balance its overall capital structure

22. EXERBERE

EERBEEFHER -

through obtaining finances from available sources. -

23. Financial instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

23. e T A

(@ SBMTEES

AHBEEEEAN  EREEDRBEL
BEHRBAFERFFELE - AHRBZ

ARBZEARBREELRESR - FEEK
EEHMAEAERE - FRRT 22—
AHBHABENREFHEEBEAR

2019 2018
HK$ HK$
B It BT
Financial assets EtHMEE
Financial assets at amortised costs REEKATTENSREE
(including cash and bank balances) (BRERESBEITENR) 3,207,873,484 3,102,750,394
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BRARBETFELA
HEh2EKEHARETA 37,467,957 37,867,840
Financial liabilities sRasE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HHEK AT ENERAans 1,075,474,494 1,046,547,859

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include equity and debt
instruments, deposits, other receivables, bank balances and cash,

(b) SREAREEEERBKE

ARBzZERSH T ABERE RS
BTAE 2 HtEKREKRE  RT

accounts and other payables. The risks associated with these G BAEBEMEMEMNEE: -

financial instruments include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

it B TR PRI 2 R R
B RBESERE - FERER KRR
BEER - RELERR 2 BERHERN
TX - EREEEMEREZETAR -
NEREFERRRZERGE - A%
BeREERIBEEZFAR -

BREER
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Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group has policies in place
for the determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Council
members consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

For deposits and other receivables, the Group performs
impairment assessment under 12m ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9. The credit risk on deposits and other receivables
are limited because the counterparties are entities with good
repayment history and credit ratings and/or exposure at default
is low. In this regard, the Council members consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group only invests in debt securities with low credit risk.
The Group's debt instruments at amortised cost are bonds issued
by corporations that are graded in the top credit rating among
rating agencies. Therefore, these investments are considered to
be low credit risk investments and the loss allowance is assessed
on 12m ECL basis.

The Group’s bank balances are deposited with banks with high
credit ratings and therefore the credit risk of these bank balances
is low and the loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis.

The Council members considered that no additional provision for
the above items has to be made as it is immaterial.

ARE IS IR AR MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A318 L FE

=Bk

AEBAXIHFREBITRE AR
ZEAGERR(GERAKBEE
MBEBR)REHEAYBRARARESR
JIRCHREREECKMEESL -

EREEERR AEBSHE
ﬁﬁu%iﬁ%@ﬁ*ﬁggﬁﬁﬁ
B E F4& - BARIMEEE B RFKEK
HREREREE S ARBEERS
18 B & P 2 ] Y B 5RBE - BE AR LR BE
Wm 2z BRIAFH MR ERE - Bt
ME AREXERRARBZEE
[ B B K R B AR

ABZREABMEEBENGE
KAETH RS R H i B RAENRE
B BN RXZEBFHRARMEER
THRIEEFRERNER  SULHE
ERKEERRENEERRIESR
fR -

ARBRRERABNEFTA K
HENRBHEKATEZHBEEN
BRTANHIRARBEFELSSEE

ARNES - Bl RERERAR
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BHEEBRENEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit rating and
the investments in two debt instruments at amortised cost,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity requirements.
The Group managed liquidity risk by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows.

The Group's financial liabilities are repayable on demand or
according to the contractual maturity of these liabilities on the
basis of the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay is less than one year and the undiscounted cash flows of
such liabilities are approximately equal to their carrying amounts.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to debt instruments at amortised cost. The Group currently does
not use any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, the Council members will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interest bearing financial assets.
Interest bearing financial assets are mainly cash and deposits at
banks which are all short term in nature. Therefore, any future
variations in interest rates will not have a significant impact on
the results of the Group.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income.
All of these investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong.

BRERZRXSEEFRRITORDE
EMEBKIANKEREERR
SHOBERI  AEBERAZEESS
R - ZEBROHRAERSHEF -

BB ZE

MBECRBERNREKEERENE
g MARBERY - EFEENRY
BEoRAREERE MEERAKE
MEH FHRENHRERARDHES
BR -BBEBAFEERBHNER
Reng EERBESHAR -

ARBZERABERRERERERE -
e ZRENARZIEE  BIA
BERSLKEENKRERAN  2R—
FH HKFEENATRAESRER
MHEREEE -

Tl & [z

AHBARZBZBHENATEZER
TEHRBEORIEBEMNXEAR - NH#
BEAWMARERAETATEERTAS
RIAE R EM KRR - A - NZEE
B8 R BB R E AR R
[ B o

ARBEBHNESREENRE(E
g AXRBRERENXRER - -MES
MEETZBRSRRITEN =28
VREHEE - Bt FERRELM
2 HIEHARBREERERXN

ye-
RAEH B

AEBAZREAABEFELFAR
fhEmks 2 BRETR AEZ2AER
BHUCRBAERSA LT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Listed investments held in equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income portfolio have been chosen
based on their longer term growth potential and are monitored
regularly for performance against expectations.

Equity price risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk on listed equity interests at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income had been 20% higher/lower, the
Group's investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$7,493,591 (2018: HK$7,573,568).

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income which are traded on active markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices. The
Group holds listed equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income amounting to HK$37,467,957 (2018:
HK$37,867,840), which are grouped into Level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3. The Group’'s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial insfruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

©

0

(i)

ARG B SRR MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12A31BEFE
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BEX ARBIBRANEBETET
AAEMEARENE EmzEasl
& K & %8 537,467,957 T (20184 -
37,867,840 T) T AR BEERSP
SREEIER -

H Z=20194F M2018F RI12 A318 I+ F
EXN - TEFIGLF2Z8EMIAZ
MHER  F30emTAREE AR
EHH AEEREREAALBERR
ZEHBEEBPHREHERE  BR
BH@E% -

FURAREEI Rz 2/ TALR
EE

20194 X 20184F W12 831H » A B
SHAASIBEM AR E R EERAE -
HEEBEANBELSEEREER -

Al

ANNUAL REPORT 2019 ﬁiﬁ/ 289



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%Ll & B & A
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE2019F12A31B IEFE

24. Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 and 2018 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

24, EARKIE

R2019F M 2018F 12 A3TB M KB 1T R R 4R
AUBRMERPRIRBE CERNEKENT

2019 2018
HK$ HK$
7B T BT
Contracted for BEL 658,907,059 114,592,789

Capital commitments relate to the acquisition of plant and equipment,
renovation works and acquisition or development of computer
equipment.

25. Related party disclosures
(a) Related party transactions

As the members of the Council were being drawn from private or
public construction industry sector organisations, it is inevitable
that transactions will take place with organisation in which
a member may have an interest. All transactions involving
organisations in which members of the Group may have an
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year, were conducted on normal commercial terms and in
accordance with the Group’s procurement procedures.

During the year, the Group entered into the following non-trade

BARAEAEREBBARSRRE KT
BULRBAREREMKE -

25. BN T &=
(@) BHATRS

RRAEBREAERARERALE
FRAEHEE BEHLEKERF
ZEERNEBETRS - FREGK
BENSRENBBREAKBEFTS
ETRERDAERNRS  YRIEF
BEGRARANEBEORBIZA LT -

AEEEFRNEBBALTET NI

transactions with related parties: BH5R5 :
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
Nature of transactions REHE
Funding support to Hong Kong Green HEBZCREEZZEAR
Building Council Limited NAEE I 5,865,575 5,551,172
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HZE2019812A31B L5 E
(b) Related party balances (b) EBEEALAER
Balances with related parties at the end of the reporting period REBTRERERGEAHALTH
are as follows: ST
2019 2018
HK$ HK$
7 JT 7T
Net amount due to Hong Kong Green ERNEBGCREERY
Building Council Limited BRAAHFEE (185,722) (130,172)
Hong Kong Green Building Council Limited is a related company, EERCELZSARRAREBR LD
in which several members of the Council are also directors of Al ABRBZEZRERENRBEBEE
Hong Kong Green Building Council Limited. BEZEEARAAES -
26. Subsidiaries 26. Mt B~ 7]
Details of the Council’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and 2018 HEMMEARR20198% 2018412 A31
are as follows: Hz=FEmT:
Place of Effective interest held
Name of subsidiaries incorporation by the Council Principal activities
LN X 3L th B BEREENZ FEER
2019 2018
Directly Directly
= B#E
% %
Zero Carbon Building (Note) Hong Kong 100 100 Operating and managing
Tk K (5F) 55 Zero Carbon Building
EiEREET R
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Hong Kong 100 100 Provision of training
(Formerly known as Hong Kong & /& courses for the
Institute of Construction Limited) construction industry
ERREER (AR RAEE REEEREMEIRRE
BEZERERAE])
Note: As at 31 December 2019, the capital fund of this subsidiary & : M2019%128318 @ ZMB AR 2 EAS
amounting to HK$94,456,035 (2018: HK$94,456,035) representing /94,456,035 7T (20184F : 94,456,035/
the accumulated contributions from the Council. TOREBZEHRNEE -
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Number of Higher Paid Staff BRegzBEHE
The actual remuneration of staff members exceeding $1,000,000 in  R20184F [ 20194 & [X FF % 8 18 $1,000,000
2018 and 2019 is shown below: MBEHBWMT:
2019 2018
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
B E%HE BB 88
$1,000,000 to $3,500,000 $1,000,000% $3,500,000 41 35
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